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“Exquisite Craftsmanship” is a customised TV programme. It reinforced TSL's brand positioning of “Trend-setting Craftsmanship” through
paying tribute to selected French and Italian artisans for the mastery of their meticulous works of art.
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

Bf # &

TURNOVER t«sm
E X smEEn)

14

13 3,563

12 3,359

11 2,518

10 2,018
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY tksm
ARRABEE AEEER semnr

14 I

13 682

12 1682

11 177

10 1124

*  Excluding a write-back of overprovision for tax disputes of
HKS46 million, profit was HKS$131 million.
T A 185 [ B 75 ik < BB 78 16 46,000,000 7T
ZF| #7%54131,000,0007T °
A Restated
2]l

DIVIDEND PER SHARE w«e
1R’ E an

0.097

14 I

13 0.080

12 0152
n 0.147
10 0.100

NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE

COMPANY PER SHARE ks
RAREBEABREEFEE 0

0.UY

14

13 470
12 446
n 386

10 298



2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(restated)  (restated)  (restated)  (restated)

(&Z51) (231) (&#71) (&51)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(GLELY)]
FEZHEBARER(B¥EET)
Turnover & 358 4,057 3,663 3,359 2,518 2,018
Profit before tax B Al 27| 101 95 242 232 187
Profit for the year A4 & & F| 74 68 186 201 137
Profit attributable to owners of the Company
R UNGIE7 2 S DN Rkl 75 68 168 177 112
PER SHARE (HKS)
g et GBT)
Earnings &7 0.35 0.32 0.80 0.84 0.53
Dividend i & 0.092 0.080 0.152 0.147 0.100
Dividend payout ratio J& 8 £t % 26% 25% 19% 17% 19%
Net assets attributable to owners of the Company
RRRHER NEIEFEE 5.09 4.70 4.46 3.86 2.98
Market price M {& 2.99 4.20 6.00 6.23 2.20

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(GRELY))

REVBRRER(BEEER)

Number of shares (‘M shares) B3 B2 (& &%) 210 210 210 210 210
Shareholders’ funds lER & & 1,070 989 938 812 627
Borrowings & & 857 631 440 216 150
Cash and cash equivalents 3¢ MR & EEY) 141 206 103 122 177
Net gearing ratio ¥ & &Lt % 67% 43% 36% 12% N/A
Market capitalisation T {& 629 883 1,262 1,310 463
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As to Hong Kong law:
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20/F, Alexandra House, 18 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

As to Bermuda law:
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Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
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DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
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Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 17,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE

Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street,
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STOCK CODE
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LETTER
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

IR R A R

It is with great pleasure that | report that the Group has continued to realize pleasing
benefits from the ongoing investment that it has made into its sales network, the
refinement of its product assortments, its brand revitalization and the strengthening of
the capability of its management team over the last few years. Despite a significant
decline being experienced in the performance of the Group’s Travel Trade business
following the implementation of the new Tourism Law of Mainland China on 1 October 2013,
the Group was able to close the resulting sales gap due to its other business units
outperforming last year. As a result, for the financial year under review (the “Year"), the
Group achieved an increase in both consolidated sales turnover and net profit against
those of the previous year.

In Hong Kong and Macau, the widening of the Group's product offering during the Year
helped it to maximize its sales both during and after the “gold rush” period which
occurred between April and June and which generated a substantial increase in
customer traffic to our stores. Since then, the Group has placed an even stronger focus
on its 24-karat gold business in Hong Kong and Macau which focus has helped it to
further improve the customer traffic to its stores and to increase the sales
opportunities resulting therefrom.

In the Mainland, in addition to refining the product assortment during the Year, the
Group undertook a critical review of its sales network there. As a result, the Group
decided to (i) enlarge its sales network in Mainland China by a net increase of 11
stores, with focus on rejuvenating the business in Beijing, and (ii) open new franchised
stores as a means to expedite the expansion of its sales network throughout the
Mainland. This new franchise operation was started with a pilot run of three franchised
stores which were opened in the second half of the Year in Hefei, Quanzhou and
Zhongshan. These stores have been well received by both the franchisees and
customers alike. A more rapid expansion of its sales network through the use of
franchising is expected over the coming financial years.

Riding on the initial success of the brand revitalization campaign “The Persistence of
Love" conducted in 2012, the Group continued its investment in brand building via two
strategic bursts in 2013. The summer campaign created a new promotion window
during the traditional off season and served as a platform for launching the enhanced
version of the hero product presented in the TV commercial. In order to reinforce TSL's
brand positioning of “Trend-setting Craftsmanship [FEAL T #7%E42 " the Group
partnered with TVB to introduce a customized TV program that featured the exquisite
craftsmanship of selected French and lItalian artisans at the end of November 2013.
Accompanied with the re-run of “The Persistence of Love" TV commercial, the
awareness of the TSL brand has been significantly boosted to an all-time high of over
80%. This campaign effectively uplifted customer perception on TSL's passion for
excellence. Research findings showed that the overall liking and brand consideration of
the Group have been much improved following the campaign.

AARREM  NEERERFERRE
ERE - ALERDE  EEmERINK
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As a company deeply rooted in Hong Kong, the Group is committed to contributing to
the sustainable development and enrichment of the local jewellery industry. To serve
this purpose, the Group has established the TSL | #¥m % Foundation to preserve and
promote the industry’s cultural heritage through nurturing local talent and promoting
innovative jewellery design and excellent craftsmanship amongst the younger
generation. The TSL | &3 # Foundation's debut project was a collaboration with the
School of Modern Languages and Cultures of The University of Hong Kong (“HKU"), in
co-organizing the “Creative Management in Luxury Industry” programme for
undergraduate students of HKU. | would like to take this opportunity to thank all the
distinguished guest speakers (who are creative icons and business leaders from
various industries) as well as the Group's senior management team for their valuable
support and contributions to this programme. Ultimately, the programme received an
overwhelming response and encouraging feedback from participants.

At the corporate level, the organization structure of the Group kept evolving throughout
the Year, which further enabled the implementation of the Group's mid- to long-term
corporate development strategies and the realization of a more effective and efficient
business management structure and culture. Rather than consolidating the business
ownership of all our geographical regions under one senior executive, businesses of
different natures and/or regions are now led by separate full-fledged business owners
to enable more independent management, focus, autonomy and specialization. In
addition, in order to expand the scope of the Group’s businesses beyond its current
traditional base, the development of new sales channels has become a major focus of
the Group and this shall be expedited following the appointment of a Director — Travel
Trade & Channel Development in June 2014. Last but not least, a new business unit
focusing on the business development of CORE JEWELS worldwide has been set up
and will be spearheaded by the Director — Group Marketing & International Business.
Due to the strong commitment and determination of all senior executives to take TSL
to the next level, | am confident that the various business initiatives supported by the
new organization and management structures shall bring a great deal of excitement
and ongoing benefits to the TSL Group and its stakeholders in the years to come.
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Looking ahead, notwithstanding that the current operating environment remains
challenging for the Group, | believe that the mid- to long-term investments being made
will pay off. The sales network expansion through franchising in Mainland China will
enable the Group to grow more rapidly and to increase its brand exposure there, while
the development of new sales channels will expand the Group’s overall market
presence, penetration and reach. For example, our new e-commerce platform, to be
initially hosted at T-Mall, will be launched in June 2014. Nevertheless, due to continuing
global economic uncertainties, the slowdown of economic growth and the change in
business environment brought about by the new Tourism Law of Mainland China, we
shall continue to take a cautious approach and mitigate our risks as and when
required.

On a final note, | would like to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to all
shareholders, board members, our conscientious staff members, loyal customers,
business partners and other stakeholders for their continuing support and
commitment to the Group. TSL is a company committed to its vision, mission and core
values. As a visionary and passionate leader, | am determined to bring TSL to new
heights.

Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 May 2014
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RESULTS OF THE GROUP

For the financial year ended 28 February 2014 (the “Year"), the consolidated turnover of
the Group grew by 13.9% to HKS$4,057 million from HKS3,563 million last year. The
overall gross margin of the Group decreased from 46.8% to 43.7% during the Year
mainly due to a major change in the sales mix of the Group towards higher volume but
lower margin 24-karat gold products. Notwithstanding this, the Group was able to
achieve a slight improvement in its gross margin across each of its major categories
of merchandise via a more cautious approach to margin management. The conscious
decision by the Group to increase its investment in human resources to improve the
Group's capability for business improvement and development since last year and the
notional non-cash expense of HK$9.3 million for share options granted during the Year
resulted in a rise in the Groups overheads. As a result, profit attributable to owners of
the Company was HKS74.5 million for the Year, representing a slight increase of 9.4%
over last year. Earnings per share for the year was 35.4 HK cents.

Sales in Hong Kong and Macau in the first half of the Year substantially benefited from
the buying spree for 24-karat gold (the “Gold Rush”) that followed the sudden drop in
the gold price in April 2013. The Gold Rush continued through to June following which
the consumer sentiment towards gold products subdued. On the other hand, the
Group's Travel Trade business for tourists was inevitably affected by the new Tourism
Law of Mainland China in October 2013 as the industry needed time to understand and
comply with the new law. As a matter of fact, the business has been picking up
gradually in the months following the implementation of the new law. Thanks to the
Gold Rush, the Groups improved product offerings, including 24-karat gold, and the
enhanced brand image brought about by our brand building program, the sales in Hong
Kong and Macau grew by 16% during the Year.

To strengthen our sales network in order to leverage off the enhanced brand image
created by our brand revitalization campaigns in 2012 and 2013, the Group increased
its total number of outlets in Hong Kong and Macau to 28 by opening three new stores
in Hong Kong and one in Macau during the Year. Its new stores in Hong Kong were
opened at Tseung Kwan O, China Hong Kong City in Tsim Sha Tsui and V City in Tuen
Mun, and our flagship store at Parklane in Tsim Sha Tsui was expanded during the
Year. We will continue to review and adjust our store portfolio in the years to come.

In Mainland China, mainly owing to the much smaller scale of our 24-karat gold
business there and a decline in the gifting market, this business only grew by 7% during
the Year accounting for 34% of the Group's turnover. While the sales volume achieved
double-digit growth, the demand for higher-price point items was weakened and there
was a 9% decline in the average price of products sold. More focus has been given to
the development of products for the end-user market. There has been a net increase of
11 self-operated outlets and the total number of self-operated outlets increased to 191.

EEIE S

HE201452 A28B I MBEE(AEE]) -
REE 2 frE BB A 13562819000
TT 1 £ 13.9% = 78 #5 4,057,271,000 7 ° AN &
EARFEEEERNEH46.8%ME43.7%
FTEHRAEEHEESHAKNBRE - ER
HEHERZEENRENT € & E
Mo BENY  BEAEBUERELE
EEERN  SEZERIEMAZERREH
R - AEBEEFEMAANERE
A BREBEAEBE(RBERERZ A
7 MAFERREBRE GRS
7 2 /8% 9,300,000 T INE BN £ B &9E
TN Bt NEEARBHEE AEN
B R A& 74 ¥ 745290007C @ 8 = F K+
9.4% - AFEEBREF| BB 35410 -

MR2013F 48 SEZBRMETSRER
B(TESRM])  AAFE EFF5REE
EIEABRLE - BEEHBEHESERD
BRE  BERAHMEZTALR - Z—H
- AEENKESSEBZE P RAH
M 20134F 10 A & e #9 F bk 2 )2 71 7l 8¢ 5
N2 ERTERREK T HMETHN
KR BE L REBEINAREHRED
BFEF - SERBESHE  EAEE
HERCEERERERDEITERTZIRI
RAMBER  NEEBRIBELRI6% -

A NG 5 & PBAS AL IR 2012 F £ 2013 4F
HREEBESHERZMEFREIRR
B AEBERAEED BIES S RIRFTE
RIMRIMHIE - SEBFAMAREES
28f - RAEE  RPEBEKER - £
SOIB R R PIV City BIRRETE » S A
KRPBEMBAEEEEE TR TR - K
REF - BAGHEER R EHAS -

REAIE - ZEBRAFRESRSZT%
B HAKEEER3M% TEHNE
WREEHMEBRER)  NERRETS
ZHEMB - BEHEMGSEBUER -
SEREFRTERS  EREEERT
BERTERO% - RMEZEMIESHEA
BRTSCER - BEERFEMIHE
191 e

017



018

The Group has made a strategic move in its network expansion plan by opening three
franchised stores in Mainland China towards the end of the Year. To maintain the high
quality service and standards of the Group, although such franchised stores are owned
by the franchisees and the Group can benefit from the local knowledge and business
network of the franchisees, the store operation will continue to be under the
management of the Group. The Group will continue to look for local business partners
who believe in the synergies of such cooperation and a more rapid sales network
growth is expected in coming financial years.

Other new initiatives such as e-business and development of the international business
of CORE JEWELS will be launched in 2014/15 to further strengthen our brand
positioning of “Trend-setting Craftsmanship”.

The recent reduction in Mainland tourists' spending in Hong Kong and the high base of
the first half of the Year due, in part, to the Gold Rush, will make this year challenging.
On the other hand, we expect that the negative effects of the new Tourism Law of
Mainland China and the decline in gifting market to continue to gradually level off and
ultimately return back to normal levels over time. The demand for self-consumption by
the growing middle class in Mainland China will also continue to provide a solid base
for market growth there. The Group is committed to investing in and enhancing its
brand, inventory, store network and human resources which will deliver ongoing
benefits to our customers and shareholders.

FINANCE, LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND GEARING

Capital expenditure incurred during the Year, comprising of mainly store renovation
and expansion, furniture and fixtures and machineries, amounted to approximately
HKS56 million (2013: HKS49 million). This was mainly financed by borrowings and
funds generated from internal operations.

As at 28 February 2014, the Group's interest-bearing liabilities increased to HKS857
million from HKS631 million as at 28 February 2013.

Together with the funds raised from the issue of the convertible bonds by the Group in
April 2012 and funds generated from operations, this increase in borrowings has been
applied to finance the addition and enhancement of the Group'’s inventory, the opening
of new stores and other capital expenditure.
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The net gearing ratio (ratio of total interest-bearing liability less cash to total equity)
increased to 67% at 28 February 2014 from 43% in previous year and is at a healthy
level. All borrowings of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi.
Interest on bank borrowings are calculated on either the inter-bank interest rate or the
prime rate while the interest on convertible bonds is fixed.

As at 28 February 2014, the Group had cash and bank balances and undrawn banking
facilities of approximately HKS141 million and HKS24 million respectively which, in the
opinion of the directors, should be sufficient for the Group's present working capital
requirements.

EXCHANGE RATES

During the year, the transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in local
currencies and United States dollars. The impact of the fluctuation of foreign exchange
rates of these currencies to the Group is minimal.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

a. As at 28 February 2013, debentures had been executed by the Group in favour of
its banker charging, by way of fixed and floating charges, all of the undertakings,
properties and assets of the Company and of its 11 subsidiaries as security for,
inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to time owing
by the Group to the banker. Rental revenue of the Group is also charged in favour
of the Group's banker.

Such borrowings were fully refinanced by new secured bank loans as described in
(b) below on 6 November, 2013 and all these debentures were fully released on the
same date.

b. On 6 November 2013, certain fixed properties in Hong Kong were mortgaged to its
banker by way of a first legal charge, as security for, inter alia, all obligations and
liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to time owing by the Group to the banker.

c. On 19 December 2013, certain other fixed properties in Hong Kong were mortgaged
to another banker by way of a first legal charge, as security for, inter alia, all
obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to time owing by the
Group to that banker.
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d. As at 28 February 2013, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries (the
‘Subsidiaries”) had executed a second floating charge and the Company made a
guarantee to the Subsidiaries and there was a cross guarantee among the
Subsidiaries in favour of Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited (‘Rosy Blue HK") to pledge
all of the Subsidiaries’ respective rights to and title and interest from time to time in
their inventories or stock-in-trade and their receivables from their fellow
subsidiaries located other than Hong Kong in connection with the sales and supply
of any inventory or stock-in-trade to such fellow subsidiaries located other than
Hong Kong as a continuing security for the trade payables.

This second floating charge was released by Rosy Blue HK on 18 February 2014 in
accordance with the terms of the charge upon the request of the Group.

e. Asat 28 February, 2014, time deposits equivalent to HKS1.6 million (2013: Nil) have
been pledged to secure a short-term bank loan to a subsidiary in Mainland China.
The pledged time deposits will be released upon the settlement of the relevant
bank borrowings.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 28 February 2014.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 28 February 2014, the total number of employees of the Group was
approximately 3,500 (2013: 3,340). The increase was mainly in sales operations and
merchandising and sourcing departments to support the increase in retail outlets as
well as the increase in quantity of merchandise.

Employees are rewarded on a performance basis with reference to market rates. Other
employee benefits include medical cover and subsidies for job-related continuing
education. Retail frontline staff are provided with formal on-the-job training by internal
senior staff and external professional trainers. There are discussions and in-house
seminars for experience sharing.

The Group had an employee share option scheme which was expired on
25 November 2013. During the Year, options were granted to provide incentive to
certain directors, employees and service providers as disclosed in the announcement
of the Company on 1 March 2013.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has been making efforts to enhance its corporate social responsibilities
over the years.

As a company deeply rooted in Hong Kong, the Group is committed to contributing to
the sustainable development and enrichment of the local jewellery industry. To serve
this purpose, during the Year, the Group has established the TSL | #i%%##% Foundation
to preserve the heritage and foster the development of jewellery industry through
nurturing local talents and promoting innovative jewellery design and excellent
craftsmanship amongst the younger generation.

Caring and Respect, Integrity, Quality Service, Accountability and Long-term Thinking
are the 5 core values established and shared within the Group. A task force comprising
employees was set up to promote these values. We believe to sustain these values and
culture will make TSL a better place to work for our employees.

Other CSR initiatives during the year included joining the charity run of UNICEF and
assistance to social enterprises distributing souvenir cookies in our showrooms. The
latter helps providing employment opportunity to the underprivileged.
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HERITAGE

WIlTH A PASSION

THE FOUNDER TSE SUI LUEN
I%—i%&’m -iﬁ—,f_%)%({g CIEEVNE F)

Tse Sui Luen, aged 77, the Group's Founder.
Mr. Tse provides general advisory & strategic
advice to the Group. He was the Chairman of the
Group from 1987 to 2000 and re-joined the Group
in September 2011. He is a veteran jewellery
expert having over 50 years of experience in
jewellery industry. He has a wide range of
experience in gem setting, quality control,
administration, operations, management and
marketing. He also has very good personal
networks with the peers and suppliers, which
facilitate the Group’s business development. Mr.
Tse is a member of the Political Consultative
Committee of Huadu District, Guangzhou in the
People's Republic of China. He is the father of Mr.
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer — Supplies and the controlling shareholder
of the Group, and the father-in-law of Ms. Yau On
Yee, Annie, the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HITES

Yau On Yee, Annie, aged 43, is the
Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. She joined the
Group in 2002, and became an
Executive Director in 2006. In the
early years at the Company, she
pioneered the Group's Jewellery
ERP discipline and modernised the
Company's management through
business process re-engineering.
Prior to joining the Group, she
worked for multi-national companies
such as Motorola Semiconductors
and IBM. She has over 20 years of
management experience in the
United States and Hong Kong. She
is a director of Partner Logistics
Limited and Blink Technology
Limited which have discloseable
interests in the Company under
provisions of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. She graduated
from Boston University, USA and
holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Computer Engineering. Ms. Yau is
the spouse of Mr. Tse Tat Fung,
Tommy, the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer — Supplies and the
controlling shareholder of the Group,
and the daughter-in-law of Mr. Tse
Sui Luen, the Founder of the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HITES

Erwin Steve Huang, aged 48, is the Deputy Chairman and the
Chief Corporate Development Officer of the Group. He is
responsible for new corporate business developments and
organisational growth and the tourist showroom operation
of the Group. He was the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company for the period from 24 April 2008 to 28 February
2010. Mr. Huang has built and developed multiple companies
in London, San Francisco, Tokyo and Hong Kong in the past
years. Prior to joining the Group in 2005, he was a seasoned
entrepreneur in different industries, including publishing,
education, telecom and information technology. He holds
double degrees in Business Operation Management and
Management Information System from Boston University,
USA.

Mr. Huang is actively engaged in social entrepreneurship
with a view to bridging social needs through innovation and
information technology. He is currently President of Hong
Kong Information Technology Federation (HKITF), one of the
largest and respected ICT association of Hong Kong, Deputy
Chairman of Junior Achievement Hong Kong, dedicated to
inspiring and preparing young leaders to succeed in a global
economy thru entrepreneurship and the founding CEO of
WebOrganic, a social enterprise under HK Council of Social
Services designed to help 200,000 deprived students for
digital inclusion and Elearning. Mr. Huang co-founded 18
years ago and current serve as Vice Chair “Senior Citizen
Home Safety Association’, UN award winning non-
governmental organisation (NGO) in Asia, to provide safety
bell emergency call service for elderlies in the community
through the use of technology, people-oriented services, and
innovative methods. Erwin also chair the elLearning
Consortium, which is instrumental in driving Hong Kong's
elLearning initiative in education reform. In 2011, he was
elected into the Election Committee Member (Information
Technology) for the Legislative Council and Chief Executive
of HKSAR.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HITES

Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence, aged 48,
is the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary of
the Group. He is responsible
for the overall finance and
administration of the Group.
Mr. Lai graduated from The
University of Hong Kong and
holds a Bachelor's degree
in Social Sciences. He also
holds a Master's degree in
Business Administration from
The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom. Before joining
the Group in 2001, he had over
10 years of experience in a listed
company in Hong Kong and an
international accounting firm.
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NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR
FATES

Wang Guosheng, aged 35, has been
a Non-executive Director of the Company
since 23 July 2012. Mr. Wang is currently
an executive director in the private
equity team of CDH group and was a
director of CDH King Limited, which
has substantial interests in the convertibles
bonds in an aggregate amount of
HK$250,000,000 of the Company. He
holds a Bachelor degree in Economics
from University of International
Business and Economics in Mainland
China and a master degree in
Business Administration from INSEAD
in France. Mr. Wang has over 12
years of experiences in accounting
and financial sector. Prior to joining
CDH group in 2005, he worked for
other companies including KPMG,
China International Capital Corporation
and IDG Venture Capital. Mr. Wang is
a director of Luxi Group Co., Ltd. and
a number of other private companies.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR _
BYFHAITES

Chui Chi Yun, Robert, aged 57, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company since 12 April 1999. Mr. Chui
is a practising Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor's degree
in Commerce (Major in Accounting) and
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. Mr. Chui is also an independent
non-executive director of each of National
Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(Stock Code: 8228), Wing Lee Property
Investments Limited (Stock Code: 864) and
was an independent non-executive director of
21 Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1003), all of
which are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. He is currently the
Commissioner of the Hong Kong Road Safety
Patrol and a member of the Road Safety
Campaign Committee of the Road Safety
Council. He is also a director of a number of
private companies and associations.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR _
BYFATES

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin, aged 49, has
been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since 30 November 2008.
Mr. Heng is the Managing Partner and
Responsible Officer of Springboard Capital
Limited (formerly “Jades Capital Management
Limited"). He was a Managing Director of The
Royal Bank of Scotland, Hong Kong and a
director of HSBC Securities (Asia) Limited and
various financial institutions. He has extensive
banking experience specializing in equity
derivatives and investment products. He has
held senior positions in several major private
financial institutions in Hong Kong and had
been registered with the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority as Executive Officer and the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission as
Responsible Officer carrying out various
regulated activities. Mr. Heng holds a Master
degree of Arts in Mathematics &
Management Studies from the University of
Cambridge, England. He is a fellow member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, and a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in Hong Kong. He is also a
director of a number of private companies.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR _
BYFHATES

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 62, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 25 August 2010. Mr. Chan is
currently the Chairman and Non-executive Director of Café de Coral
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 341), the Non-executive Director of Tao
Heung Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 573) and the Independent Non-
executive Director of each of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1888), Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1382) and Starlite Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 403), all of which are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He has worked
as a professional town planner with government bodies in Hong Kong
and Canada. He holds a double major degree in Sociology and Palitical
Science, a Master degree in City Planning from the University of
Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate degree in Business
Administration, as well as being bestowed the Honorary Fellow from
Lingnan University. He is also a member of the Political Consultative
Committee of Nanshan District, Shenzhen in the People's Republic of
China. Mr. Chan has many years of professional experience in the
public sector and over 25 years of management experience in the food
and catering industry. He is an Executive Committee Member of the
Hong Kong Retail Management Association, the General Committee
Member of the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, the Adviser of the
Quality Tourism Services Association, a Governor of the Canadian
Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong, the Honorary Chairman of the
Hong Kong Institute of Marketing, and the Chairman of the Business
Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong Kong Management
Association. In the public sector, Mr. Chan is appointed by the
Government of the HKSAR as member of the Business Facilitation
Advisory Committee.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR _
BYFATES

Chow Chee Wai, Christopher, aged 47, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since 1 March 2013. Mr. Chow is the Founding
Partner of TCC Capital, an advisory and private
equity fund management company. He holds a
Diploma of Investment and Finance from The
Securities Institute of Australia, a Bachelor of
Economics degree from The University of Sydney
and is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow
has over 20 years' experience in auditing and merger
and acquisition advisory. Prior to founding TCC
Capital, he worked for two of the “Big Four”
international accounting firms in Sydney, Hong Kong
and Beijing and was the Partner in charge of the
mergers and acquisitions practice. He possesses in-
depth understanding of financial and capital markets
and has built up substantial experience in advising
multinational companies, state owned enterprises
and private companies in Hong Kong and Mainland
China on a number of direct investments, and
mergers and acquisitions transactions.
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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER — SUPPLIES
BIITHARE - EmIE

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, aged 46, is
the Group's Deputy Chief Executive
Officer — Supplies. He is responsible for
strengthening the capability of the Group's
merchandising and supplies function as
well as meeting the business units’
merchandising needs. Mr. Tse joined the
Group after returning from the U.S. in 1994,
He was the Chairman of the Group from
2000 to 2008 and was, during that time,
responsible for the Group's overall strategy
and business development. He re-joined
the Group in September 2011. Mr. Tse
graduated from Boston University and
holds a Bachelor of Science (Business
Administration) degree, Bachelor of Science
(Mathematics) degree, and Master of
Arts (Mathematics) degree. He is a
director of Partner Logistics Limited and
Blink Technology Limited which have
discloseable interests in the Company
under provisions of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. He is the son of Mr. Tse
Sui Luen, the Founder of the Group, the
spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Group, and is the controlling
shareholder of the Group.
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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER — COMMERCIAL
BITHARE - X755

Chan Lap Yip, Lambert, aged 48, is the
Group's Deputy Chief Executive Officer —
Commercial. He is responsible for the
Group's corporate planning, brand and
product management, group marketing,
corporate communications and new
business development. Prior to joining the
Group in March 2010, Mr. Chan had over
28-year proven track record in sales and
marketing. He has extensive experience in
strategic planning, branding and business
development across a diverse range of
industries. He has held executive positions
in premier corporations including DBS Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited, The Hong Kong
Tourism Board and Hong Kong Telecom.
Mr. Chan graduated from The University of
Toronto in 1986 and holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree. He has furthered his studies at
a number of well-renowned academic
institutions including INSEAD in France,
Tsinghua University in China and Hong
Kong Baptist University. He is also a senior
member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing.
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CHIEF TALENT OFFICER
ADERBE

Chan Oi Lai, Brenda, aged 55, is the Group's
Chief Talent Officer. She is responsible for
the Human Resources and training function
of the Group. She has extensive experience
in staffing, compensations & benefits,
employee engagement, organisation
development and change management.
Before joining the Group in August 2011,
she has held senior positions in different
reputable corporations including The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited, The Hong Kong
Tourism Board, Standard Chartered Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited and Hong Kong Telecom.
Ms. Chan graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and holds a
Bachelor degree in Business Administration.
She also holds a Master degree in
Counseling, conferred by Monash
University in Australia.
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CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

TrEMEESE

TSL Academy
o 5 2 B

In its debut project, The
TSL | # #I% B Foundation
collaborated with the Schoo
of Modern Languages and
Cultures of The University of
Hong Kong to introduce the
“Creative Management in
Luxury Industry Programme
2013-2014" that aims at
nurturing future talents for the
luxury industry by inspiring
students to apply creativity in
the business arena. With the
support of Hong Kong's key
creative icons and business
leaders from various
industries as well as The
Group's senior management as
guest speakers, the
programme received an
overwhelming response from
students.

Create Valye
it Creativigy
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GoodBuy Cookies
[BRBLE BT

Vision, Mission and Value
BE FokEES

The Group collaborated with The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service
for the sales of the “GoodBuy Hong
Kong Cookies" to customers at the
distribution channel of the Group. The
sales received remarkable results.
The cookies with the greetings of
“Good Luck” and “Great Profit" were
made by two social enterprises,
namely, New Life and The Providence
Garden for Rehab. Presented in eye-
catching tins, the cookies came with
Hong Kong's iconic neon signage
designed by Hulu Culture (social
enterprise).

AEEERELERBBEETFAE - #H
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BEENREIERARROERE  TRET
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The Group has set up a Vision, Mission
and Value (“VMV") taskforce to promote
our five core values, namely, Caring &
Respect, Integrity, Quality Service,
Accountability and Long-term Thinking,
to boost the efficiency of its day-to-day
business and strengthen its “people”
personality.

Since its establishment, the VMV
taskforce has organized a number of in-
house activities for staff to promote the
five core values. During the year, the
Group partnered with T.W.G.Hs Jockey
Club Yee King Care and Attention Home
to organize visits with elderly people.

RE-—SEBEMOEAZLER SEBER
BE IFE BERYE REBHERRERE
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UNICEF Charity Run
BHEeBREESSAER

The Group gave support to UNICEF HK's
flagship annual fundraising event -
UNICEF Charity Run 2013, over 20 staff
participated in the event to support its
“Unite for children Unite against AIDS"
Global Campaign to combat mother-to-
child transmission of HIV/AIDS and to
achieve “Zero AIDS Generation”.

AEEXKBMANREESREEZEGEF —
ENEFEF BANZEESTEESNR
2013 - @20 % B TEERL8E - X UNICEF[ ##
FRAE BFRER| ZREHOEELRB
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AWARDS
R1H

Marketing Awards
15 R I >

The Hong Kong Management Association & Television Broadcast Limited
EREXERGe REREERRAA

HKMA/TVB Awards for Marketing Excellence 2013
HKMA/TVB # 1 T 35 5 822 2013

HKMA/TVB Awards for Marketing Excellence 2013 — Merit Award
2013 FE HKMA /TVB A& 5 5k 8l 42

Distinguished Marketing Leadership Award
B TI5RE A R

THE HONG XONG MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION
IK BAWARDS § %

ENCE 2013

HONG KONG MANAGEM ;
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Annual Report Awards

FHRIRIE
MerComm. Inc. @'

S
2013 Mercury Awards MERC UR *
2013 4 Mercury Awards
Annual Reports — Overall Presentation —

Accessories — Gold Award G})Z() "VUHIFI

FI - BRmE Rk - 2

Annual Reports — Cover Design — ’ '
Typographics/Words Only — Honors Award e .., griemahondl " /
95— HERE - PR/AT - BRE e y. .

2013 International ARC Awards
2013 £ International ARC Awards {
Interior Design: Retail: Jewelry — Silver Award

MERE — T — HE - 8%

2013 Galaxy Awards

2013 £ Galaxy Awards

Annual Reports — Overall Presentation —
Retail— Boutique & Specialty — Silver Award
FHR—BERE -TE - KoRkEX -RfHE

Service Awards

AR 75 2R 18

Hong Kong Tourism Board
BEREERR

HREBEBFRETRKR

Outstanding QTS Merchant & Service Staff Awards
2013 Outstanding QTS Merchant

(Jewellery & Watches) — Gold Award
2013 EBE R P GREER) — &2

@uum O S s
LLTT T T

2013 Outstanding QTS Merchant Service Staff
(Jewellery & Watches) — Silver Award
2013 EBERF B TR (GREER) — IR



THE ARTISANS

T [E B B

HEHEAK « T HHHBE IX <k R D R

Erwin Steve Huang
Deputy Chairman &
Chief Corporate Development Officer

EOFRON - B E S8 X i 2k

Liu Yui Cheong, Oscar
Director — Retail Marketing & Products

IR - < RIS

Chan Oi Lai, Brenda
Chief Talent Officer

HRRER - RIS - KBRS

Fung Suk Ming, Abby
Financial Controller — Group Finance

BB < e i 0 e

Law Yiu Tung, Denis
Director — Corporate Planning

MY - O RHR - W

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy
Deputy Chief Executive Officer —Supplies

B - X ORI

Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman &
Chief Executive Officer
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Wong Kai Tung, Dominic
Director — Sales & Operations (China Retail)

TSR - ik 5T e O 4 B R

Cheng Hung Piu, Belmon
Director — Group Product Planning & Trading

R« 4k S P R S

Jim Man Tin, Anthony
Director — Group Marketing & International Business

AREEHE « <RI el (£ )

Fong Siu Yi, Pamela
Director — Human Resources (PRC)

R - mR<

Tse Sui Luen
Founder

R « HIHEE R RS X T R M

Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

B - TR - IS

Chan Lap Yip, Lambert
Deputy Chief Executive Officer — Commercial

{eK ERGEE - K IO, O e

Yip Kwok Fai, Keith
Director — Group Merchandising & Sourcing




042

REPORT OF
THE DIRECTORS

EEEHREE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board") have pleasure in presenting
their annual report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
28 February 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

The analysis of the geographical locations of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 28 February 2014 and the states of the Company's
and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 104
to 221.

A final dividend of 7 HK cents per ordinary share (2013: 7 HK cents per ordinary share) ,
amounting to a total final dividend of approximately HK$14,724,000 (2013: HKS14,724,000)
for the year ended 28 February 2014 is to be proposed for shareholders' approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 24 July 2014
(the “2014 AGM"). This, together with the interim dividend of 2.2 HK cents per ordinary share
(2013: 1 HK cent per ordinary share) paid on Wednesday, 27 November 2013, will amount to
a total dividend of 9.2 HK cents per ordinary share for the year (2013: 8 HK cents per
ordinary share).

ARRER(BEE| X [EES ) MARER
E£20145F2 A28 B L FEMNFHRREERRE
B -

FTEXH

AARMIELBRIRERR - STBHE
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HisE16 -
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ANEEFHZE2014F2 A28 A ILFEEHNZEFIF
AATRAEERZ BT BACRE R S 104
E221 BRI BEHREA °

HZE2014F2A28H IEFERPREETRE
BRAEETIN(2013F : FREBRABNT
fil) - BN 4R EE 49 7% #5 14,724,000 70 (2013 4F ¢
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BREGRERTERAEI2ML(20134F :
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 21 July 2014 to
Thursday, 24 July 2014 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at
the 2014 AGM. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the 2014 AGM, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar (the “Branch Share Registrar”), Tricor Secretaries Limited
of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
(Hong Kong Time) on Friday, 18 July 2014.

Upon the approval by shareholders at the 2014 AGM, the proposed final dividend will be paid
on Thursday, 11 September 2014 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 1 August 2014. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 30 July 2014 to Friday, 1 August 2014 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be registered, for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final dividend. In order to be qualified
for the proposed final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. (Hong Kong Time) on Tuesday, 29 July 2014.

SHARE CAPITAL AND PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There were no movements in either the Company's authorised or issued share capital during
the year.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws in
Bermuda.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$350,000 (2013:
HK$360,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set
out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and note 32 to the financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 28 February 2014, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended),
amounted to approximately HK$802,352,000, which represented the contributed surplus
and retained profits of the Company, of which HK$14,724,000 has been proposed as a final
dividend for the year.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended), the contributed surplus of the
Company is available for distribution. However the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of this contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (i) the realisable value of its
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium.

In addition, the share premium with balance of approximately HK$123,365,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Details of the above are set out in note 32(b) to the financial statements.
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 28 February 2014, the five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
less than 30% of the Group's turnover. The five largest suppliers in aggregate and the largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 68.8% and 45.9% respectively by value of
the Group's total purchases.

As set out in note 38(a) to the financial statements, Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited, one of
the Group's five largest suppliers, is a subsidiary of Prime Investments S.A., which is a
preference shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited (the Company’'s immediate holding
company).

(G

AEBERARRNAFEARBBEDOFE
DRIFIN R R B m B B R R MR T
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Except for the above, at no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the directors, owns more than 5%
of the Company's issued share capital) had any interest (as defined in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”
and the “Listing Rules”, respectively)) in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Erwin Steve Huang (Deputy Chairman & Chief Corporate Development Officer)
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence (Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary)

Non-executive Director
Wang Guosheng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Chow Chee Wai, Christopher (appointed on 1 March 2013, retired and re-elected on 23 July 2013)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’'s Bye-Laws and to comply with the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Messrs. Erwin
Steve Huang and Chui Chi Yun, Robert will retire as directors at the 2014 AGM. Mr. Erwin
Steve Huang, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election as an Executive Director of the
Company for a term of three years and Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company for a term
of three years. All other Directors continue in office for the ensuing year.

Each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors has provided a written confirmation in
respect of the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules concerning his independence
to the Company. The Board considers each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2014 AGM has a service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 28 February 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive
and/or their respective associates of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “"SFQ")), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFQ), or which were required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"), were as follows:

(i) Interests and long positions in issued shares of the Company

EERBSITHRAEBRAR
B2 R4 - HEIRR D & &
mNERR AR

MN2014562 A28  RARIEERHE®ITH
ABR/SRBEEEEZEMBHEALTHRER
BIEFES R A EEOIEXVEFET R85 A
EARR A R BT (B IERIRIA - &GI8 B 15
NEBEZHHRTEEEINER RAR) KA
AR REE SN R (RS RS EE
XVE 2 EE) R, « MBI REEZ N ES
RKR - SAMRIR LA FI5RBI5E 352 (R E N A
ARBFEEZELM - KAERE ET AR
TANETESF R ZIZESTAI([ZAESFA )
AR R R E A FTH) AN D B e E A AT B
AR (LB H RS EOIEXVEZ £ )R
MR G REEEN R AR IT

(i) RAELINEBRITROzERZR
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

SREER0.25 THZER

Approximate

percentage

of total

Personal Family Corporate Short Other issued share

Name of Director interest interest interest interest interest capital®

EEBITRA

BN

EENE B ARz Eg 4 DRER KB H At R R

(i) Yau On Yee, Annie 100,000 = = = = 0.05%
B2

- 152,964,917 - - - 72.72%

(Note i)

(if) Erwin Steve Huang 100,000 = = = - 0.05%
EEK

(i) LaiTsz Mo, Lawrence 200,000 = = = = 0.10%
BFR

E The percentage was calculated based on 210,336,221 ordinary shares in issue as at 28 February 2014. * " 9tk B & R201462A8288 B % 17T

210,336,221 IR EBAREHH -



(ii)

Note:

162,960,917 ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and controlled by
Blink Technology Limited. Blink Technology Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy,
the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an Executive Director of the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Yau On Yee,
Annie is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

4,000 ordinary shares were bought in the Stock Exchange under the name of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy. By virtue
of the SFO, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.

Hiat -

1529609178 & i# AR J5 H Partner Logistics
Limited 35 + 3% R G HE 5 4 (BA R Al
TTEFHBLELLZHE) AT A2 Blink
Technology Limited # & R 1% #ll - 1R 1% &5 K A
B & A B X £ #% 4% (F#5 A & Partner
Logistics Limited #5 2 FT G R 17,2 #z5 -

4,000 % B BRI HE UL £ 2 ZHERB I
B o RIFFEZF RARIKG] - BLEXLBBEIER
BHBEESLLIFEZERD 2 #as

Interests in underlying shares of the Company (i) FAERDQEERERDIERS
As at 28 February 2014, the Directors had interests in option to subscribe for shares MR2014F2H28H ' EEHFHARE
of the Company as follows: RRAFRAD R BB T
Number of share options
BRENHE
As at Exercised As at Vesting/
Date of Grant 28 February  Granted during during 28 February Exercise Exercise Period
Name of Director (dd/mm/yyyy) 2013 the year the year 2014 price (dd/mm/yyyy)
RiAH BZ2013% HE20145 BBH/TEHE
EEpA (B/R/%) 2A288 RAFEERH REFET 2A28H fTEE% (B/B/%)
Yau On Yee, Annie 01/03/2013 = 1,210,000 = 1210000  HKS#%4.13 15%:01/09/2014 —
ik gt (NoteHisz) 29/02/2020
15%:01/03/2015 —
29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016 —
29/02/2020
40%: 01/03/2017 —
29/02/2020
Erwin Steve Huang —ditto AL - - 2,000,000 - 2000000  -ditto AL - —ditto £ -
%uﬂk
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence —ditto A £ - = 2,000,000 = 2000000  -ditto AL - —ditto A £ -
RFE
Note: B

The closing price of the Company's shares traded on the Stock Exchange on 1 March 2013 was HKS4.13, being
the date on which the relevant options were offered for grant.

ARARGIR2013F3A1H (BB BHERES
BRI T AR W E R ERE413
777 °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
EEEREE @

Other than as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2014, none of the Company'’s directors,
chief executive and their respective associates, had any other interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which required notification to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which any such director or chief executive is taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFQ); or which were required pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO to be entered into the register maintained by the Company; or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company or
the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 28 February 2014, the interests, all being long positions, of any substantial
shareholders or other persons (not being directors or chief executive of the Company) in the
shares and/or underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to the
Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and have
been recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

SREEBY0.25 THEBER
Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of total
Name Capacity share options ordinary shares issued share capital®
HEBTRALY
=0 a4 BREHE EERROHE BOEAL™
0) Partner Logistics Limited (Noteffz 1) Beneficial owner = 152,960,917 72.72%
EnBBA
(if) Blink Technology Limited (Note fit:# 1) Interest of controlled corporation - 152,960,917 72.72%
YA AR
(i) TseTat Fung, Tommy (Noteff:# 1) Interest of controlled corporation = 152,960,917 72.72%
Eilpeds et IVNGIL £
Interest of spouse 1,210,000 100,000 0.62%
[t
Beneficial owner 1,210,000 4,000 0.58%
BEREAA
(iv)  Prime Investments S.A. (Note it 2) Interest of controlled corporation - 152,960,917 72.72%
BB A AR
(v)  Rosy Blue Investments S.ar.l. (Notefifs#2)  Interest of controlled corporation = 152,960,917 72.72%
BN £
(vi)  Asiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited (Note 7 2) Interest of controlled corporation - 152,960,917 72.72%
REH A AR
(vii)  Viraj Russell Mehta (Note izt 2) Interest of controlled corporation = 152,960,917 72.72%
BN £
(viii)  CDH King Limited (Notes ff:# 3 & 4) Beneficial owner - 39,062,500 18.57%
EmEBA (Noteftfz#3)
(ix)  CDHFund IV, L.P. (Noteff:4) Interest of controlled corporation = 39,062,500 18.57%
BN £ (Notefis#3)
(x)  CDH IV Holdings Company Limited Interest of controlled corporation = 39,062,500 18.57%
(Noteffizt4) B VNGILE S (Noteftfz#3)
(xi)  China Diamond Holdings IV, L.P. Interest of controlled corporation = 39,062,500 18.57%
(Notefitst4) Rl UNGI - £ (Notefits#3)
(xii)  China Diamond Holdings Company Interest of controlled corporation = 39,062,500 18.57%
Limited (Note {7t 4) B VNGILE S (Noteftfz#3)

The percentage was calculated based on 210,336,221 ordinary shares in issue as at 28 February 2014

B 9 R KR R201452828H B B 17
210,336,221 R EBAREHE -
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Notes:

1.

162,960,917 ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and controlled by
Blink Technology Limited. Blink Technology Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy,
the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an Executive Director of the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Blink Technology
Limited, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (her deemed interest is disclosed under the section ‘Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company”) and Mr.
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy are deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

100,000 ordinary shares are held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie resulting from the exercise of share options on 10 July
2009. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Ms. Yau
On Yee, Annie.

1,210,000 share options are held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy is
deemed to be interested in all the share options held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie.

Another 1,210,000 share options are held by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy and the 4,000 ordinary shares were bought
in the Stock Exchange under his name.

These ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and controlled by Blink
Technology Limited. Prime Investments S.A. is the preference shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited. Prime
Investments S.A. is owned as to 99.83% by Rosy Blue Investments S.a.r.l, which in turn is wholly owned by Asiya
Trust Co. Pte. Limited, which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Viraj Russell Mehta. By virtue of the
SFO, each of Prime Investments S.A., Rosy Blue Investments S.a.r.l, Asiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited and Mr. Viraj
Russell Mehta, is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 31 March 2012 (the “Subscription Agreement’) entered into
between the Company and CDH King Limited (“CDH"), the Company has issued to CDH, a principal amount of
HKS250,000,000 five-year term convertible bonds (the “Tranche 1 Bonds”) on 20 April 2012 under which CDH
could convert the Tranche 1 Bonds into 39,062,500 ordinary shares of the Company with an initial conversion price
at HKS6.40 per share during the conversion period.

Subject to the full conversion of the Tranche 1 Bonds, the shareholding percentage of CDH in the enlarged share
capital of the Company would become 15.66% and of parties (i) to (vii) would change from 72.72% to 61.33%.
Details of which are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 31 March 2012 and note 26 to the financial
statements of this annual report.

CDH has filed a disclosure form to the Company on 19 December 2013 to notify its ceased interests in the Tranche
2 Bonds in an aggregate amount of HK$200,000,000, and therefore its interest in the share capital of the Company
was decreased from 32.80% to 18.57%.

CDH is wholly-owned by CDH Fund IV, L.P.,, which in turn is owned as to 0.07% by CDH |V Holdings Company
Limited, which in turn is owned as to 80% by China Diamond Holdings IV, L.P., which in turn is owned as to 1% by
China Diamond Holdings Company Limited.
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Other than as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2014, the Company had not been notified
of any persons who had interests or short positions in the shares and/or underlying shares
of the Company, which were required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS' INFORMATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.57B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of information on the Directors
are as follows:

= Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael ceased to be a member of the Hong Kong Tourism
Board on 1 November 2013.

Changes in directors’ emoluments during the financial year are set out in note 9 to the
financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the Company on
26 November 2003 (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2003 Share
Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants thereunder for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any entity in
which the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity").

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, at any time following the date of the adoption of the 2003 Share Option Scheme
but before the tenth anniversary of that date, to offer options to any person belonging to any
of the following classes of participants to subscribe for shares of the Company:

= any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including any executive
directors but not any non-executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

— any non-executive director (including independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

= any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

= any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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= any person or entity that provides research, development or technological support or
other services to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

= any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of
any securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the shares, the closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the grant and the average
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the grant. An offer of an option shall be deemed to have been
accepted within 28 days from the date of offer upon acceptance of the option duly signed by
the grantee together with a remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of securities
available for issue under the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company. The maximum entitlement of each grantee in any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the ordinary shares in issue of the Company. The option period will
not be more than ten years from the date of grant of the option and the Board may at its
discretion determine the minimum period for which the option has to be held or other
restriction before the exercise of the subscription right attaching thereon.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme was expired on 25 November 2013.
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As at the date of grant of options, the number of ordinary shares issuable under options REERRAER L 2 BH - 1RIR 2003 FREARRERT

granted to certain employees of the Group (three of them being the Directors) and other ERETETASERE (AT =2RESR)
participants pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme was 15,850,000 (represented REMBEALZBRERETZRHEE
approximately 7.54% of the then issued share capital of the Company). Two staffs of the /15,850,000 B& E AR ({5 A1 A & B B 31T
Company have resigned during the year and as a result 530,000 share options were lapsed. ARAKI7.54%) « RENARRIME S TRER -
The movements in the number of share options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme HUH # 590,000 iR BB AR HE B K 2K - B E 2014
during the year ended 28 February 2014 were as follows: F2A28HIEFER - 2003 F 5 R ERT 8 F7
DEEREEE 2 B#BNT
Number of share options
EREHA
Date of Outstanding
Total as at grant of Granted Exercised Lapsed as at Vesting/
Name or category 28 February share options during during during 28 February Exercise Exercise period
of participant 2013 (dd/mm/yyyy) the year the year the year 2014 price (dd/mm/yyyy)
H20135 AR H20145
28EAL 2P287 HHAH 2P5287 BB 1T
HRIREE me (R/B/%) AEERE REETE AEERY Eei 3 e (R/B/%)
Employees &
In aggregate = 01/03/2013 14,890,000 = (590,000) 14,300,000 HK##S413  15%:01/09/2014 —
(&3&h) (Noteffzz) 29/02/2020
15%:01/03/2015 —
29/02/2020
30%:01/03/2016 —
29/02/2020
40%:01/03/2017 —
29/02/2020
Sub-total /)&t - 14,890,000 - (5690,000) 14,300,000
Service providers iR FERT
In aggregate - 01/03/2013 960,000 - - 960,000 HKi##$4.13 15%:01/09/2014 —
(&) (Note 1) 29/02/2020
15%:01/03/2015 —
29/02/2020
30%:01/03/2016 —
29/02/2020
40%:01/03/2017 —
29/02/2020
Sub-total /JN&t - 960,000 - - 960,000
Total #2k - 15,850,000 - (590,000) 15,260,000
Note: Mzt
The closing price of the Company's shares traded on the Stock Exchange on 1 March 2013 was HKS4.13, being the date on ARARGR2013F3 5 1 H (BNEREREZ ZHHE)
which the relevant options were offered for grant. TEMERFTER1G .2 T 18 738 #:4.13 7T °

0518



054

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
EEEREE @

Details of share options granted to the Directors and the relevant movement(s) during the
year ended 28 February 2074 are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company” in this annual report.

Save as 15,850,000 share options were granted in which 590,000 share options were lapsed
during the year as disclosed above, no share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year ended 28 February 2014.

The fair value of options granted estimated in accordance with the Binomial valuation model
is disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

Details of the grant of options have been disclosed in the Company's announcement dated
1 March 2013 and note 31 to the financial statements in accordance with the Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Except for the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed hereunder, there was no connected transactions or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its holding company or subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director had a material interest or interest in competing business, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year and up to the
date of this report.
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As at 28 February 2014, (i) Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (“Mr. Tommy Tse"), the substantial
shareholder of the Company and the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (“Ms. Annie Yau"), the
Executive Director of the Company, was employed by a subsidiary of the Company as the
Deputy Chief Executive Officer-Supplies; and (i) Mr. Tse Sui Luen (“Mr. Tse Senior"), the
father of Mr. Tommy Tse and father-in-law of Ms. Annie Yau, was employed by a subsidiary
of the Company as the Founder (collectively, the “CCTs"). Details of the transactions have
been disclosed in the Company's announcements dated 30 August 2011 and 22 June 2012
and as set out in note 38(a)(vii) to the financial statements.

The Directors of the Company were aware that the Company had granted 800,000 and
1,210,000 share options to Mr. Tse Senior and Mr. Tommy Tse, respectively, with accounting
expenses amounting to HK$485,000 and HK$734,000 recognised in the Company's
statement of profit or loss respectively. Directors, based on the Company's lawyer's opinion
on Chapter 14A and Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, considered the accounting expenses for
the share options should not be included in determining the aggregate annual values of the
CCTs. Therefore, the aggregate annual values of CCTs have not exceeded the maximum
aggregate annual values disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 22 June 2012.

The Company's independent auditors, Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants (“EY")
were engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. EY
have issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
CCTs disclosed by the Group in accordance with Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the letter
issued by EY has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The CCTs above have been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive Directors who have
confirmed that the transactions had been entered into:

(@)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  onnormal commercial terms; and

(c) inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing the transactions on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 28 February 2014, which do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules are disclosed in note 38(a) to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company during the year ended 28 February 2014.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS
Details of the movements in convertible bonds of the Company during the year are set out in
note 26 to the financial statements.

Other than the share options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme as disclosed above and

the convertible bonds as disclosed in the financial statements, the Company had no other
outstanding convertible securities, options or similar rights as at 28 February 2014.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 28 February 2014 are set
out in note 25 to the financial statements.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 222 to 223 of the annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on pages 224 to 225 of the
annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme") under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees' relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$25,000.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement benefits schemes for all
qualifying employees in the People's Republic of China, Malaysia and Japan. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of
independent trustees.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year ended 28 February 2014 amounted to HK$9,170,000
representing contributions paid/payable by the Group to the schemes at the appropriate
rates set by the local government of the subsidiaries.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.
Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 59 to 101.

T FEMBHE

AEEANBEREMBREENEAEEE
BERIFERERRERHEZHIN N AFRE
222%F 2238 °

YES

AEENERYEFEHIINAFRE224%
2251 -

RKETE

REBRBEBCGR M RATE S EERDE
HE - RRBEAEEEIDERNHESR - 2
HEg MRS A ([RBRFTE]) - saf
S ER—EREHEIFBRAE - HBLH
SAAER - RifaEetE - BEMES
¥ /BRI IE B A A B 8 5% [ aT 8 1F
o MG ARER AL LR A 25,0007T

AEBIRRAAEFEARKME - FRAD
REAGERNERZEAEHRFRNKE
AENEEBYRASBENEE  YHBL
EEARARER -

REE2014F2 828R IEFE - NEE Mt

9,170,000 7T * WE LR G Ba=ERETA © It
T AN 5 B % & B B A 7R B it [ BT
ML R -

NRFRE

AR S B AAR A EEREE NS
ZARMEH  RRF —EEH ETR AT
B2 ARHBE -

EER
ARTRNRBEELREAER - 5H

AARMFRMZEEERERZEN BN
FHOEI0NBZBEEREEA °

057



058

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
EEEREE @

AUDIT, REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEES

Information on the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report of the annual report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 28 February 2014
have been audited by EY. EY were appointed as the independent auditors of the Company
on 23 July 2013 to fill the vacancy following the retirement of RSM Nelson Wheeler, Certified
Public Accountants. The term of office of EY will expire upon the forthcoming annual general
meeting. EY will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of EY as independent auditors of the Company is to be proposed at
the 2014 AGM.

By Order of the Board
Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 May 2014
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
REPORT

TERELARS

The Company is committed to the establishment of good governance practices and
procedures. During the year ended 28 February 2014, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with all of the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”,
respectively), except for the deviation of code provisions A.2.1, A.5.6 and A.6.7 of the CG
Code as expressly set forth under the relevant paragraph of the table below.

The board of directors (the “Directors” or “Board”) is pleased to present the following
corporate governance practices of the CG Code adopted by the Group during the year ended
28 February 2014:

A. DIRECTORS

A.1 The Board
Code Principle
The board should assume responsibility for its leadership and control of the
company; and be responsible for promoting the success of the company by
directing and supervising the company's affairs.
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FENE R E =EHE adopted by the Group
<P AR ST REERMNEEERER

A.1.1 | The board should hold at least four board Yes Four Board Meetings were held during the year.
meetings a year.

ESeRGFARZIIRESEEE - = FEEEARNRESSEE -

A.1.2 | All directors are given an opportunity to Yes Agenda for regular Board Meetings are sent to all Directors
include matters in the agenda for regular in advance and they are given opportunity to include
board meetings. matters in the agenda for discussion in the Board Meetings.
2RESLAREREIAESTEERSHARE 2 PRESNTHSHINFTLEZESTSHE  UEKSIAMEMRE
HEIH © B ARESSEHE L® -
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SF RIS E =ERE adopted by the Group
<F RIS REEFRMHEEEAER

A.1.3 | Atleast 14 days' notice be given of a regular Yes Timetable for regular Board Meetings are scheduled well in

board meeting. advance to facilitate and maximize the attendance and
participation of the Directors whilst reasonable notices are
given for all other Board Meetings.

BREFETEHGREELED 14 KB - = ERTEFEEHERNKRER  URERRSEFHEXRRS N
BE MAEHMEESERHSHE TAERM -

A1.4 | Minutes of board meetings and board Yes All minutes of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings
committee meetings should be kept by a duly and/or written resolutions are kept by the company
appointed secretary of the meeting and open secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) or the
for inspection. secretary of the board committee and they are open for

inspection upon reasonable request by any Director.
KREAZENSBINERBTFESGRETEZER 2 FEEEEREZECEHRLHBR /RETMREAAAARAIME
WEFELE  WARGME RS - ((ARMEXEZEENEET WEAMNERFHHEEERTA
FEMERLHHEERN -

A1.5 | Minutes of board meetings and board Yes Minutes of the Board Meetings and the Committee
committee meetings should record sufficient Meetings have been recorded in sufficient details in respect
details, concerns raised and dissenting of the matters considered by the Directors and decisions
views. Draft and final versions of minutes reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors or
should be sent to all directors for comment dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of
and records within a reasonable time. minutes were sent to all Directors for comments and

records within a reasonable time.
EFEERAETZEENERLRETHRENF P SERREECERNERLH ERSAMALIBESESZNE
5 BEMRENREXRAER - GHLENY BEHEREBHRE  AREFRONEMRESIRENRHE
REGRKERERZR2BES  UIHEFRNESER R @RLHENTRRRRERENGERHAZRXLEES - A
HARES R R4 - HEERES R R -

A.1.6 | Agreed procedure for directors to seek Yes There are procedures to enable the Directors, upon
independent professional advice at reasonable request, to seek independent professional
company's expense. advice at the Company's expense.

EFAARTEREF  FEFERBUEXER - z2 EHFIIEFEEFRABER  BCRBYEXER - EHERALR
EHREBERBAARIN - ARIZT ©




Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices

SF ARSI E =ERE adopted by the Group
<FBIERSZ REBRMNEEERER
A1.7 | If a substantial shareholder/director has a Yes If a substantial shareholder/Director has a conflict of
conflict of interest in a material matter, board interest in a material matter, such matter would not be dealt
meeting should be held. with by way of circulation of resolution or by a Committee

but a Board Meeting would be held, during which such
Director must abstain from voting and not be counted in
quorum.

Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction would be present at such Board
Meeting.

An independent Board Committee will be set up to deal with
matter when necessary.

EATERR EEEEAFTEFANGZER A b= EEXERR EREEFSHTERNEERFEEANFRE

BEHENEFSEH FRIE - R ERAFETEUEMARRIAREXRHESTZEGRE
MERZERCREFS SR MAEFRNE ERERRRTFHE
EEEANBA -
ERGPWEEAN RN BLIFNTEFTEZLFEREFTSEH -
REENBEN BV ESLZEgRERMER -

A.1.8 | The company should arrange appropriate Yes The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
insurance cover in respect of legal action respect of legal action against the Directors and it is
against the directors. renewed annually.

NEESREESFA LS EHAERTHEEE VIR =2 AARBREFFAREHUNERTHRHEEERE - UNEFE
REHE R e

During the year ended 28 February 2014, the full Board held 4 meetings and the REBE2014F2A28BILFE &

details of Directors' attendance are disclosed in the section “Attendance Record at EEEERANAREBESTSS;

Meetings” in this report. EESTHETHAINEARE (&

HERCER ] —f e
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
TEEREKE @

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive
Code Principle

There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the management of the
board and the day-to-day management of the company’s business to ensure a

balance of power and authority.

A2 TERITHAR
FRIRE

EFENELEERAAEBNA
REERERBERS  NEREDM
RED M -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SF ARSI E 2ERE adopted by the Group
<P R 32 AEBRMNEEERER

A2.1 | Separate roles of chairman and chief Deviation The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
executive should be clearly established and the Company were not separated and were performed by
set out in writing. the same individual, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie. The Board

considered that the current management structure had
operated efficiently. According to the Company's practice,
all major strategic decisions are taken by the Board, or
relevant committee of the Board, as duly constituted.
IRETREZNACEERS - BBZRAELIA (k3 ARREFETHARNACRARD MR ZBELLEE &
EMEHIH - BRARREEBRBABENE - ARRZEBREMEE
EREDREFEREAEARZEFTSHRZES(EL -

A.2.2 | The chairman should ensure that all directors Yes The Chairman accepts the responsibility to ensure that
are properly briefed on issues arising at major issues of the Company are addressed by the Board,
board meetings. and that these issues are presented in a manner which

facilitates thorough discussion and resolution and all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board
Meetings.
TRERREFESR LAAESFHEE MBER b= TREAERERME  UBRRARAEIEZEFTHHEFTSRE  AZSSF
HEIH © HREEZANRMORBRZANIRE NMEFESRLLMAES
HEEMNBERNEE -

A2.3 | The chairman should ensure directors to Yes The Chairman, assisted by other senior executives, ensures
receive, in a timely manner, adequate that the Directors could receive, in a timely manner,
information. adequate information which must be accurate, clear,

complete and reliable.
TREERERESRFKRITHHEM 2 IFEEHMSRITERAEGH TERESEREKIIFTONE ©
BB A INNAEREEU R RIS o




Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SF ARSI E =ERE adopted by the Group
<F AR 3T REBFRMNEEERER

A2.4 | The chairman should be responsible for Yes The Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary, draws
drawing up and approving the agenda for up and approves the agenda for each Board Meeting.
each board meeting.

ITREEEEEEYHABRESTEERNHRE - b= IFERARNEBY TEECALHESREETSSHNHRE °

A25 | The chairman should take primary Yes The Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary, takes
responsibility for ensuring that good the primary lead the discussion of corporate governance
corporate governance practices and matters in Board Meetings and the compliance of the code
procedures are established. provisions.

FBRAXEZEERML  BAAAGERFNEEESR = ITRERAMENBY TREFEEE Lo|ERNERERFTEK
B RIZR o TELR BT <P AR ©

A.2.6 | The chairman should encourage all directors Yes All Directors have made full and active contribution to the
to make a full and active contribution to the affairs of the Board and the Board has acted in the best
board's affairs and take the lead to ensure interests of the Group and its shareholders. During Board
that it acts in the best interests of the Meetings or via other communication means, the Directors
company. are encouraged to express their view and concern, with

sufficient time for discussion.
The chairman should encourage directors
with different views to voice their concerns,
allow sufficient time for discussion of issues
and ensure that board decisions fairly reflect
board consensus.
FRSBMEEEENRAESTSER  WUH 2 2BEFHENRAEZTEEBUARNEE RERROFKEF =TT
’FE‘J BREZSTENARARKENS - F REFFTERNABREMHINERN  EFHRSKBHRER
AEEEFNEEREERRE TR ARER
FRSEHTNAZENESRELASEINE
H GTELFEARFHENG URBREEE
HREREN ERMEBREH)HH -

A.2.7 | The chairman should at least annually hold Yes During the year, the Chairman had held one separate
meetings with the non-executive directors meeting with all the Non-executive Director and
(including independent non-executive Independent Non-executive Directors without the Executive
directors) without the executive directors Directors present.
present.

ITRERELEFEFENTES (BEBLENTE = FR - EFEFRTEETRBULFRTEFTRT T —RRBRTE

BRI RLERTERHENE °

EHENEE
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Summary of Code Provisions
SF R R ST

Compliance

= PAN
;El;r:?‘lﬂ

SFRIRSC

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRMNECEERER

A2.8

The chairman should ensure that appropriate
steps are taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and their
views are communicated to the board as a
whole.

T EERERRIVEER SRR EBRA M E - A
RERBRREE AN EEEES -

Yes

Ao

The Company establishes different communication
channels with shareholders and investors, including (i)
printed copies of corporate communications (including but
not limited to annual reports, interim reports, notices of
meetings, circulars and proxy forms) required under the
Listing Rules; (ii) the annual general meeting provides a
forum for shareholders to raise comments and exchange
views with the Board; (iii) the Company's website offers a
communication channel between the Company and its
shareholders and stakeholders; (iv) regular press
conferences and briefing meetings with analysts are
arranged from time to time to update interested parties on
the performance of the Group; and (v) the Company's
branch share registrar (the “Branch Share Registrar”) deals
with shareholders for share registration and related
matters.

ARRIHEER R EE R ARABHRE : ()R EMRRARE -
FERARBEM (AP EEETRNER  hHRE  e28E  BX
RARZERK) EIRIA : ()BRANBREFAG LERER
HEESTHRER (i) ANRABEARRRFNEREEARRE
BZEE (VARRTEBRAFFHERERRESMEBHRERE
AALREASERNEEER RV ARRZBRMBFPELD LR
REREE—VROECLRABEEE °

A2.9

The chairman should promote a culture of
openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of non-executive
directors in particular.

TEEREEBAR  HWEHwmOXE  REES(F
RN TES) HESSEHARER -

Yes

Ho

The Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors are encouraged to express their view during Board
Meetings and the Board as a whole has constructive
relations.

FRTERRBIUNFATEFONHBDRNEETEEH
R MEREFHEAZRIENRR -




A.3 Board composition

Code Principle

The board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the company's business and should include a
balanced composition of executive and non-executive directors so that independent

judgement can effectively be exercised.

A3 ESEHAMK

FAIFAY
EEEgRBEATNEEMAMEE
Frdieae KR RZEHBEH NS
B-BREERRTEFEIENTE
ENEAEZRITHE RS
BRI B HIE

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
F RIS E 2E/RE adopted by the Group
<F RIS REBRMNEEERER
A3.1 Identify independent non-executive directors Yes The Independent Non-executive Directors are expressly
in all corporate communications. identified in all corporate communications of the Company
that disclose the names of the Directors.
FiERRIBAT - EZH B IERTEE LIS © b ARRIBERBESHENARBAT - HRBHBELIENTE
BZ2HED
A.3.2 | The company should maintain on its website Yes The Company maintains on its website and the Stock
and on the Stock Exchange's website an Exchange's website a list of Directors. Meanwhile, an
updated list of directors identifying their role updated profile of the Directors and senior management
and function and whether they are identifying their role and function has also been posted on
independent non-executive directors. its website. The updated profile includes the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company.
N B ETE LA R B A2 P A Ut | 21 AR T Y = RRBFER 2 Bk R R R FEFEKNERE - EER -
EFENERE  WIAHAEBE - UKIH RRABWUHEREZTNEETREREEASMIT - LIAEAET
HREABYIFNITES - BAE - RFTNBN BIEBUIENTES -

The Directors who served the Board during the year ended 28 February 2014 and up

to the date of this report are named as follows:

Executive Directors:

Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Erwin Steve Huang (Deputy Chairman & Chief Corporate Development Officer)
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence (Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary)

Non-executive Director:
Wang Guosheng

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Chow Chee Wai, Christopher (appointed on 1 March 2013, retired and re-elected on 23 July 2013)

REE2014F2 8288 I FE RE
EAREOHRARESSE2ES
m :

HITES:

B R (R RATHR AR
BHEKEIERRLLHRER)
BRI (BRUpBesERARRE)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

TEEREKE @

Each Director has been appointed on the strength of his/her calibre, experience and
stature, and his/her potential to contribute to the proper guidance of the Group and
its businesses. Apart from formal meetings, matters requiring Board approval were
arranged by means of circulation of written resolutions.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
members of the Board and between the Chairman and the Chief Executive.

A.4 Appointments, re-election and removal
Code Principle

There should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors and plans in place of orderly succession for
appointments. All directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals.

BREFHRETH LR
7 AREF S AEENEE B
SIREBHEHNERMERE -
BREXEHN AEFIHENS
HAAEBEmRZE S ERRE -

BEEERE LR ERRITHAR
Z BB - %55 KRB A
B R, HARIRER -

A4 ZE - BENE
FAIRA
ErgRtEER  EREZEL
BEREZHESERERF  LE
REAKFZESRETE B
BEEYEESRETRMETENE

2o

2o
Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
F BRI E _E/RE adopted by the Group

<F AR REBRMANECEERER
A4 Non-executive directors should be appointed Yes All Non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
for a specific term, subject to re-election. term of three years, subject to rotation and re-election

pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company.
FNTESNEEEAREES W AEZEHME = FEFNTESNEEOFREEH  THRA=F  WAREBAR

RIZARBRR R RESRERENES -




Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SF ARSI E =ERE adopted by the Group
<F AR 3T REBFRMNEEERER

A.4.2 | Alldirectors appointed to fill casual vacancies Yes Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Company, all Directors
should be subject to election at the first appointed to fill casual vacancy would be subject to
general meeting after their appointment. re-election at the next following general meeting.

All directors are subject to retirement by Pursuant to Bye-law 87(2) of the Company and the CG
rotation at least once every three years. Code, every Director shall retire by rotation at least once
every three years and are subject to re-election.
FBEREMERERMREEEINESTRERZZME b= BIEARR B Z A RIHARIE 86(2) 52 A TE - PT7E A BRI 25 R M 4%
BEERERAS LERREVER - ZENEFTEETRARRAS HEISMES -
FEEEEHmRE  ELF=F—K- BIEARRBZ ARIMAAIE 872 R EEEATRZRE BRESE
AEVH=F—RHESR  WAKEEEFE -

A4.3 | Further appointment of independent Yes Further appointment of Independent Non-executive Director

non-executive director who has served more who has served more than nine years was subject to a
than 9 years should be subject to a separate separate resolution approved by the Shareholders during
resolution to be approved by shareholders. the annual general meeting of the Company. The Board has
The papers to shareholders accompanying listed out in the circular to shareholders the resolution and
the resolution should include the reasons the the reasons they believed such Independent Non-executive
board believes the individual is still Director still independent and should be re-elected.
independent and should be re-elected.
REBZEIEETEBNFNBLERNTES & = RRBRBFEFAE EUBORBEREABARREZBBELE
NEIORZ R A AR R TR EG - BEHZAZEER BEEBBNFNBYIFNTES - EFSRBURTBHA MRS
—RABELREROXM4H - EREEFTERARBR/Z AR AZ BB L IFRTEFNEBLALTNIES - U RMME
BANLMEBLA LT REREEENRE - MEEZEREFNRA -

All of the Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the
Company's Bye-Laws. At the annual general meeting held on 23 July 2013 (the
‘2013 AGM"), Mr. Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence retired by rotation as a Director and was re-
elected as Executive Director for a term of three years, Mr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael retired by rotation as Director and was re-elected as Independent Non-
executive Director for a term of three years. Mr. Chow Chi Wai, Christopher hold
office as a Director until the 2013 AGM and was re-elected as Independent Non-
executive Director for a term of three years.

FEES BEBIFNTESE
BRRAQNRZARHARBRRERE
WESRRIBERER - R2013F7
A23BRTZRABAFAE (12013
FREBFRAG)) L FFRFH
FEBBEER WESERAWNITE
T AH=F; EERRKEERE
ER WESERBIIENTES
EH=F -EFZARBLERES
013FRRBAFAG  WESER
BUINTES - (EH=F -
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The Board has received from each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors EEQERENEBIERNTES
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing S ERBEMMAES 181!’;&1’5&2
Rules and the Board considers each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors FEBULENERE - EEERA

to be independent.

W& B FEITE R BB \"} °

A.5 Nomination Committee ASIREZEE
The nomination committee should give adequate consideration to the principles REZEGRITEBER  ExHZE
under A.3 — board composition, and A.4 — appointments, re-election and removal of BA3 -~ EESHEKRKAL — T

directors when carrying out its responsibilities.

MErEEZRA -

FEAEBEMELE

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SF ARSI E BRFE adopted by the Group
<F RIS AEBRMNEEERER

A5.1 | The company should establish a nomination Yes The nomination committee of the Company (the
committee which is chaired by the chairman “Nomination Committee”) was established on 30 March
of the board or an independent non-executive 2012. It comprises three members, Mr. Chan Yue Kwong,
director and comprises a majority of Michael and Mr. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin, the
independent non-executive directors. Independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Yau On Yee,

Annie, the Executive Director. Mr. Chan is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.
VREEE®  HEFFEFIBULIEN 2 ARAREBEEZEER(REEE] ) N2012F3A30B KL - A
ﬁ§$?ﬁ§{{$}* F REEABYFRTEFEHARS ZEGH=-FKEMER  BEBUFNITESTRM L TEMEIER
B FERPTERNZHELL - REERREZEESEE -

A5.2 | The nomination committee should be Yes The role and authority of the Nomination Committee,
established with specific written terms of including those set out in Code provision A.5.2 of the CG
reference which deal clearly with its authority Code, are clearly set out in its terms of reference and in
and duties. compliance with the provisions set out in the CG Code.

AREEHARELZESABNBESE - B2 P REZBEEZABREN  BREAEEARTRIFT ZFRIKCAL2 &

FrEE - BRENNEBEEEAN LT A REERTRIRATHE &
3o
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SF ARSI E =ERE adopted by the Group
<F AR 3T REBFRMNEEERER

A5.3 | The nomination committee should make Yes The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available its terms of reference explaining its available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
role and the authority delegated to it by the Company.
board by including them on the Stock
Exchange's website and the company's
website.

REEZESREMZIARATM FRAREBESR = REZERRBHESNB R RAR R -
REEABUREFSERTHNES

A.5.4 | The company should provide the nomination Yes The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
committee sufficient resources to perform resources, including the advice of professional firms, to
its duties. Where necessary, the nomination discharge its duties, if necessary.
committee should seek independent
professional advice, at the company’s
expense, to perform its responsibilities.

AEEAREEZEEREZTRERUBITHRE - P RELZEGRREHARER  BRE(WARE)ERZXER  UE
REZEERTRERNEFE  BSRBULEX THEME-
BR  BRAARAXA -

A5.5 | The board should set out in the circular to Yes The Board has listed out in the circular to shareholders the
shareholders the reasons they believe the reasons they believed such Independent Non-executive
independent non-executive director should Directors should be elected and the reasons they
be elected at the general meeting and the considered such Independent Non-executive Directors were
reasons they consider the individual to be independent.
independent.

BEg N BB R AR R BMITRRZEE = BEEFNRRBEHAMARRFIBMMRRZEBILIENTEREE

THFBITERRNRRAS HRENIEH - AR
FIRBZEANLTBELALTHRR °

ERIRE - URMPIRAZBBILIFNTEEBBLALNREA -
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SF RIS E =ERE adopted by the Group
PRI ST AEBRMNECEERER
A.5.6 | The nomination committee (or the board) Deviation The Nomination Committee has discussed on the

should have a policy concerning diversity of requirements of the amendment and how a board diversity

board members, and should disclose the policy should be adopted on 24 May 2013 and 28 February

policy or a summary of the policy in the 2014 respectively.

corporate governance report.
Subsequent to the year end, on the recommmendation of the
Nomination Committee, the Board approved the revised
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee to
incorporate the elements of Board Diversity in a policy on
21 May 2014. Thus, the Board Diversity Policy was adopted
in May 2014 and this policy is available on the website of
the Company.

RELZEG(REFQ)EIASIRESEREZ T Bk REZBEHRIN2013F 58248 K% 2014F2 280  BAME

ERBER - WNERERRE NREHBER LR FEXEZTTCBRREERZERT - REFRMZ AL W

REAMBEER  KREEZEEEE  EFTN2014565721 Bt
HETTREEE SV BESEUMAESTEXNEZ TIENBERZTT
£ o M EE SR B ZITLEREN 2014 4F 5 AR - AEABCEA
BEARARMEE -

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board; the recommendation to the Board all

appointments and re-election of Directors.

The Nomination Committee met twice during the year ended 28 February 2014 and
the committee members’ attendance records are disclosed in the section

‘Attendance Record at Meetings” in this report.

REZREIEREBERIES
BHORE SRR  EHRER
ENEREFAEFEGRIER -

REBE2014F2A28BILFEE ' #
LZLEEUERAMAEE §Z8
H RSN AR S [EA R
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The Nomination Committee has considered and consulted the Chairman of the

Board the following proposals during the year ended 28 February 2014:

(a) review on the structure of the Board of Directors of the Group;

(b) review on Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee;

(c) assessment of the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;

(d) identification of the suitability of the Directors to be re-elected; and

(e) discussion on the necessity for adopting a board diversity policy.

REZE2014F2H28HILFE @ 12
ELEEERRANEESEREN
TR

(a) TBHEAEKEMNEZSLEE

(b) FHIREZEGHBEERE

(c) FFEBLIFMTEFHBUIE :

(e IHEMEBEGZ LILBKZ

A.6 Responsibilities of Directors A6 EEET
Code Principle FEIRE
Every director must always know his responsibilities as a director of a company and BRESARABEREERARAE
its conduct, business activities and development. ENBE - URZAFHEEFA
EBEHRER -
Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
<F AR ST =2ERE adopted by the Group
<F AR AEBERMWEEERER
A6.1 Every newly appointed director should Yes A tailored induction would be provided to familiarize the
receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored newly appointed Director with the Company's business
induction on appointment. Subsequently he operations and financial positions, his responsibilities under
should receive any briefing and professional statute and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal
development as necessary. and other regulatory requirements.
From time to time, the newly appointed Director together
with other Directors would receive briefing and professional
development.
BEFZENEFHEEIZARESZ2E - EX = MEANZEFIRRBERAEMBAORERL - ARBEARARELE

FEFREMBREFERA - ERTEESHFON
BRERER -

BRMBEIRR - ARBRBOER R ERE - EmRA - BRER
HREREMEERTE THRE o

HEENESEREMESTRESHNREERER -
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SF RIS E =ERE adopted by the Group
PRI ST AEBRMNECEERER
A6.2 | The functions of non-executive directors Yes The Independent Non-executive Directors brought

should include those as set out in the Code independent judgments during their participation of Board

Provision A.6.2 of the CG Code. Meetings and gave advice on strategy and future plans of
the Group.
The Independent Non-executive Directors reviewed the
financial statements and operational performance of the
Group on a regular basis.
The Independent Non-executive Directors also served on
audit, remuneration, nomination and other governance
committees of the Board.

FHRITEENRAERBIEEEE R TR ZFRIGX P BYUFRTESEEFT ST LA AKE ORI 8 R ARRER T

FA6.2 IKFTEAL medB L R#ER
BYFATESTENEHAEENTHERNREERS -
BUFHTEFRALEEREES FHEES REZEER
HtEREERES -

A.6.3 | Every director should give sufficient time and Yes Satisfactory attendance at the Board Meetings and other

attention to the company'’s affairs. Committee Meetings was shown in “Attendance Record at
Meetings"” section in this report.
The Directors have contributed sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Group.

BRERRENM RS R AR IR A B ET o b= EXZgRAMZERGHRIHEXRCARE YHNEARE (&3
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Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
REBFRMNEEERER

Ab.4

The board should establish written guidelines
no less exacting than the Model Code for
relevant employees in respect of their
dealings in the company's securities.

EREERMEHMEREEARNESFEEREEEE
3l HESINAREZ T (R AESTRDR R -

Yes

Ao

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 (the “Model Code") to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions.

Specific enquiry has been made with all Directors and the
Directors have confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended
28 February 2014.

Meanwhile, the Company has another written guideline no
less exacting than the Model Code for all the employees.

In addition to the requirements set out in the Company’s
code of conduct, the Company Secretary regularly writes to
executive management and other relevant employees who
are privy to inside information, as reminders of their
responsibility to comply with the provisions of the Model
Code and keep the matter confidential until announced.
They are also specifically reminded not to engage in any
insider dealings as stipulated under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

AAREREFETNESFR S  FHETHRAM S+ 2R
BIMERA A BB AER -

KREBESEHSTEH  BE2014F2A28AILFE - 28E
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R - ARABRE S HIRB T H(RETRDRBRNEEIES 4

BT ARRNRLESTRMFTRNERIS)  AEREETHREEFGA
BHENSEEEASREMBMES - RERSVAETERES
AR - BARBHBENEEAMAL - WFHIRE B AL
NMEFRFESFRPEGOIFMIBAEFR AR S o
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Summary of Code Provisions
SF R R ST

Compliance

= PAN
;El;r:?‘lzl

SFRIRSC

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRMNECEERER

A6.5

All directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Company should be responsible for
arranging and funding suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company
director.

FIAESR2EFEFERR BRI EMEANZ
e

RAEARALFAENEILEDNERLE - UK
EYEE LT RAREENAE  BERAE -

Yes

Ao

The Company Secretary circulates updated circulars,
newsletters, and updates on laws, etc, to all Directors for
updating their knowledge and skills.

The Company Secretary is responsible for arranging and
funding a suitable development programs to the Directors.
The Directors can also identify their own training and
development needs and notify the Company Secretary in
arranging the course enrolment. After attending the training,
the Directors would file a copy of the training course
certificate with the Company Secretary for the Company's
record.

The Company would also reimburse to each of the Directors
for their out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them for the
purpose of attending training courses.

RAMESEHEMORMNE  BARAREINERS T2REEUE
A AP A RN R A BE o

ARMERBRHGENEERRRARTENFHALETESE - &
ENAREERNFIRERBEZBARAMELRIRERRE - KT
PRIEDIR - EEARE M FEEILS T RRAIME (FLLE o

ARREHMSESTHREIINER -




The Directors have undergone satisfactory training throughout the year and
provided the training records to the Company. During the year ended 28 February

2014, the training records of the Directors are set out below:

BERAAQ RO FIZERER
LAMEBRIFI - REBE201452
A28BIEEE  SESHEIIRHR
5T

Corporate Governance/Updates on
laws, rules and regulations
EER LG RAIRBEH 2 EH

Attend Seminars/

Briefings/
Read Materials Conferences
HEEES
Directors B mEM A=V =
Executive Directors: HITES
Yau On Yee, Annie iz 4 v
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EBRITHER)
Erwin Steve Huang =K v 4
(Deputy Chairman & Chief Corporate Development Officer) (BlEFREEBFRER)
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence TR v 4
(Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary) (BRI BRERRRAWE)
Non-executive Director: FHITES !
Wang Guosheng F R v v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYFHITES !
Chui Chi Yun, Robert e v v
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin E v v
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRIA v v
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher EafE v v
Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
F ARSI Z —ERE adopted by the Group
<P R ST AEERMNEEERER
A6.6 | Each director should disclose to the Yes A profile of Directors clearly state the nature of offices held
company at the time of his appointment, and in public companies/organizations and other significant
in a timely manner for any change, the commitments and disclosed in this annual report.
number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other If any Director has a relevant change in commitments as
significant commitments with a disclosure of set out in Code Provision A.6.6, such Director should notify
the time involved. the Company Secretary within one month from the date of
change.
BREFENEXZERAARBREENARAR P BERMNBERIPETNARAR, ABEEBRINEE R MmE

AR ERGAEE RIEE AR EARAE
Hg BA EEEE R RE o

REEWRBRAFHRA

AAEAATEE 5t 5F RIS AL6.6 IREVARSE R Z SR -
HgH—8 A NBHMRRMWE
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Summary of Code Provisions
SF R R ST

Compliance

= PAN
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SFRIRSC

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRMNECEERER

AB.7

Independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors should give the
board and any committees on which they
serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and
varied backgrounds and qualifications
through regular attendance and active
participation. They should also attend general
meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders.

BUFNTEREREMIFNTESTREMLEES
ERARARHERZEERENZ RGN ERLIER
SEET  UEKE  BEAZRTRNERRE
RIEHER - X EEERRAE - HRFRR
MERBRENTE -

Deviation

All the Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-
executive Director demonstrated their skills, expertise and
qualifications by giving professional advices during the
regular Board Meetings and the Committee Meetings. All
Directors have attended the 2013 AGM and answered
questions from the shareholders, except Mr. Chui Chi Yun,
Robert, an Independent Non-executive Director, and Mr.
Wang Guosheng, a Non-executive Director, due to his being
absent from Hong Kong and other business commitments
respectively.

AR ERTEE RN TEENER EE G RERES
#EEBRHEEERERELREE  FEANBRER - BRIBILIEH
TEFESCAERBBRFNTES TRALER LML -
EMEEHAHE 2013 FRRAF ARG REELIRAER -

A6.8

Independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors should make a
positive contribution to the development of
the company's strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and informed
comments.

BUFATESREMIENTESTRERBRERE
3 BERERERENE R QR E R KR
RIEHIEEER

Yes

Ho

All the Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-
executive Director make a positive contribution to the
development of the Company's strategy.

FABLIFMTER MERNITE R Y ARGIE R (FL Em SRR o




A.7 Supply of and access to information
Code Principle

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information so as
to enable them to make an informed decision and perform their duties and

responsibilities.

A7 ERRERER
FAIFAY
EERERFEEENERER &
BEERENEERABEMNERT
EHIRTE - WREBEITEBAERAE -

Summary of Code Provisions
<F IR SR

Compliance
=EFE

SFRIMRS

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
REBRMNEEERER

AT

Agenda and board papers should be sent to
directors at least 3 days before the intended
date of board meeting or committee meeting.

BEMEFEXHENEFERANEETEER
HEL=RAIEHTEE -

Yes

Ho

Agenda and board papers are despatched to all Directors or
Committee Members not less than 3 days before the date
of meeting.

B eaa B XN EFEREEE8H AP T LN =RA
HHTHRAESEHEEEKE o

AT.2

Management should supply the board and its
committees with adequate information in a
timely manner. The board and individual
directors should have separate and
independent access to the company's senior
management.

EEEAEFERAETZRERHARNERE
o EERRENEFREETEBARNSRERE
ABMBIEE -

Yes

Ao

The Chief Financial Officer and/or Company Secretary or
secretary of the board committee attended all regular Board
Meetings and Board Committee Meetings to advise on
accounting and financial, corporate governance and
statutory compliance matters. Senior management have
formal or informal contact with the Board Members as and
when necessary.

AATERIBRER, AATUBLEARUB LA EESE
REFEAGZEHGE  BUHEMY  CEEARMTPEEN
MEEREER - HBER  BRETRARRESSRIEARRE
ER 2 -

AT7.3

Directors are entitled to have access to board
papers and related materials.

FEEEHARESHEFTS XXM RBEER -

Yes

Ho

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection
by the Directors and Board Committee Members upon
reasonable request. The Company responded as promptly
as possible to any queries raised by the Directors.

EEFEFEHABEELRT EEGXMHRERLHEAIHERERE
FZEEREEH - EFROEMHE  ARRRRELEE -
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TEEREKE @

B.REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT AND BOARD EVALUATION

B.1 The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure
Code Principle

The Company should disclose its directors’ remuneration policy and other
remuneration related matters. The procedure for setting policy on executive
directors’ remuneration and all directors’ remuneration packages should be formal
and transparent. No director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

B.1 A R R R MK AR B
FAIRAY
RAERBEEEEMSHE R EM
HEFEMERNER  BRAERM
EBEBHENRERF - AHIFT A BT
BEEME R REFFHHTENK
R EMEETFL2EITEAHH

XX B2 AR TERIBE

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
RIS E =2ERE adopted by the Group
<F RIS REBERBNCEERER

B.1.1 The remuneration committee should consult Yes Please refer to the section below.
the chairman and/or chief executive about
their remuneration proposals for other
executive directors. The remuneration
committee should have access to
independent professional advice where
necessary.

FMEE SRS EMATEFTNFTNEZERNER = Bl
R/ RTHRBER - WEFE  FTHEEREAIEK
BUHEXER -

B.1.2 | The remuneration committee's terms of Yes The role and authority of the remuneration committee of
reference should include the duties as set out the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), including
in the Code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code. those set out in Code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code, are

clearly set out in its terms of reference and in compliance
with the provisions set out in the CG Code.
FMEE e BEEERAECXE RTINS =

¥FzEecACREN  BECEXERTRTZFRIKXBI 21K
FiaE - BRI N EREGEAN LTS EEERSTRITATE . K&
3o




Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
F BRI E =ERE adopted by the Group
<F AR 3T AEERMNEEERER

B.1.3 | The remuneration committee should make Yes The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available its terms of reference, explaining its available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
role and the authority delegated to it by the Company.
board by including them on the Stock
Exchange's website and the company's
website.

HE B g ETER A P s R A R us AR E R b= HrBNE B o i 60 [ S pO B 32 P R AR X R AR o
REE BEAACREFSERTHNES -

B.1.4 | The remuneration committee should be Yes The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
provided with sufficient resources to perform resources, including the advice of professional firms, to
its duties. perform its duties, if necessary.
FHEEgRERETRERABITHERE - P FHEEERIRHARER  BRE(WAFE)ERZXER - UE

TEEME -

B.1.5 | The company should disclose details of any Yes The Board has resolved that the Senior Management of the
remuneration payable to members of senior Company would comprise only the Executive Directors and/
management by band in their annual reports. or functional heads on Chief Officer grade or above. Details

of emoluments of Senior Management, please refer to the

section below.
RAREEFRARFTHERKBESRERAEN = KEEEZR  ARAIRREEASEHAARPITES R S
B & 515 © EBANEIALEK - BRESREBAEMES ZHBEFL2HTX -

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 March 2002. It comprises four
members, Mr. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin, Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert and Mr. Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael, the Independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Yau On Yee,
Annie, the Executive Director. Mr. Heng is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal responsibility of the Remuneration Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure in relation to
the remuneration of the Directors and Senior Management by reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 28 February 2014
and the individual members' attendance records are disclosed in the section
‘Attendance Record at Meetings” in this report.

HMZ 8 €5 2002F3 A27 AR °
MIOERK BEK - BIEBIERIT
EREFREE  ERCEERR
WAL RIMTESIRELL -
ERERTHEEEER °

FHZE e IRRARNERES
RUFHEERSREEASTHFH
MERREBNER  TAEES
B FATRE B 40 3 B AR AR AT AR BE A0 B

FWEEGREE201462H28H
IEFEEERIT—REH  EARIKE
HE RS IIRNARE [ L FER
8] — e
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In addition, during the year, the Remuneration Committee also received a number of
reports and proposals from executive management in relation to remuneration
issues of the Company for their review and/or approval as required.

The Remuneration Committee has considered and consulted the Chairman of the

Board the following proposals:

(a) reviewed the annual salary of the Executive Directors and Senior Management

for 2013/2014; and

(b) reviewed and approved the annual performance bonus schemes and the
granting of discretionary bonus to both Senior Management and other

employees of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and Senior Management.

Emoluments of Senior Management

The emoluments of the members of Senior Management by band for the year ended

28 February 2014 is set out below:

o HFMEEERNFATKEE
BARMRXAEBFHNEE ZRE
Rig# TREAFTETUERN
R,/ S o

YPHEEREZERRMESTE LR
RET IR :

() MARTESRERITHRAE
2013/2014 MY E & : &

(b) &AL HL AR D B K FEIEA
ERARRERASREAM
RREREIBIEAL -

FHZESERERTEUREME B
EENBTEERSREEARN
HENFE o

SREEASHME
EREEEBKEREZE2014F2A
28 AIEFEMESRER AT ¢

2014
20145
Number of
employees
EEAH

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000

752,000,001 TTEH% 2,500,000 7T
752 500,001 7L E % 3,000,000 7T
753,000,001 JLE % 3,500,000 7T
75 3,500,001 JTZ 7% 4,000,000 7T
751 4,000,001 JTTZE A # 4,500,000 7T
75 4,500,001 7T 2 4% 5,000,000 7T
755,000,001 TTE % 5,500,000 7T
75 5,500,001 7L E 7% 6,000,000 7T
75 6,000,001 L= % 6,500,000 7T

N — —




Further particulars in relation to Directors' remuneration and the five individuals with
highest emoluments as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the

Listing Rules are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements.

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C.1 Financial Reporting
Code Principle

The board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the

company's performance, position and prospects.

BEXFIRBRHEALTHE—
FEHBRE TR RIS AR
FE D BIR B IRR MO R O HER -

C. BERZE

C.1 B %5EESR
FEIFEY
EEQETE BN R EEBTX
ARHRE  EREAR -

BAAHRR - HERARARHAER SRR
Rk -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
F AR ST ZE =ARE adopted by the Group
<FRIERSZ REERMNEEERER

C.1.1 Management should provide sufficient Yes The management provides sufficient explanation and
explanation and information to the board to information to the Board in order to enable the Board to
enable it to make an informed assessment of make an informed assessment of the financial and other
financial and other information put before it information submitted to the Board for approval.
for approval.

ERERAESFSRHAINBELEY  FES = ERENEFSRERINBEREL  BESSRRITERSE
A ARIR R AR I AE B0 B 7 I B A R - MR k2 % R EMEREE B RBENTE
BIREHTE -

C.1.2 | Management should provide all members of Yes The management provides monthly management updates
the board with monthly updates giving a to Directors for their assessment of the Company's
balanced and understandable assessment of performance, position and prospects.
the company's performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail.

EREERGANETEXNEREENER - &#IF 2 EREGRAREFEXERUEATERERS - WERTEARAT

KRB - BB KRR
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Summary of Code Provisions
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Compliance
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SFRIRSC

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRMNECEERER

The directors should acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the accounts, on
a going concern basis and there should be a
statement by the auditors about their
reporting responsibilities in the auditors’
report on the financial statements.

The Corporate Governance Report should
contain sufficient information to enable
investors to understand the severity and
significance of the matters at hand.

EERARBRERFEEERARANALE - X
HEMAR B M B HRROZEERET RHREE
EfmEHZA -

CRERAREEBBRHER  RREAEADE
EHHBREERES -

Yes

Ho

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group and presenting a
balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the
Group's performance.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 28 February 2014, the Directors have selected
the appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently; approved the adoption of all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards which are issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants;
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and prepared the financial statements on the
going concern basis.

The relevant responsibility statement from the external
auditors is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on
pages 102 to 103.

The Corporate Governance Report sets out the practices
adopted by the Group which enables the investors to
understand the Company's commitment to the
establishment of good governance practices and
procedures.

EFFRRSHATREARBHHRE - LUARBRRIEL S
F AN R R 25 -

RMAUAEEBE2014F2 280 L FEZMBRRE  EFEH
ENERERA BB  (ERRBEE A DS EM LT
BEMEAMBREER  (FHBREAIE 2 HIB R ffat : ARIESR
BIEERLEUTRE -

SNIB R BT A E I 2 A B (AR AL 1025 103 BB ST BAT
HEERN -

CEERBETALAKERMRANTES - UEREE TRARFRK
NHERFEREBRERRER ©




HARKRBELTE B REZEFEOTE - It
SN ETNEEREE E RIS RIRBADIRE
WER BRI A RRAOBRAL

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
F BRI E =ERE adopted by the Group
<F AR 3T AEERMNEEERER

C.1.4 | The directors should include in the separate Yes The discussion and analysis of the Group's performance is
statement containing a discussion and disclosed under the “Management’s Discussion and
analysis of the group’s performance, an Analysis” section.
explanation of how the company generates
or preserves value over the longer term and
the strategy for delivering the company’'s
objectives, in the annual report.

BRREEFTRAN W RA T EERR B LR b= MR OTEERRER [ERE 27w RO | —FHRRE -
AN BRERARHREEEIRBEENERRER
REIFTY B IEHREK -

C.1.5 | The board should present a balanced, clear Yes The section of Management's Discussion and Analysis of
and understandable assessment in annual annual and interim reports has explained the factors
and interim reports required by the Listing affecting business performance and outlook of the Group.
Rules. It should also do so for reports to Financial statements have been presented in accordance
regulators and information disclosed under with the disclosure requirements of Listing Rules, Hong
statutory requirements. Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
EFRERBCEMRANVRENFRE P HRE = FHREPHRETERE 2R RO T ARELEREE 2 XX

BRcAERRE - MBHRRERIELTHRA - BEMBHRELER
BB RREPIREFELKE -

C.2 Internal Controls
Code Principle

The board should ensure that the company maintains sound and effective internal
controls to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the company’s assets.

C.2 AEREEHE
FAIFAY
EEgRBRATNNADEZERR
BRERZEMABR  ARBEED
RERABRNEE -

EmSIEAR AR EE RSP ERE
Wt o

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
F RIS E =ERE adopted by the Group
<F IR 32 REERMNEEERER
C.2.1 | The directors should at least annually Yes Please refer to the section below.

conduct a review of the effectiveness of the

company's and its subsidiaries’ internal

control systems in the Corporate Governance

Report.

EFERSEBFRN —RABREANE QRN P B2HTX °
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consider the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SF RIS E =ERE adopted by the Group
PRI ST REERMNEEERER
C.22 | The board should annually review and Yes The Board has considered the adequacy of resources, staff

qualifications and experience of the Company's accounting
and financial reporting function, the continuing professional
education undertaken by the relevant staff.

EReFFHETRIE  BERZEARESH R P EESEERARAES RUYBESRBETANER BETERE

BISERBAE T AMNER  ETEERER UK RSHRELRH  URBBE IR FESERIRERH -

BIFMERNEIIREREHEERETRH -
The Board, through the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), is EFERBARRAEREER (&
responsible for ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to safeguard BREEg ) BEMRAIMELEREE
the Company's assets and manage risks. The executive management has been RNET UWREARAMERE
delegated the responsibility of identifying and evaluating the risks faced by the BRER - AITERASEIERER
Group and of designing, operating and monitoring an effective control system. o R 7T 4k 7S 5 B T 3 2 @B - A

R RaT T R BRI -

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, NEPEEIE I < FRET B IR A IR -
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in achieving the i FEABE IR - HEAR & B W R
established corporate objectives, safeguarding the Group's assets, providing reliable X WTMESRTARBR - RES
financial reporting and complying with the applicable laws and regulations. Systems EAE REHAEMBRE REST
and procedures are also established to identify, measure, manage and control, BREERRA - HIERERFZET
rather than eliminate, different risks arising from different business and functional VKN - 5tE - BIRRES -

activities.

WIEHRR - TREBRIDEBBE
EZ TRER




The Group's Internal Audit Department plays an important role in the internal control
function. It provides objective opinion to the Board whether a sound internal control
system is maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes
and standards by performing periodic audits over all major operations of the Group,
under a rotational cycle. An annual audit plan (comprising of annual audit focus and
audit frequencies) is prepared based on the department's independent risk
assessment. Such work plan is discussed and agreed with the Audit Committee at
the beginning of each financial year. Major internal audit findings will be submitted
to the Audit Committee for review and all recommendations from the Internal Audit
Department will be properly followed up to ensure that they are implemented within
a reasonable period of time. The Directors have received the report from the Internal
Audit Department which conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group. The management is committed to continuous
improvements and the Internal Control Review Committee comprising the Chairman,
Deputy Chairman, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Talents Officer and the Senior
Manager — Internal Audit would oversee the implementation of the
recommendations raised by the Internal Audit Department and the continuity of
internal control focus within the Group.

The scope of work performed by the internal audit function during the year included
financial and operational reviews, recurring/surprise cash counts and audits, and
special reviews.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the risk assessment analysis in the areas of
strategy, operation, reporting and compliance of the Group. The impact of risks has
been considered in terms of probability of occurrence and materiality and there is a
mechanism to ensure that there exists appropriate business strategies or policies
and procedures to address risks where considered necessary.

The Board considers that the internal control system of the Group is effective and
continues to review and update the system to ensure that shareholder's investments
and the Group's assets are safeguarded.

AEBAPERBPINAIMEZE L
EEEEAE  EHERAEEMN
EEXREERE —HRU—BHE
R UMBFSRHEBER - AN
ERtIERBARET AFaR
RIA2F AR - FE RS (B
FEBREBRERBERER) TR
ZBIRBAT LG EREER
PS8 B B AR R ) T o BB B ok
BRETE c BARNMERERT S
ERERREGRHA  MAPEX
MPAMEBEREH X ERE - U
RZZZEABRBART E=
EURE| i A BB E A PTETT R R
A5 B AR I R BE VR o
BRI ENE N M
AMELEBRTZEERNEBEAE
BEF  BIER  BEMBARE - A
NERBHE R B REE - IHDE
% B ERMIT AR E X AP AT IR
2 N BT & B A R B R S

B o

ABBEZBIFAZ TERENK
REER - AR REFSHER
A R B AT -

FA - BEEREREAEENRE
g EWEEET E A E R AT
AT o I ARIR [ B 3 AR 9 FT B I
BEUERERRREROZE  §
RI—ERHINERASEEREE
B SE TS SRS SR BUR RAE P ETT AR

B -

BEERR/AEEIANEERSR
EREE TREBERIREER
B BRBRRZBRERAEBMEE
BEURE o
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C.3 Audit Committee
Code Principle

An audit committee should be established with clear terms of reference, including
formal and transparent arrangements to consider how it applies financial reporting
and internal control principles. The audit committee should maintain an appropriate

relationship with the company's auditors.

C3ERERR
FRIFAY
ERZ R RRAEABMNBERE -
BIER NI E BB T 3RS K A RB
ERRAERERREBEAENL
e BRZ B GARAQNARBER
FrEE HRIR o

WJLEX?%MAT’*\%‘%)\E’JEH}%&T\Eﬁ*ﬁEZ“ﬁﬁT
B AR —FRAUARPRERERE) -
BEERZEEKE -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SF ARSI E 2ERE adopted by the Group
<P R 32 AEBRMHOEEERER

C.3.1 | Full minutes of audit committee meetings Yes Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
should be kept by a duly appointed secretary of the Company, the minutes of meetings were circulated to
of the meeting. all Committee Members.

Draft and final versions of minutes of the The minutes were kept by the Company Secretary.

meeting should be sent to all committee

members for comment and records within a

reasonable time.

ERZEGNTESRCHER EXRENZEW = BREARRZERZEG REGE  sRcSEMTEBEES
ERF - K& -

BRLENTREREEREE - RABEREANRE BRLEBADRWERRT

REEGR2RKE  HREREBARFHEZA -

C.3.2 | A former partner of the company's existing Yes No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of
auditing firm should not act as a member of for a period of 1 year from the date of his ceasing or has
the audit committee for a period of 1 year financial interest in the existing auditing firm of the
from the date of his ceasing to be a partner Company.
of or to have any financial interest in, the firm,
whichever is later.

B AR FARARENORBERRNAES B AL P BMEEZZEGNEAER ERBZRERE AR —FREEZ

NEIMEIE AR R A s




Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
F BRI E =ERE adopted by the Group
<FBIRSZ REBERMNEEERER

C.3.3 | The audit committee's terms of reference Yes The terms of reference of the Audit Committee included the
should include the terms set out in Code role and authority delegated by the Board together with the
provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. terms set out in the Code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.
Eiz §E@E@Hﬁk%§ﬂ.ﬁ@%i% EasFRIE) <R b= EREEgNBEEERESe M TEARAEREN hEE
{6358 C.3. 3 IRFAEIIE » JASFRIZE C.3.3 R {EX ©

C.3.4 | The audit committee should make available Yes The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
its terms of reference, explaining its role and on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
the authority delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange's
website and the company’s website.

BERZEQRER S AU R A R A5 E R P EE B g n R E B M AP R AR R R A, o
HEE BEEACREFTERTHENEN -

C.3.5 | Disclosure of any disagreement between the Yes The Audit Committee recommended to the Board to re-
board and audit committee on selection, appoint Ernst & Young as the external auditors subject to
appointment, resignation or dismissal of shareholders' approval at the forthcoming annual general
external auditors. The company should state meeting.
the recommendation and reasons for taking
a different view by the board in Corporate
Governance Report.

NEZEHEZZEGEER S - HAELRK = EREE SRR E TSR KE TR BB RINEZERD - A
B oo HEE - R BEXERINEZEA - A7 IR AN RITIREBERE K -

(X ERARE)NHMABEZEZESNERRE

FERTRERNERR -

C.3.6 | The audit committee should be provided with Yes Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee,

sufficient resources to perform its duties. the Audit Committee has been provided with sufficient
resources, including advice from external auditors and
Internal Audit Department, to perform its duties, if
necessary.

ERZEQRERGERRERABITERS - = BEARNAERZEGNRESE EXZESRREHARER

BIEINEZEE L ABEZAFINEL(MAFE)

AR ETTE
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(@)

BERRIRENATZE : RAEE AT
BITSEESR - ABREEIE sk E fth 7 M R REE AR
EETARIEL BRZECRERAEE
ZH - RARHLEEEEHRAFBIMNHAE
RERBGEETTE : &

BEAREIEZEEM MNEERE B8R
BER_EZMMER-

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SF RIS E =ERE adopted by the Group
PRI ST AEBRMNECEERER
C.3.7 | The terms of reference of the audit Yes The Audit Committee reviews arrangements employees of
committee should also require it: the Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
(a) to review arrangements employees of control or other matters and the appropriate follow-up
the company can use, in confidence, action, if any; and acts as the key representative body for
to raise concerns about possible overseeing the Company's relations with the external
improprieties in financial reporting, auditors.
internal control or other matters and the
appropriate follow-up action; and A policy “TSL Staff Integrity Guidelines” which includes
some guidelines for raising concerns about the possible
(b) to act as the key representative body for improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
overseeing the company's relations with matters and the appropriate follow-up action etc, has been
the external auditor. posted on the intranet of the Company for our employees to
refer to.
ERLZESNBESEINARRE P

SERERAEEERH  FATNHEEEEEHATEINRAER
REGEETE(W0F)  REEAREIINERSMZFHNEERE
BREFE_EZRNBEK-

SREATSEESR - ABE R E M MA e R AN TEETRRHRE
RABGRBEETEEHES - RS AE(TSLE TREETIES])
A B EHARABEHBESE -




The Audit Committee was established on 20 November 1998. On 1 March 2013,
Mr. Chow Chee Wai, Christopher was appointed as an additional member of the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee comprises four members, Mr. Chui Chi Yun,
Robert, Mr. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin, Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr. Chow
Chee Wai, Christopher, who are all Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Chui is
the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the review and
supervision of the Group's financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, review of the Group's financial statements and review of the relationship
with the external auditor of the Company. The Audit Committee meets at least twice
ayear.

The Audit Committee met twice during the year ended 28 February 2014 and the
individual members' attendance records are disclosed in the section “Attendance
Record at Meetings” in this report.

RSM Nelson Wheeler, Certified Public Accountants retired at the conclusion of the
2013 AGM. The Board has resolved, with the recommendation from the Audit
Committee, the appointment of Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants as new
independent auditors to fill the vacancy following the retirement of RSM Nelson
Wheeler, Certified Public Accountants at the 2013 AGM. The resolution for
appointment of Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants as new independent
auditors of the Company was passed at 2013 AGM.

The amount of fees charged by the auditors generally depends on the scope and
volume of the auditors’ work. For the year ended 28 February 2014, the
remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants was
approximately HK$2,250,000 for audit services and HK$189,000 for other assurance
services. The remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young network firms were
approximately HK$171,000 for non-assurance services. HK$553,000 was paid/
payable to other audit firms for audit services of subsidiaries of the Group located
other than Hong Kong.

EZBEEN1998F 11 A20H &K
3o R2013F3 1R - ElafRLE
ERERTBINERREGRE - &
REERHNAEREER  BEE
TIEE - FIEREL - RELE
REREBEEL RBILIFRITES -

ERZERTERABERIRE
BASE B %R RERAE
22 - BWUAAE BB RE AR
B AR RINEXEED 2 BR - &

REEREFRIARMAREE

EZEEERNEE201452H28H
IEEEERITRAREH  ERIKE
HE RS IINARE (SR L ER
8] —#h e

I EE(EB) Bt EBMER
2013 FREBF NG HERIFRAE -
EEECHRARBERZEGNE
# o R2013FERNBERE L&
R L KGRI EIE T AT EB L
BB NERTREE(RS) S
AT EBRBEERELAZER - B
BZEREZKEAMEBMARRR
FEBUIRBMORAZR ER
2013 FREBFAE Limib -

% B AT MR B A BUR N H T {EE
BERTIE=Z - #iZ=2014%52 A 28H
ILEE - B BN TGRS
BHRHOEBEABREH S 55K
2,250,0007T * Efth RS B A RS
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171,0007C ° Bff A FEMES
MEBMNERAEEEAUINGD
ERNHRBARNET RS ER RS
# 553,000 7T °
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The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during the
year:

(a) discussed with the external auditors the general scope of their audit work;

(b) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board in respect of the audit fee
proposals for the Group for the year ended 28 February 2014;

(c) reviewed and approved the Group's internal audit policy and internal audit plan
for the year 2014,

(d) reviewed the internal audit reports covering the evaluation of internal controls;

(e) reviewed the audited financial statements and final results announcement for
the year ended 28 February 2013;

(f) reviewed the interim report and interim results announcement for the six
months ended 31 August 2013; and

(g) reviewed the internal control review report on the Group's operations.

The Group's audited financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2014 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

ERRZEGNFRNZ TERRINT -

B2 NS 2 BT & EAZ B T E
FE

EHIRAEBEBE201452
R28HILFEZEEZEER
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D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D.1 Management Functions
Code Principle

A company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for board
approval. The board should give clear directions to management on the matters that
must be approved by it before decisions are made on the company's behalf.

D. ESERINER

D.1 EIBE AL
FEIREA
ARIEE—BIERMNE T BIX -
FIHA R B EE G HEN SR &
EEREARETEEE DL EEA
GEHEEERHAMERE AR
RATWELIRFE

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
RIS E —ERE adopted by the Group
PRI ST AEERMNDCEERER
D.1.1 | The board must give clear directions as to Yes Please refer to the section below.
the management’s powers, particularly on
delegation to management and those The detailed disclosure of respective responsibilities,
required prior board approval. accountabilities and contributions of the Board and
management is set out on pages 30 to 35 of section
ESZSVANREERENES - LT EWMES - & =2 “Directors and Senior Management Profile”.
PRAERERENAFARSEESHASEER -
D.1.2 | The company should formalise the functions Yes Thg Company has letters of appointment f‘?fthe Dlrectorls
which set out the key terms and conditions of their
reserved to the board and those delegated to :
appointment.
management.
. BEMTX -
ATEETLRE T ESE OB LI LBETE ] PERTX
B EBEE D RIREE TR ©
7 * EEgHERESAMNRE  HXAaNaEAREERELFRF
D.1.3 | The company should disclose the respective Yes BERENEINEE [EERGREEASBN] —F -
responsibilities, accountabilities and
contributions of the board and management. ARABEANEEFEZASE  FTREBZENEZHRRRMEE -
AAEREEFEEERESANBE 5B N p3
HRAREERIEHER °
D.1.4 | Directors should clearly understand Yes
delegation arrangements in place. Company
should have formal letters of appointment for
directors.
BREEEFEMEENENRELH - RRIEALE P
ANEEZREE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
EREBRRE w0

The Board is collectively responsible for the management of the business and B HFAAEEEASEEBLR

affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing shareholders' value. The Board
is responsible for making decisions on major operational and financial matters as
well as investments, and overseeing the management of the business. Matters
reserved to the Board for decision include significant financial and legal
commitments, material asset acquisition or disposal, the change of share capital,

the approval of financial reporting and budget.

The general management and day-to-day operations, including preparation of
annual and interim reports and accounts for board approval before public reporting,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, monitoring of
operating budgets, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and
risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory requirements
and rules and regulations, are delegated to the management team of the Group.

D.2 Board Committees
Code Principle

Board committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which

deal clearly with their authority and duties.

= BEARSRAEE -ESFS
BENEENHBER UREKE
FEAEHRE  TEREBHER
T -HEFERENEEBEE
R Ros@ s EREEWRE
HHE - RAES) - HERTERE R
TBH -

EREEREE BRESEFHRR
PHREEEENEEEEN M
EW|AEL  ROTEESRANE
TR N2 - BREERY Bt
RAABERERZGNRAREEZRZT -
VAR 38 <7 #R BA TE B SRANAR Bl R AR
PI=E HRXMAAKEERERR -

D2EERETZES
FAIFA
BB TS LMK IETE
EENFEERESGE  BRIHE
BEeREILRBE -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
F BRI E _E/RE adopted by the Group
<P R 32 AEBRMHOEEERER

D.2.1 | Clear terms of reference to enable board Yes Each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
committees to perform their functions the Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee of
properly. the Company has clear terms of reference which set out the

authority, duties and reporting procedures.
ANFROBERE BEFSETZESREE P KARBIZEREZEE FMEES REZESRITEESHE
B1THEAE ° N BB REREFG S BN RS E NSRS -

D.2.2 | The terms of reference should require the Yes Board committees report their findings, decisions and
board committees to report back their recommendations to the Board at the Board Meetings.
decisions or recommendations to the board.

EFRRTREEgNBREERRTZERES = EXEER 28R EEF RN NESEEREFESHER &
ZREFFERLRTELES © TE NG ©




D.3 Corporate Governance Functions

GEEREMMESMDEERRE

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
<F RIS E _ERE adopted by the Group
<F RIS REBRMNEEERER
D.3.1 | The terms of reference of the board (or a Yes The Corporate Governance Functions would be performed
committee or committees performing this by the Board and its duties set out in the terms of reference
function) should include the functions as set in D.3.1 of the CG Code.
out in the Code provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code. EEERESHETSEE  HBERCEERTIFEDI HE
REFE P o
BEg (HETHBENZER) NBREERE D b
BIEEEERTRIA ST RMRICEE D3 RFTEIRX -
D.3.2 | The board (or a committee or committees Yes
performing this function) should be
responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in the terms of
reference in D.3.1.
Exe(HETUHBENEER)EEERETDI 2

The Board has reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report during the year.

ESaRNFACRSARETRE
A TANBERRE(RRER®RE)
ME R EE
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E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

E.1 Effective Communication
Code Principle

The board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, use annual general meetings or other general

meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation.

E. EERIRAVBE

E1 BNER
FAIRAY
EEQRE N ERRITERTEE
LEREERBEFAGREMBR
REEBRBARBEREDE -

g FMEEERRAZRESIREERRBEER
BIWNE EEERMA -

RAIHE 2B R RINE B L E IR RAFRE
I B E R o

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SRR E =EHE adopted by the Group
PRI 3T REERMNEEERER

E.1.1 | A separate resolution at a general meeting Yes Separate resolutions are proposed at the annual general
on each substantial separate issue should be meeting on each substantially separate issue, including
proposed by the chairman of that meeting. election of the Directors.
ERRAE L @ZEXRERTHRERBUINER P RRFBFAS  ERNGHERBYFR(BEERESE) AR
BRI HREE SR © IREEER o

E.1.2 | The chairman of the board should attend the Yes The Chairman of the Board, the Chairmen of Remuneration
annual general meeting. He should also invite Committee and Nomination Committee, and all the
the chairman of audit, remuneration and committees’ members (including audit committee) have
nomination committees to attend and be attended the 2013 AGM and answered shareholders’
available to answer questions. questions during the meeting.
The company's management should ensure Meanwhile, the representative of the external auditor also
the external auditor attend the annual general attended the 2013 AGM and answered shareholders’
meeting to answer questions. questions during the meeting.
BEEgIRRLERRBFEAS UBFEXEE 2 BEEgIF FHEESeRREZEG2IFERAZEKE (25

EREZER) A HE2013FRFAFAE kBB RRER -

SR - SNEREEI R R A HE 2013 FREAF R REE
BRI ©




Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
F BRI E =ERE adopted by the Group
<F AR 3T AEERMNEEERER
E.1.3 | The company should arrange to send at least Yes The Company has given at least 20 clear business days’
20 clear business days' notice to shareholders notice to shareholders to attend the 2013 AGM.
of annual general meeting and at least 10
clear business days' notice for all other
general meetings.
HRERRAFAGMS @ RARELHERNSRITAE b= ARAER2013FRRBFAGRITAMKRBEEED R 20 %
L R20BEEXBARRRE X B MBHMEEM E=E:of Pk
BRAREME  AAEARSRTAMZ=LRI0EE
FHEXRBA
E.1.4 | The board should establish a shareholders' Yes The Company adopted a shareholders’ communication
communication policy and review it on a policy in February 2012. The Board reviews the efficiency of
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. the policy regularly.
The Shareholders Communication Policy is available on the
website of the Company.
EFGRHTERFBABE - I E Hieat ARRE = RRFE R 2012 4F 2 ARMRFBABER - EF & IE Hiat LK
PR KAV -
MR GBABER B AR R AL A o

The Company establishes and maintains different communication channels with its
shareholders through the publication of annual reports, interim reports and press
releases. Such information is also available on the Company's website
www.tslj.com. The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board.

ARAEBHRFER  PHFER
R BERREVVEF TR
BIRRE - BERERITMARNAKA A
A vt www tsli.com e R R B F K&
RERRREHEEEESIRERAZE
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E.2 Voting by Poll

E2 UBRZEFAKR

Code Principle FEIRE
The company should ensure that shareholders are familiar with the detailed A AERRRRAFBARET A K
procedures for conducting a poll. REFF AR ©
Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SF ARSI E 2ERE adopted by the Group
<P R 32 AEBRMNEEERER
E.2.1 | The chairman of a meeting should ensure Yes Details of the procedures for conducting a poll have been
that the detailed procedures for conducting a disclosed in the Company's 2013 AGM circular to
poll are explained and answer any questions shareholders.
from shareholders on voting by poll.
The Chairman of the 2013 AGM explained the procedures
for conducting a poll at the commencement of the meeting
and answered the questions from the shareholders
regarding the poll voting.
ABEIFRERESS LARRBBARRETE p3 AR AFRRO AR FFERAR B MARR 5 3 #2013 FAFRIAE
TRORMFMAES - WEIERRBANKEREF AR FARE B RHARE -
SREVEREERA -
EEFEIFER2013FRRBFRSHMBRBRREART T NETR
REVIZF R SRR AR ARARNER -
At the Company's 2013 AGM, all the resolutions were taken by way of poll and Tricor RARR2013FREBFAE L
Secretaries Limited, the Company's Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, was FIBRBRHUREIRETRA

engaged as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly counted.

ARAREREEERNBFELD
BREENERBERARDEEESR
A BREREFRE -



F. COMPANY SECRETARY

Code Principle

The company secretary is responsible for advising the board through the chairman and/
or the chief executive on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and

professional development of directors.

F. ARIWE

<F Il A
RAIMERBEFEBERE R THAHR
EEgRHELAFENERR  URH
BERMOARBYIREEER

=ZERFEABERER  RARRINISERSEST -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SRR E —RERE adopted by the Group
<P BI5RSZ AEERMNDEERER

F.1.1 | The company secretary should be an employee Yes The Company Secretary, Mr. Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence, is an
of the company and have day-to-day knowledge employee of the Company, he is also an Executive Director
of the company's affairs. and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, who has day-to-

day knowledge of the Company's affairs.

During the financial year, the Company Secretary has taken

no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
AAWERRARNES HRRNWAEEHEAR = ARWERTFREEREATEER - HABRTAARANNATERR
A BREMSEE HARENBEEHAMRH -

REAMBERE - RAWEEL2EADRI5/NEHEZEE

F.1.2 | The board should approve the selection, Yes The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
appointment or dismissal of the company subject to Board approval in accordance with Bye-law of the
secretary. Company.

RAMENHE  ZENBEERCHESSAE - = AROWENEERREDBRBEAARRDMACESTSIAE -

F.1.3 | The company secretary should report to the Yes The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and they
board chairman and/or the chief executive. held regular meetings.
RAMERAESS LR R HITBEHER - = RAMECHREES I FMERER -

F.1.4 | Directors should have access to the advice and Yes Directors have access to the advice and services to the
services of the company secretary to ensure Company Secretary and key officers of the Company
that board procedures, and all applicable law, Secretarial Department to ensure that the board procedures,
rules and regulations, are followed. and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
FIEEFERARSARAMENS R LR - URRE = EZTNERANERAARZARWEHFINEEASHER KR

% REEERFRAEERRANKMROIGEET
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Procedures for Shareholders to convene a Special General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to the Company's bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Companies
Act"), registered Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company (“SGM
Requisitionists”) can deposit a written request to convene a SGM at the registered office of
the Company (‘Registered Office”), which is presently situated at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The SGM Requisitionists must state in their request(s)
the purposes of the SGM and such request(s) must be signed by all the SGM Requisitionists
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the SGM
Requisitionists.

The Share Registrars will verify the SGM Requisitionists’ particulars in the SGM
Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the Share Registrars that the
SGM Requisitionists' request is in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board
to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders in
accordance with all the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. On the contrary, if
the SGM Requisitionists’ request is verified not in order, the SGM Requisitionists will be
advised of the outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as requested.
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The SGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene a SGM if within twenty-one (21) days of the
deposit of the SGM Requisitionists’ request, the Board does not proceed duly to convene a
SGM provided that any SGM so convened is held within three (3) months from the date of
the original SGM Requisitionists' request. A SGM so convened by the SGM Requisitionists
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of the registered shareholders holding
not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such
registered shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting any statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of several documents in like
form, each signed by one or more of the Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the
Registered Office with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses, not less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution or not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks or less
after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited within the time
required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to
the procedures made available under the Corporate Information, Corporate Governance
section (Shareholders Communication Policy sub-section) of the Company's website at
www.tslj.com.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building,

30 Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2356 0215
Email: enquiry@tslj.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company's constitutional documents have been posted on the Corporate Information,
Corporate Governance section (Constitutional Documents sub-section) of the Company's
website at www.tslj.com. There are no changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year under review.

BRROESEFEHEAZREF
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, Audit Committee meetings,
Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination Committee meetings and general meeting
during the year ended 28 February 2014 is set out in the following table:

SR HFERLE

EEENHE2014F2A 2B EFEHFEE
EZgoR BERZESES
& REAZEREHENMBERRG ZRHEHR

% FMZEew

T
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
oy EREEE FHESE REEEE PRERBEF
Directors == =E =E 23 23 g
Number of meetings held ERETRH™ 4 2 1 2 1
Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held
SRR EFERETRE
Executive Directors: HTES:
Yau On Yee, Annie lGifegEs
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (X RITHBR) 4/4 N/A i A 1/1 2/2 1/1
Erwin Steve Huang FHEK
(Deputy Chairman & (BlEER
Chief Corporate Development Officer) DEFRGBH) 4/4 N/ATE N/ATE N/ATE 1/1
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence TR
(Chief Financial Officer & (BT BEERAAME)
Company Secretary) 4/4 N/ATE R N/ATE R N/ATE R 1/1
Non-executive Director: FHITES
Wang Guosheng FEIR% 4/4 N/A i A N/A i A N/A T iE A 0/1
Independent Non-executive B EHITES
Directors:
Chui Chi Yun, Robert EEC 4/4 2/2 11 N/ATiE R 0/1
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin R 4/4 2/2 1/1 2/2 1/1
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRIA S 4/4 2/2 11 2/2 1/1
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher EaE 4/4 2/2 N/AZiE N/AZiE 1/1
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS" REPORT

BYBZHMKRES

Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

ERPERLE R
IS AE221E ey.com

EY=x

To the shareholders of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 104 to 221, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 28 February 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors' responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

2 ==Y Tel T 3%: +852 2846 9888
Fax {8E:+852 2868 4432

B E (BR) BERARDZERR
(REFEZMRZAFRRA)

HFIEBREARNE 104 5 E 221 BRIH B
Z(BEER)ERAB(TERA]) REHBE AR
(BB EEE ] MEAMBHRE - WEREM
MR BIE2014F2 B 28 HWLRA MERR
i&%%a@ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%;ﬁﬁﬁiamiﬁ
FRABEE  GARAEKRARE - R4
*“‘éﬂi’% RE im;%u&£§§rﬁrﬂz
R EMEMARRER -

EERASMBBRRAAENEL
BENRIBEFABERBEEGMASRM
BB R EERFFE R RIS 2 KE
RERBGEAMBRRELAE MDA
] ARGBIEERRR LB E AR AR
il - AfEAR A BT RAR D AFAE B R FE SR
AR G BH) A S RRBRAL -
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BMWEERREBERMNELREZERAH
BREGFHER RANBESREBRE
1981 F R ADAE O RERZ BB RBES -
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To the shareholders of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 28 February 2014, and of the Group's profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 May 2014
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CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBEEER
Year ended 28 February 2014
HZE2014F2 828 AILFE
2014 2013
Notes 20145 201345
P HKS$'0008% T 5t HK$'00058 % 5t
(Restated) (Z71))
Turnover =2 485 4,057,271 3,662,819
Cost of sales SHE AR (2,283,097) (1,894,715)
Gross profit EF 1,774174 1,668,104
Other income and gains R NS 486 9972 7,575
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHE (1,457,519) (1,393,226)
Administrative expenses 1THRE R (174,231) (143,668)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS KE BT 152,396 138,785
Finance costs Bti5 8 A 8 (51,047) (43,833)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREATZRA 7 101,349 94,952
Income tax expense PRS2 A 11 (27,028) (26,964)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 74,326 67,988
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AL B FIERD
Owners of the Company RARHEEA 12 74,529 68,137
Non-controlling interests SEFER AR SR 2 (203) (149)
74,326 67,988
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO RATEE NEEBRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
Basic and diluted EARREE 14 35.4 cents 71l 32.4 cents il

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REZTHEBARK
Year ended 28 February 2014
HE2014F2A28HILFE
2014 2013
Note 2014 F 2013 F
i 5E HKS$'00038# T HK$'00058% 5T
(Restated) (£%1)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEEEF 74,326 67,988
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HihZEBA
Other comprehensive (loss)/income not HET At BN HEREREMEH
to be reclassified to profit or loss in (E18) W AIER :
subsequent years:
Remeasurement (loss)/gain on defined REBHFTEIMER (BR), A
benefit plan 28 (2,283) 4,906
Income tax effect iR & 377 (809)
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income HET R gEFT I EE AR EMEE
not to be reclassified to profit or loss (F518) WA FE
in subsequent years (1,906) 4,097
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be AErAlgeE D BEBREZ
reclassified to profit or loss in Hih 2EWRA/(B18)EE :
subsequent years:
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINET 2 EH
foreign operations 19,353 (1,918)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEEMPEEA - HRBE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 17,447 2,179
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEZHEBALTE
FOR THE YEAR 91,773 70,167
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: FEAE2EBRARLE :
Owners of the Company ARFIEEA 91972 70,342
Non-controlling interests JEFERR AR SR A 25 (199) (175)
91,773 70,167
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CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

HREMBRREBR
At 28 February 2014
R201442 A28 H

2014 2013
Notes 20145 20134
Ff = HKS$'0008% T 5t HKS$'00058# T 7t
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE KRR 15 137,927 131,233
Intangible assets B EE 17 99 99
Other asset HihEE 18 500 500
Prepayments and deposits BNRRES 21 46,238 29,551
Deferred tax assets RIERIHE E 29 34,908 26,874
219,672 188,257

CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 19 1,903,509 1,684,764
Trade receivables U ER R 20 180,425 175,710
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T3k - &% F&H b FEUGR 21 97,737 57,779
Tax recoverable AU R IE 6,447 8,375
Pledged time deposits BB E TR 22 1,595 =
Cash and cash equivalents BERBELEEY 22 140,738 205,848

2,330,451 2,032,476
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Trade payables e BRR 23 (355,088) (310,281)
Other payables and accruals H e F &% st & A 24 (203,348) (245,404)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTRSRTTREME K 25 (564,231) (355,662)
Convertible bonds AR ES 26 (12,500) (12,842)
Finance lease payables ENRERSE 27 (1,782) (5,692)
Tax payable e B8 (15,485) (5,377)

(1,152,434) (935,258)
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEEFE 1,178,017 1,097,218
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #@BEBRSEE 1,397,689 1,285,475




2014 2013
Notes 2014F 201345
M= HK$'0008% T T HKS$'00058% T 5t
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES B =
Other payables and accruals Hib SRR E A 24 (5,207) =
Convertible bonds AR ES 26 (278,389) (254,831)
Finance lease payables g ERE 27 (586) (2,338)
Employee benefit obligations EEREMEH 28 (17,087) (15,186)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIE B & 29 (26,050) (24,427)
(327,319) (296,782)
NET ASSETS BEEFE 1,070,370 988,693
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 72 F## & A (LR
Issued capital BBITIRA 30 (52,584) (52,584)
Reserves f# 32(a) (1,018,086) (936,210)
(1,070,670) (988,794)
Non-controlling interests FEEEIR AR R A s 300 101
TOTAL EQUITY S (1,070,370) (988,693)
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 May 2014.
EEER 201445 A 30 B a] FII% -
Yau On Yee, Annie 58%Z2 %
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 2-F & Directors %

—_ — — —
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CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEREHR
Year ended 28 February 2014
HZE2014F2A28HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREE AE(
Equity
component
Exchange of Proposed Non-
Issued Share Capital ~fluctuation convertible  Retained final controlling Total
Notes capital  premium  reserves reserve bonds profits dividend Total interests equity
NERH TRRES Rk FER
WE EBEORE  RNEE  ERREE f#fE 2BE¥H REEN  RHRS ait RRER  REEE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS$'000  HKS000  HKS$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS$'000
Aftn  A%Tn  B¥Tn 8T BT TR BMTn  BMTR BMTr EETn
(note30)  (note32  (note32  (mote32  (notes26 (note 13)
(@) ©@) @)  and32
©W)
(W&30)  (Wats2  (W&32 (W32 (Wi26R (z£13)
(i) ©) @)  320e))
At 1 March 2012 R201243A18 52,684 123,365 139,459 94,350 - 502197 26,292 038247 - 938,247
Profit for the year (restated) FEREH(E5) 22 - - - - - 61y - 881 (149) 67988
Other comprehensive income AERABRERA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEBIERCERER
translation of foreign operations = = = (1892) = = = (1892) (26) (1918)
Remeasurement gain on RERATENBHLA -
defined benefit plan, net oftax ~ #1B&E = = = = = 4097 = 4,097 = 4097
Total comprehensive income rERRERALE
for the year = = = (1892) = 72234 = 70342 (175) 70,167
Transfer to capital reserves BRTEAGR - - 1,056 = = (1,056) = = = =
Capital contribution from HERAFERRRLE
non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary = = = = = = = = 74 74
Dividends paid ERBRE - - - = = 2103  (26292)  (2839%) (28,395)
Proposed final dividend (2012/13)  IERERS (201213) 13 = = = = = (14,724) 14,124 = =
Issue of convertible bonds TRk ES 2 - - - - 8600 - - 8600 - 8600
At 28 February 2013 2013524288 52684 123365¢ 140515 92,458+ 8600F  556,548* 147245 988794 (101) 988693




Attributable to owners of the Company

ROAER AR
Equity
component
Share Exchange of Proposed Non-
Issued Share option Capital  fluctuation convertible  Retained final controlling Total
Notes capital  premium  reserve  reserves  reserve bonds profits  dividend Total interests equity
e NESD TRRES Bk FER
Wit EEARE  RHEE i BARE fife <BEBH REEF RERS gt RREE BEEE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
E¥Tn BT EWTn  BNTn  BMTn  BETn  BMTn  B¥Tn A8t BBTn BB
(note30)  (note32  (note32  (note32  (note32 (notes 26 (note 13)
@0  ©@v) @@ @)  ad32
©W)
(WEF30)  (MEEs2 (W32 (WEEs2  (MiE32 (WEHoeR (H3t13)
©0) @) @) @) 32c))
At 1 March 2013 R2013%5381A 52,584 123365 - 140615 92458 8,600 566,548 14724 988794 (101) 988693
Profit for the year TEEER - - - - - - 74529 = 74529 (203) 74326
Other comprehensive income REREBEIEANA -
for the year:
Exchange differences on BERNERER R
translation of foreign operations = = = = 19,349 = = = 19,349 4 19363
Remeasurement oss on RERN:ENEESE
defined benefit plan, net of tax RHE = = = = = = (1,906) = (1,906) = (1,906)
Total comprehensive income FERRENALE
for the year = = = = 19,349 = 72623 = 91972 (199 91
Transfer to capital reserves BRTEAGE - - - 2491 = = (2491) = = = =
Equity-settled share option IREREMERET S
arrangement 3l - - 9,256 - - - - - 9,255 - 9,255
Dividends paid Rk - - - - - - e (478 (19350) - (1935)
Proposed final dividend (2013/14)  #ERERE (2013/14) 13 = = = = = = (14724) 14724 = = =
At 28 February 2014 RE2 AR S84 123365 025  43006* TN GEOD* GO 1474 00610 (00) 1070370
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$1,018,086,000 (2013: HK$936,210,000) in the @ SRR B AR A MBI RR Z R E il

consolidated statement of financial position.

7 ¥1,018,086,000 7T (2013 4 :

936,210,0007¢) ©

B %
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CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

FRERERER
Year ended 28 February 2014
HE2014F2A28BILFE
2014 2013
Notes 20144 20134
i = HK$'000 8% F 5T HKS$'00058# T 7t
(Restated) (Z51))
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& RERE
Profit before tax R AT &R 101,349 94,952
Adjustments for: EEl
Finance costs MEER 8 51,047 43,833
Interest income FlEaWA 6 (298) (458)
Loss on disposal of items of property, LEME  BEKXEEBEER
plant and equipment 7 73 489
Depreciation e 7 48,392 55,055
Impairment of trade receivables FEURBR 3R B 7 - 480
Equity-settled share-option expense ARRHEE 45 O BB AR 22 R 7 9,255 -
Movements in employee benefit obligations BT RAMEBE (382) 365
Write-down of inventories to net M T E =R #EHE
realisable value 7 3,879 3,016
213,315 197,732
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 55 (32hn),/ > (306,848) 5436
Increase in trade receivables FEURBR I Hn (513) (16,055)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and AR - e REA B FIE N
other receivables (59,370) (8,806)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables RETRRFIZ AN, (R D) 43,757 (77,087)
Decrease in other payables and accruals E A e 3% e ST 2 AR (40,513) (37)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations e (FTR) /EENRS (150,172) 101,189
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) BUE (BA) BB FEHE 973 (28,270)
Taxes paid other than Hong Kong EAES SAYMBE B IE (21,884) (46,783)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from e (AR EE2
operating activities Bene s (171,083) 26,136




2014 2013
Notes 2014F 201345
FfE HKS$'0008% T 5t HKS$'00058% T 5t
(Restated) (£71)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHZIRERE
Interest received B UALE 298 458
Increase in pledged time deposits B E B s 0 1,695 =
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BEKRKEERR
plant and equipment (56,092) (41,084)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, &% « BiE &R EBBFEHE
plant and equipment 1,601 103
Purchases of intangible assets BEEREE - (99)
Net cash flows used in investing activities BEFHAZ RS REFH (52,598) (40,622)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES B &EB>HenE
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BT AR E RS E - 250,000
Proceeds from new trade finance IS8 5 R E SRR 451,752 222,478
Repayment of trade finance ERESHE (285,748) (109,276)
Proceeds from new bank loans FTILIRITE TS RE 69,113 10,000
Repayment of bank loans HBRITER (40,798) (56,700)
Proceeds from new other loan G HE A B RS SRIE 12,816 -
Repayment of interest-bearing payable = (120,000)
Transaction costs on issue of
convertible bonds = (2,573)
Capital element of finance lease payments BERENRORE IS (5,698) (6,750)
Interest paid BERFE (27,600) (14,538)
Dividends paid B S (19,351) (28,395)
Interest element of finance lease payments BERERN RO EFBH (231) (449)
Capital contribution from non-controlling BB A R FEIEAR AR R H &
shareholders of a subsidiary = 74
Net cash flows generated from financing BMEEBELACBSREFE
activities 154,255 143,871
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND B2 RBLZEW> () BIFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (69,426) 129,385
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year REHZEE RELZEY 185934 58,449
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INESTE R BB E - FE 2,882 (1,900)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZRERRESZEY
AT END OF YEAR 119,390 185,934
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRBREeEBYEEFIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the A IR R IRERFTS 2
consolidated statement of financial BHERESZEY
position 22 140,738 205,848
Bank overdrafts — secured RITEX — BEA 25 (21,348) (19,914)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the HARERERMIZ
consolidated statement of cash flows B RESZEY 119,390 185,934




STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

B 3% R R R 3R
28 February 2014
R2014%2 A28 H

2014 2013
Notes 20145 201345
P HKS$'0008% T 5t HKS$'00058% T 5t

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE KRR 15 920 706
Interests in subsidiaries WA RIS 16 1,287,354 1,257,397
Deferred tax assets RIERIHE E 29 - 134
1,288,274 1,258,237

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments FERTRR 21 208 183
Tax recoverable AT B IE 386 354
Cash and cash equivalents RHekBELEEY 22 192 195
786 732
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE

Other payables and accruals H e 5 &% st & A 24 (1,920) (2,502)
Convertible bonds AR ES 26 (12,500) (12,842)
(14,420) (15,344)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FEEEEE (13,634) (14,612)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #@BEBRSEE 1,274,640 1,243,625

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Convertible bonds AR E S 26 (278,389) (254,831)
Deferred tax liabilities BB B A 29 (95) -
(278,484) (254,831)
NET ASSETS EEFE 996,156 988,794




2014 2013
Notes 2014F 20134
FfE HKS$'0008% T 5t HKS$'00058% T 5t
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITIRA 30 (52,584) (52,584)
Reserves {1 32(b) (943,572) (936,210)
TOTAL EQUITY e (996,156) (988,794)
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 May 2014.
EEEM 201445 A 30 B A FI% -
Yau On Yee, Annie 58%2 {5
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 2T & Directors 2%

—_ — — —



NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 35 R AR B

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building, 30
Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture, sale and marketing of
jewellery products.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company is Partner Logistics
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), and the ultimate
holding company is Blink Technology Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI, and
the ultimate controlling party is Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (“Mr. Tommy Tse").

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention and are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKS") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

2.1

NEEHR

HIHBIAE (BB AR AR ([ARAA])
TR BEREFMR 2 BREEAR
N R 7] 2 FE A #E 3 BR A7 7 Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda ° ZRRIZ EFBMEBEH
BERNEAWRAEI0REETEHK
ST B R ©

AEBEZTBEBREE  HERE
BREEmR °

Partner Logistics Limited £ B /& 2 i%
RA] RRERRRBPEEE LB
& & ff K 3 #&IBlink Technology
Limited + B2 A T RHER 5%
A o

LTS

AR BRRTERE LA (&
BEAMAE )BT BHBRE
R ([BBMBHREER]) (BEMEA
FRMBHEEL  BERIERA(E
BEREL ) REE)  BEEEBERMA
Z &t RAREE R BEDI B ER
SE M AR o AT R THIRE 2 AR
BRERS - AP BHERAB T (78
BE2® KREHSB  AEEES
ABEREIN TS -



2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 28 February 2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1

HRBLELAE ()

NFEMBREBEARAAR REM B
RENFHER[AEE])BE20145F2
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BB 1 R RAR A A Al Z AR R 3] 5 A RS
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Bz BEE AR 26 BEGER
IEZRBIE-

BakEMEEKREERE 2 SERED
DEBRARREE ARIFERER
o S S BUHRR R R R
BB AFER  TAEERRT
MzEE BfEE#ED  UAREBA
SERBERAZARZSHEA - X
RBEERE  IRGARERERNZEY

i 55 B R A SRR T SCH Y /S 1 )
BETBRT  ZHENEIR A
ZZANREY  AEEGSHNTHE
HEBHREGEGE - HERRM
BRERED B EREEHE
B2 5 ARRERIE

AR B R ENB AR 226 - Bl
THER()ZMBRARZ EE(BIER
B)REME (i) EFFEHERRRER
BREIME : X (i) st AR 2 RETER =
B WHEROERREZ X FEE ; (i)
ERERBRE 2 X FEER (i) B
RAEMELEE ZBHREERE - &
AIERE M2 WA R 2 5% B
HED  REBRAEEER L EHERA
AEXABEMARBZERESE B
FEREM DB ERERRRERT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 7% 3 3R B & ()

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for
the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS T Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

and HKFRS 12 Amendment

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1T Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards —
Government Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 — Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in
June 2012
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22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS 13, HKAS 19
(20171), and amendments to HKAS 1, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs
has had no significant financial effect on these financial statements and there have
been no significant changes to the accounting policies applied in these financial
statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair
value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The
standard does not change the circumstances in which the Group is required to
use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how fair value should be applied
where its use is already required or permitted under other HKFRSs. HKFRS 13
is applied prospectively and the adoption has had no material impact on the
Group's fair value measurements. As a result of the guidance in HKFRS 13, the
policies for measuring fair value have been amended. Additional disclosures
required by HKFRS 13 for the fair value measurements of financial instruments
are included in note 40 to the financial statements.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). Items that could be reclassified (or recycled) to
profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and net
loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets) are presented separately
from items which will never be reclassified (for example, the revaluation of land
and buildings). The amendments have affected the presentation only and have
had no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group. In
addition, the Group has chosen to use the new title “statement of profit or loss”
as introduced by the amendments in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 7% 3 3R B & ()

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

©

HKAS 19 (2011) changes the accounting for defined benefit plans. The revised
standard removes the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and
losses. All actuarial gains and losses are required to be recognised immediately
in OCI. The interest cost and expected return on plan assets used in the
previous version of HKAS 19 are replaced with a net interest amount under
HKAS 19 (2011), which is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset at the start of each annual reporting period.
Prior to the adoption of HKAS 19 (2011), the Group recognised all actuarial
gains and losses in the statement of profit or loss. Upon the adoption of HKAS
19 (2011), all actuarial gains and losses are recognised in OCl immediately. As
a result, the actuarial gains and losses recognised in the statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 28 February 2013 was adjusted to OCI.

Other than the changes to the accounting for defined benefit plans, HKAS 19
(2017) also changes the timing of recognition for termination benefits and the
classification of short term employee benefits. The revised standard requires
termination benefits outside of a wider restructuring to be recognised only
when the offer becomes legally binding and cannot be withdrawn. Under the
revised standard, the distinction between short term and other long term
employee benefits is now based on the expected timing of settlement rather
than employee entitlement. As the Group does not have any significant
employee benefits that are expected to be settled for more than twelve months
after the reporting period or had no events giving rise to termination benefits,
the changes to the accounting for these benefits have had no effect on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 ST BERREZEZ2E

DISCLOSURES (continued) (&)
(c)  (continued) (0 (&
The effects of the changes to the accounting for the Group's defined benefit FE AR A BB & 51 BRI
plan are summarised below: HASERZERMMNT :
Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 28 HHZE=2A 288 LFENEE
February: BaRR2TE -
2014 2013
20145 20134
HKS$'000 8% F 7t HK$'0008% ¥ 7t
Decrease/(increase) in selling and HERDHERD, /(M)
distribution expenses 1,595 (3,428)
Decrease/(increase) in administrative expenses 77k & B4,/ (3 0) 688 (1,478)
Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax BB BT AR, Crid) 2,283 (4,906)
(Increase)/decrease in income tax expense Frigfi A (12 m), H (377) 809
Increase/(decrease) in profit for the year REFRFEIM,CRD) 1,906 (4,097)
Attributable to: FE(L BRIEDH
Owners of the Company ZN/NGIEZ 2SN 1,906 (4,097)
Non-controlling interests FEVE PR AT SR A - -
1,906 (4,097)
Increase/(decrease) in earnings per share RNREEE AL EFRET
attributable to owners of the Company #anCRd)
— Basic and diluted - BEARREE 0.9 cents 1l (1.9) cents 1Ll
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 7% 3 3R B & ()

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(¢)  (continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year

ended 28 February:

22 BHEERBEZ2D

(&)
(© €

HHZ2A28B EFEENGRE
EERARKZFE

2014 2013
20144 20134
HKS$'00058# T T HK$'000;58% F 7T

Increase/(decrease) in profit for the year REFRFIEIM,CRD) 1,906 (4,097)
Recognition of remeasurement (loss)/gain T ALUE R Ble B (B518), A

on defined benefit plan (2,283) 4,906
Decrease/(increase) in income tax effect FrgBUR D (32m) 377 (809)
(Decrease)/increase in other comprehensive REFEMPEYWA - HBRTIA

income for the year, net of tax CRd),/#m (1,906) 4,097
Change in total comprehensive income

for the year AEEEEBANREE - -
Attributable to: FE(E 2 E AL

Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIE ZE DN - -

Non-controlling interests FEVE PR A PR M - -




2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been
issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 39 Amendments

Financial Instruments (Hedge Accounting and
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39)*

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and

23 EEAERERZE)
gt SRl
A4 R A R RA L TR
BB R 2 R A ST B 50

T A -

BAUG®E  2ETA

ERIE9R
BEUBEE  LEIAHMEIIREENE
ERIF9H i ERIE 95 BT RS

BANBRS  BAIETIREEHBRSEN
EHETHRR E95% 7657
BRNBRS

EAIZ30%

L HES

BENBRS  ASMBREENE0%
ERE05% . EAMBREEAZ12ER
BANBRE  BALMERFR(0)
RAIERR 23 -
BAEEN

£ 27%,(2011)
BTk

HKAS 27 (2011) HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment Entities’
Amendments
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?®
HKAS 19 (2011) Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits
Amendments — Defined Benefit Plans: Contributions?
HKAS 32 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’
HKAS 36 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
— Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'
HKAS 39 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Recognition and Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’

Levies'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued
in January 20142

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued
in January 20142

BAUBRE
ERIE 145

EhezE
£19%(201)
L HES

EhGH
FFETAR

B EE
ERZHEN

B EE
ERUHEN

B (AR
RERE
Z88)-
2EENTH

0105220125
BENEREIE

WNEZ 3%
BENERERE

EBSHERS19% (2011) 257
ES &~ REifitd: 3

BRETERE NF BT
PBTA 25 - AHIBEE
REOHER

BAGHRHE0R BT
RERE - FHFREZTHE
2HHE

BRSTERIE 0% 263
PR BIR:HE TETR
ZEERE BB R

HE'

R201451 RERUETERNK
HEEAZ B2

R201451 RBHUETERRK
BB 73]

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
8 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and not

applicable to the Group

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and
revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and revised
HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of operations or financial
position.

1 R201441 A1 BRARRIHBZ G5t &
AR

2 R2014F7 A1 BRUAERAZ Gat 6
EEM
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 TESTBRBE

122

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's statement of profit or loss

to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company's investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest
is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not within the
scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 TESTHERBE W

124

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 28 February. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 TESTHERBE W
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(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset'’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the partyis a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a
parent of the Group;
or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v)  theentity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees
of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);
and

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 TESTHERBE W
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item
of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 55 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 11to 10 years
Plant and machinery 3to 7 years
Motor vehicles 4to0 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The
cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are stated at costs less any impairment
losses.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to
the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception
of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance
costs of such leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature are accounted
for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
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(continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain
with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings
as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
finance costs for loans and in administrative expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at intial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds and finance lease
payables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair
value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a liability is
recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position, net of transaction costs.
On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this
amount is carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated
to the conversion option that is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net
of transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured
in subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to
the liability and equity components when the instruments are first recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
on weighted average basis for homogenous items while it is determined on an actual
unit cost basis for certain unique or specific items and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads, and where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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136

(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen
as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is
the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the
end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Customer loyalty programme

The Group maintains loyalty points programmes within its retail shops in Hong Kong
and The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), which allow customers to accumulate
points award credits upon purchase of goods in the shops and joining the
programmes. The points award credits can then be redeemed for goods or other gifts,
subject to certain terms and conditions. A portion of the consideration received for
the sales transactions from which points award credits are accrued is allocated to the
points award credits issued which is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the points award credits are redeemed or expired.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under the Group's
customer loyalty programmes, are accounted for as multiple element revenue
transactions and the fair value of the consideration received or receivable is
allocated between the goods sold and the award credits granted. The
consideration allocated to the award credits is measured by reference to their
fair value of goods or gifts exchanged after considering past experience of
redemption, discounted to the present value as appropriate. Such consideration
is not recognised as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction — but is
deferred and recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed and
the Group's obligations have been fulfilled;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d)  Management income from franchisee, in the period when services are
rendered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 TESTHERBE W

140

(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Share-based payments

The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees and
suppliers. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby suppliers render goods or services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7 November
2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial valuation model
(the “Binomial Model"), further details of which are given in note 31 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled in employee benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-
settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date
of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control
of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in
the computation of earnings per share.

Employee benefits

Salaries

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to the Group
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are discounted and stated at their
present value.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 TESTHERBE W
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(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operates in the PRC, Malaysia and
Japan are required to participate in central pension schemes operated by the local
municipal government. Contributions are made based on the requirements of the
respective local municipal government. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension schemes.

Long service payments

The Group's net obligations in respect of lump sum long service amounts payable on
cessation of employment in certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method by a qualified actuary, discounted to its present value,
and the fair value of any related plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield
of Exchange Fund Notes at the end of the reporting period that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group's obligations.

Remeasurements arising from long service payment obligations, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained profits through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Long service payments (continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

net interest expense or income

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the statement of financial position, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised
as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company's
memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 TESTHERBE W
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(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("“HKS"), which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries located other than Hong Kong are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below.

Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges of
its property, plant and equipment. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, and will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation charge in the future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets
are tested for impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator exists.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon estimate and the level of future taxable profits. The
carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 28 February
2014 was HKS12,184,000 (2013: HKS5,826,000). The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 28 February 2014 was HKS$9,307,000 (2013: HKS$12,140,000). Further
details are contained in note 29 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly as
a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycle. The directors reassess the estimations at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group determines the impairment of trade receivables based on an assessment
of the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit history
of the customers and other debtors and the current market condition. The directors
reassess the recoverability at the end of each reporting period.

Customer loyalty programmes

The Group measures the cost of the loyalty award credits by reference to the fair
value of goods and gifts redeemed in the prior years and the probability of redemption
is estimated by the directors based on past experience. Actual results may differ from
the estimation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Income taxes

Significant judgements on the future tax treatment of certain transactions are
required in determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are recorded accordingly. The tax
treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation.

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of the share options granted to certain directors, employees and service
providers determined at the date of grant of the respective share options is expensed
over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share-based
payment reserve. In assessing the fair value of the share options, the Binomial Model
was used. The Binomial Model is one of the generally accepted methodologies used
to calculate the fair value of the share options. The Binomial Model requires the input
of subjective assumptions, including the expected dividend yield and expected life of
options. Any changes in these assumptions can significantly affect the estimate of
the fair value of the share options.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on
geographic locations and has two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  PRC (including Hong Kong and Macau); and
(b)  other Asia countries.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments separately for
the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax except
that finance costs and income tax expense are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets and tax recoverable as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, convertible
bonds, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, finance lease payables, and employee
benefit obligations as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices
used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REFTHER @
PRC
(including
Hong Kong Other
and Macau) Asia Countries Total
il Hit
(BREEERERM) TNEIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Year ended 28 February 2014 BZ2014F2H28ALFE
Segment revenue: DEPE AR
Sales to external customers HEFINRE S 4,013,273 43,998 4,057,271
Intersegment sales AEPSH & 34,754 34,754
Other revenue HUA 10,329 (857) 9,972
4,058,356 43,641 4,101,997
Reconciliation: FED -
Elimination of intersegment sales YRR & (34,754)
4,067,243
Segment results: DEBHELE - 159,465 (7,069) 152,396
Reconciliation: SHEE
Finance costs o5 2 A (51,047)
Income tax expense i35t (27,023)
Profit for the year NEFERF 74,326
Segment assets: PEEE : 2,517,687 66,100 2,683,787
Reconciliation: SRR
Elimination of intersegment 5350 [ 85 7 B FE U AR R
receivables (75,019)
Deferred tax assets BRIETRIHE &= 34,908
Tax recoverable AU E R A 6,447
Total assets BEE 2,560,123



4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4, RBEHITER @

PRC
(including
Hong Kong Other
and Macau) Asia Countries Total
HE Htt
(BFEEBRAEM) SNER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Segment liabilities: AEEE (553,570) (85,092) (638,662)
Reconciliation: JBED
Elimination of intersegment 5350 [ 85 A 2B FE A R AR
payables 75,019
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITREME R
other borrowings (564,231)
Convertible bonds AR E 5 (290,889)
Tax payable e IR (15,485)
Deferred tax liabilities EERHBRE (26,050)
Finance lease payables PN RS (2,368)
Employee benefit obligations EEENER (17,087)
Total liabilities HwaE (1,479,753)
Other segment information: HitnEhaEs
Depreciation e 46,577 1,815 48,392
Capital expenditure* BARFIR* 53,669 2,459 56,128
@ Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. @ BARZBEAEDE  WERRER

EIAEE ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RBEFHTER @
PRC
(including
Hong Kong Other
and Macau) Asia Countries Total
il Hit
(BREEBRERM) SNE R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
(Restated) (£71)) (Restated) (£71))
Year ended 28 February 2013 BZE2013F2H28HLEFE
Segment revenue: DEPE AR
Sales to external customers SHE TINREFF 3,529,095 33,724 3,562,819
Intersegment sales NEDSHE 36,106 - 36,106
Other revenue E A 7,564 11 7,575
3,672,765 33,735 3,606,500
Reconciliation: SN
Elimination of intersegment sales YR ER & (86,106)
3,670,394
Segment results G 146,131 (7,346) 138,785
Reconciliation: 2EES
Finance costs B E A (43,833)
Income tax expense {51 (26,964)
Profit for the year NEFERF 67,988
Segment assets: PEEE 2,201,170 47,834 2,249,004
Reconciliation: SR
Elimination of intersegment 7350 [ 8 7 6 FE U AR R
receivables (63,520)
Deferred tax assets EERBBEE 26,874
Tax recoverable EEEL 8,375
Total assets BERE 2,220,733



4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4, RBEHITER @

PRC
(including
Hong Kong Other
and Macau) Asia Countries Total
H Hit
(BEEBRREM) SNER FoEy
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BT T BT T BT T
(Restated) (£51) (Restated) (£71)

Segment liabilities: DEEME : (552,361) (66,844) (619,205)
Reconciliation: FED -
Elimination of intersegment 53 5B [ 8 A 2B FE A AR R

payables 63,520
Interest-bearing bank and FRRITERREMER

other borrowings (355,662)
Convertible bonds AT B 5 (267,673)
Tax payable RERHIE (6:377)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE (24,427)
Finance lease payables ENRERE (8,030)
Employee benefit obligations EBEMNZE (15,186)
Total liabilities waE (1,232,040)
Other segment information: HibpEpaEr
Depreciation e 53,412 1,643 55,055
Capital expenditure* BRI * 47,447 1,785 49,232
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. * i:‘z;@%ﬁv‘ﬁmi BB REER
Information about major customers BFREXEEF2ER

The turnover from the Group's largest customer amounted to less than 10% of the
Group's total turnover for the current and prior years.

RAFER FFEREAEEZTAER
FREXVIEAERBEETHIRN
10% °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

5. TURNOVER 5. =
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture, sale and marketing of AEENFEXEBHIEE  HERM
jewellery products. Turnover represents the sales value of jewellery products sold to BIRE A o & E BRI ER
customers, net of value added tax and discount. RITMENHER TP RE 58
EEEZFE -
6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. HAtWAR Wz
2014 2013
20144 20134
HKS$'000 8% T 5t HKS$'000 5% T 7t
Interest income FEWA 298 458
Net foreign exchange gains VR RE H A 3,170 251
Government grant* BT #8 B + 1,025 2,098
Management income from franchisee N BR R B B U 1,044 =
Others H A, 4,435 4,768
9,972 7,575
* This represents subsidies from municipal governments in Mainland China. There are no unfulfilled * LTS ¥ i o B POt T BT ER S AO 4R R o
conditions or contingencies relating to these subsidies. ZE AW IR AN R EEFRETZ
TRt
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7. BRBRIER

AEEZBHABFENRGtA) :

2014 2013
20145 2013 F
HKS$'0008% T 5t HKS$'00058% T 5t
(Restated) (£71)
Cost of goods sold* SHEM A 2,279,218 1,891,699
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value WEFEE A #5FE 3,879 3,016
Depreciation wE 48,392 55,055
Minimum lease payments in respect of BT REFREHEEY
operating lease for land and buildings** R E 204,717 174,270
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETE & 2,803 2,610
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ EERMAX (BERESMHE
remuneration (note 9)): (Mi5E9)) :
Wages, salaries and other benefits I&  HeREMER 555,082 477,266
Equity-settled share option expense UARR B E 2 BERRIE B 8,673 -
Pension scheme contributions*** ETE HERURIRET B RO 9,170 8,204
Employee benefit obligations (note 28) R BEFIZ (R 28) 416 488
573,341 485,958
Equity-settled share option expense to R RGP A AR A E
service providers A EE R 582 -
Impairment of trade receivables (note 20) e U B B (P 7 20) - 480
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment REBEAZEE 73 489
Foreign exchange differences, net SEEN =M (3170) (251)
* Cost of goods sold includes HK$92,272,000 (2013: HK$83,585,000) relating to employee benefit expense, HERABERBENAY - fERA

R A8 & T & B A A B R0 5 92,272,000
7t (20134 : 7 %83,5850007T ) ° A
BHFEME AL FFTSIS B

depreciation, and operating lease payments, which are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above for each of these types of expenses.

\:Fl °
e Not including commission payments in relation to sales counters in department stores and shopping * TRERHESEFANXNTERA
malls. RAIRESHASE
bk At 28 February 2014, there were no forfeited contributions available to the Group to reduce its ok 201462828 H - WHEE RBPR

AT AR B P AR S R R YR IRET

B -

contributions to pension scheme in future years (2013: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 7% 3 3R B & ()

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HIEH
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEBERZAWNMAT
Group
REE
2014 2013
2014 F 2013 F
HK$'000 &%+ ¢ HKS$'000:&4F T
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and other loans  ZBRAERNE2HEEZ RITER
wholly repayable within five years BEXRETERNFE 14,758 14,538
Interest on convertible bonds AHRREF TS 36,058 28,846
Interest on finance leases BEMAEHFS 231 449
51,047 43,833




DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 9. EEME

Directors' remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the REEBHMERXIMARDAZES L
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing MR A ([ L8R ]) RE B R A&
Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: F161(ZHE  AFENESHE
WEWT -
Group
REE
2014 2013
2014F 2013F
HKS$'000 8% T 5t HKS$'00058% T 5t
Fees e 1,440 1,080
Other emoluments: HAhFrmN
Salaries and allowances N 1 5,797 5715
Performance related bonuses ELR IR AR 2 1EE) 3,359 1,932
Equity-settled share option expense ARG HE 45 8 2 B S 2 3,160 -
Pension scheme contributions BIREFTRIHK 30 28
12,346 7,675
13,786 8,755
Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of HKS$1,440,000 (2013: EEMeBREFAMN THERTES
HKS$1,080,000) paid to independent non-executive directors during the year. #)30 € B #51,440,000 7T (2013 5 - 8

#1,080,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EEMEw
During the year, certain directors were granted share options, in respect of their REARNRZBRETE ETES
services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the Company. Further details REF ARL R S H AR B B RIS IR
of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in note 31 to the financial Mt o AR RIBEIRER & 2 — P 5t
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the BRI BRKRIT3 - ZZEEESR
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of BHERNERRARR L BREZ A
grant. The amount included in the financial statements for the current year is included FEE BERREBBHEE - Bt A
in the above directors’ remuneration and employee benefit expense disclosures. RAFEEMBREZ SR ERE

=M RESENRKRE

Equity-
settled
Performance share Pension
Salaries and related option scheme
Fees allowances bonuses expense contributions Total
KRB LUREEE Eie
ik HER2E ZRE ZBREER &I B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT T BT T BETT BETT

2014
Executive directors: HITESE
Yau On Yee, Annie 3% {2 = 3123 2,400 734 15 6,272
Erwin Steve Huang FEEK - 1,120 363 1,213 - 2,696
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence BTE = 1,554 596 1,213 15 3,378
= 5,797 3,359 3,160 30 12,346
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Wang Guosheng FEIR - - - - - -
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher* ARE* 360 - - - - 360
Chui Chi Yun, Robert* BRI 360 - - - - 360
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin* A 360 - - - - 360
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael* BRABE * 360 = = = = 360
1,440 = = = = 1,440
1,440 5,797 3,359 3,160 30 13,786
* Independent non-executive Directors 0 BUIFTESR
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

9. EEM=Ew

Performance Pension
Salaries and related scheme
Fees allowances bonuses contributions Total
ERRIFHED BiE
we HE R 2@ sTEMERR ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T BET T BET T BET T
2013
Executive directors: HITES !
Yau On Yee, Annie BB &% = 3,144 1,350 14 4,508
Erwin Steve Huang =EK - 1,080 243 = 1,323
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence TR - 1,491 339 14 1,844
= 5715 1,932 28 7,675
Non-executive directors: FHTES :
Wang Guosheng F B - - - - -
Chui Chi Yun, Robert* EEr 360 = = = 360
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin* I 360 - - - 360
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael* BRAA S * 360 = = = 360
1,080 = = = 1,080
1,080 5715 1,932 28 8,755
& Independent non-executive Directors 0 B S TES

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors £ N 4 E A B PR S T 0B ST JE AT
during the year (2013: Nil). EEH (20134 : &) -

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any FERNEEWEI T EAREREZ K
remuneration during the year (2013: Nil). EEIB SR HE (2013 4F : &) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. AEESFHFMES

ERNAEERERRTHESBIE2
Z(2013F : 3% )EF - Hex e
BRI LI EY - AFEEHMBRIE
(2013F 2% ) Ex=mFIEESEE

The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors (2013: three),
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining three (2013: two) non-director, highest paid employees
are as follows:

FHHEMSER T

Group

AEE
2014 2013
2014F 201345
HKS$'000 8% F HKS$'00058 % 5t
Salaries and allowances e RoE 5148 3,508
Performance related bonuses BRI AM 7 2E 1,899 808
Equity-settled share option expense LARRIEREH 2 R 2 2,608 =
Pension scheme contributions BIREFTBIHK 30 28
9,685 4,344

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within MeENFUTEIZZSFHMIEESR

160

the following bands is as follows: EEAZIT :

Group

AEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH EEAH
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 #5#£1,500,001 FTE A 2,000,000 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 75# 2,000,001 7L £ 745 2,500,000 7T 1 =
HKS$2,500,001 to HKS$3,000,000 752,500,001 7L Z 7% #5 3,000,000 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HKS3,500,000 5% 3,000,001 7L £ 745 3,500,000 7T 1 =
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 75 3,500,001 ST E A 4,000,000 7T - -
HK$4,000,001 to HKS4,500,000 75 4,000,001 ST E 745 4,500,000 7T 1 =
8 2




11.

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 10. AEBeHFMEE @
No emolument was paid by the Group to any top five highest paid individuals as an F NN R B B AR ) (E o] L B R = 3 M
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office BEZH#E (20134 : &) - EAR
during the year (2013: Nil). BRMAREMATEEFGZ S -

SERBEAE
During the year, share options were granted to the non-directors in respect of their FRETFHESHREHUAEENR
services to the Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures in note BERBRE £ —SHBRNRTH
31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has been HRMFEIT - ZFEEGEAERE
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined BRANERZBERELAFEEZS
as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the FENKEL B BAKEE - LEFAR
current year is included in the above non-directors’ highest paid employees’ REEZHBRERER Lk Ik
remuneration disclosures. EEEEZHERE -
INCOME TAX 11. PR
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the BB ME B TRB A F R E AR
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits HIRNBEZ AT ERREBA - RE
assessable other than Hong Kong have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing FA%E16.5% (20134 : 16.5%) 51 & °
in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. RE B AN R A8 & 2 fif R R 2%
HTREFTEM A B AR R E
Group
REB
2014 2013
20144 2013 %
HK$'0008% T T HKS$'00058# T 7t
(Restated) (£71)
Current — Hong Kong RER — BB
Charge for the year FRHIA 626 4139
(Overprovision)/underprovision in prior years BEFE (RERE) BETR (611) 542
Current — Other than Hong Kong ARE — BALASN
Charge for the year FRHIE 33,085 28,372
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREBETE 45 338
Deferred (note 29) IRSE (PFEE29) (6,122) (6,427)
27,023 26,964




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

11. INCOME TAX (continued) 11. Fﬁ‘?ﬁa‘*ﬁ;(%)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory rates RARARFENE A R MK
for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are FERVERER AT R X EIWEAR
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates are as follows: BRI BEBERET :
Group
REE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'00038% T 5t HK$'000;8% F 5t
(Restated) (£%1)
Profit before tax BRI R F 101,349 94,952
Tax at the statutory rate AR R 24,007 20,753
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the distributable  {&ZAR&EEMRRBEK Z HB A 72 7 5k
profits of the Group's PRC subsidiaries BF 5% st E M AT S R B B 268 1,392
Profits entitled to tax exemption A R EBOBRFNBIE - (854)
Expenses not deductible for tax RAH2 2 8,626 8,001
Income not subject to tax ARG 2 WA (1,255) (1,447)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods ERAE IR BiERE (415) (667)
Tax losses and temporary differences not AEAREBEREHER
recognised 2,883 5,243
Temporary differences recognised in respect of ERAEFENERER
previous periods (6,525) (6,343)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BEUAME EAfR 2 BRI VR AR BR 9 22
previous periods (566) 880
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate of 26.7% BAKE267%BEH K (20134 © 28.4%)
(2013: 28.4%) SHEZ A 27,023 26,964
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12.

(k="

14.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 12. RATREB ABLEF
COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 28 HE2014F2 8281 FF ' NARHE
February 2014 includes a profit of HK$17,458,000 (2013: HK$70,342,000) which has B A SA B SEAR AN ER
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note 32(b)). RN 2 —HRF %7 ¥ 17,458,000 7T
(20134 : 7 #70,342,0007T ) (i =E
32(b)) °
DIVIDENDS 13. KR
2014 2013
20144 20134
HKS$'0008% T HKS$'00058% 5T
Interim dividend of HK$0.022 (2013: HKS0.01) per s H#ii& B &A% @A 515 0.022 7T
ordinary share paid (20134 : /% 0.017T) 4,627 2,103
Proposed final dividend of HKS0.07 FORAREIR S ER T BARBE 0.07 T
(2013: HKS$0.07) per ordinary share (20134 : 7% 0.077T) 14,724 14,724
19,351 16,827
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the Company's RNEEREEZ RBREEFARA
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting and has not been recognised REERIT 2 RRBFAE LIR2
as a liability at the end of the reporting period. AR AL - B W ARR IR E IRER A
BfE-
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 14.

OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of HKS$74,529,000 (2013 restated:
HKS$68,137,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 210,336,221
(2013:210,336,221) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to basic earnings per share amounts presented for the
years ended 28 February 2014 and 2013 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the
share options and convertible bonds outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic earnings per share amounts presented.

RABHEEABILEER
B

SREARF S EEFNAL DR
B A FE 15 & F 7= 7% # 74,629,000 7T
(20135 &% : B#68,137,0007T) K&
4 9B B 15 IHE 9123 210,336,221
f% (20134 : 210,336,221 f% ) & i@ A%

B -

=

BN E E2014%2013F2 A 288 It
FREAREBTHBIMERATRRE
2014 % 20132 RA28B It FE 2 &
PR EARBFIEL FE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 7% 3 3R B & ()

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ - BB K&

Group A EE
Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
B £B
TRIEFT  EEREEE PET AE Fb ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
As at 28 February 2014 72014625 28H
As at 28 February 2013 and 7A2013F2H 288K
1 March 2013: 2013F3A18 :
Cost PR AR 95,188 15,377 449,111 5,858 565,534
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (36,068) (12,839) (381,556) (3,838) (434,301)
Net carrying amount BREFE 59,120 2,538 67,555 2,020 131,233
At 1 March 2013, net of M2013E3H1H -
accumulated depreciation MR R E 59,120 2,538 67,555 2,020 131,233
Additions NE - 1,776 54,081 271 56,128
Disposals & - - (1,528) = (1,528)
Depreciation provided during FRITERE
the year (1,814) (1,007) (45,094) (477) (48,392)
Exchange realignment HE N A - - 486 - 486
At 28 February 2014, net of 201442 288 -
accumulated depreciation MR R E 57,306 3,307 75,500 1,814 137,927
At 28 February 2014: M201462 288 :
Cost [DES 95,188 17,153 490,482 6,129 608,952
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (37,882) (13,846) (414,982) (4,315) (471,025)
Net carrying amount BRTEE{E 57,306 3,307 75,500 1,814 137,927




15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. 1%« BERZHEw)
Group AEE
Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
Bt HKEB
TREF BERER SES AE wz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT T BT T BT T
As at 28 February 2013 R201352H28H
As at 1 March 2012: M2012%€3H1H :
Cost RN 95,188 14,729 415,586 5,858 531,361
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (34,254) (12,997) (343,034) (8,144) (393,429)
Net carrying amount BRTENHE 60,934 1,732 72,552 2,714 137,932
At 1 March 2012, net of 201263 /18 -
accumulated depreciation Mk AR5t E 60,934 1,732 72,5652 2,714 137,932
Additions NE - 1,620 47,513 = 49,133
Disposals HE = (92) (500) = (592)
Depreciation provided during FNTERE
the year (1,814) (722) (51,825) (694) (55,055)
Exchange realignment B 3 A % - - (185) - (185)
At 28 February 2013, net of R20136F2828H -
accumulated depreciation Nk R E 59,120 2,538 67,555 2,020 131,233
At 28 February 2013: 201342280 :
Cost B AR 95,188 15,377 449,111 5,858 565,534
Accumulated depreciation 2EHTE (36,068) (12,839) (381,556) (3,838) (434,301)
Net carrying amount BREFE 59,120 2,538 67,555 2,020 131,233

During the year, the amount of additions to the Group's furniture, fixtures and
equipment financed by new leases was HK$36,000 (furniture, fixtures and equipment
and motor vehicles in 2013: HKS8,049,000). At 28 February 2014, the carrying amount
of the furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor vehicles held under finance leases
of the Group amounted to HK$6,492,000 (2013: HKS11,779,000).

As at 28 February 2014, certain of the Group's buildings were pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (notes 35(b) and 35(c)).

RER - UEEREMEZ R -
K %A 575 % 36,000 7T (2012 4
FBZEM KERSBRAIERD
#8,049,0007T ) » 201452 A28 H
UREHEREZERM  RERRE
K S 1) BR T 1B 4974 % 6,492,000 7T
(20134 : #&# 11,779,000 7T ) °

MR2013%E2H28H » AEEE TEF
ERAREAREBEGERRITERZ
AR (M £ 35(b) R HizE35(c)) °
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15.

M - = RRE®
KAT

Furniture, fixtures
and equipment

B - REBERRE
HKS$'000
BT T
As at 28 February 2014 7201452 H28H
As at 28 February 2013 and 1 March 2013: M2013F2 A28 H K% 201343 A 1R :
Cost AR 10,372
Accumulated depreciation 2FHiTE (9,666)
Net carrying amount REFE 706
At 1 March 2013, net of accumulated depreciation M201363 A1 « HIBRBFHTE 706
Additions NE 560
Depreciation provided during the year FENIERE (346)
At 28 February 2074, net of accumulated depreciation R201442 A28 8 » MR BHTE 920
At 28 February 2014: M201452 A 280 :
Cost R 10,932
Accumulated depreciation 2EITE (10,012)
Net carrying amount AREVFE 920




15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

M - = RRE@®

Company AN F]
Furniture, fixtures
and equipment
B - RBERRE
HK$'000
BT T
As at 28 February 2013 201352528 H
As at 1 March 2012: R201243818 :
Cost AR 9,801
Accumulated depreciation BEHHTE (9,402)
Net carrying amount REFE 399
At T March 2012, net of accumulated depreciation R201243A18 » HIBREFE 399
Additions NE 571
Depreciation provided during the year FTE RS (264)
At 28 February 2013, net of accumulated depreciation R201342 A288 MR BHE 706
At 28 February 2013: 201342 H28H :
Cost [DEN 10,372
Accumulated depreciation ZETE (9,666)
Net carrying amount AREVFE 706

The Group's land and buildings included above are held under the following lease

REE itz £33 REFRTHHEH

terms: S

Hong Kong The PRC Total
BB FE BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T

As at 28 February 2014 7R201452H28H
Long term leases REIFEL 5,928 - 5,928
Medium term leases HERFE Y 51,378 = 51,378
57,306 = 57,306

As at 28 February 2013 M201352H28H
Long term leases REAMEL 6,098 - 6,098
Medium term leases FRHEATE A 53,022 = 53,022
59,120 = 59,120

At the end of the reporting period, the property ownership certificates in respect of the
Group's property interests held under long term leases in Mainland China have not
been issued by the relevant PRC government authority. The net carrying amount of
the properties of the Group was HKS2 (2013: HKS2) at the end of the reporting period.

RERER - Bl A AE B BT 6P 0 AR Bt
AEEEFRBANDEERELE
WERAEZAE AEBNZEY
ERGEHEBNEREERBE 2L
(20134 : ¥ 27T) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 7% 3 3R B & ()

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

16. B EHED

Company
/NG|
2014 2013
20144 20134
HKS$'000 8% F ¢ HKS$'0008% F T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LTI - FRAKA 712,742 712,742
Interest-bearing loan due from a subsidiary FEUPH B A RIS E K 166,502 153,706
Due from subsidiaries NI 408,110 455,664
1,287,354 1,322,112
Impairment WA - (64,715)
1,287,354 1,257,397

Certain subsidiaries for which impairment provision had been made have become
profit making in recent years. In the opinion of the directors, the recoverable amounts
of those subsidiaries have exceeded their carrying values and accordingly, the
impairment provision has been written back during the current year.

The interest-bearing loan due from a subsidiary is unsecured, carries interest at Hong
Kong Prime Rate plus 3% per annum (2013: Hong Kong Prime Rate plus 3% per
annum) and has no fixed terms of repayment.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

T BT ERFER KB QR EL
FEHRRFRN EEZRR - SLHE
ARWAIKE S EHRELREE -
It - R RS A BRR (L (R 1 ¢

FEUHT B A RIEH R E R TR - R
BB REEN EIFMEKI%(20134 :
BBEBRBENEMENEI%) 5B
R 3 B B E & KA o

FEN B A RIBRAR DA - 8K
I A E R R



16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. MIBA AR

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: MEBARZFENT :
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary Percentage of equity attributable
registration and capital/registered to the Company Principal
Name business capital AARFERERD activities
R/ 5 BRTEBRA Direct Indirect
£ R R AEE HiZ B TEER
Beijing Qi Li Yun Jewellery PRC Renminbi (‘RMB") = 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited*~@ H 1,000,000 KEZE
ILREFEHEER AR AR 1,000,000 7T
Beijing Qi Li Yun Trading PRC RMB3,000,000 = 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited*~@ FE AR¥3,000,0007T KEZE

LRIHEBRARATC

Beijing Tse Sui Luen Jewellery PRC United States dollars = 100 Jewellery
Company Limited**@ ("BTSL") FE ('USS") manufacturing
I RHRBEKEER AR C ([ LR 2,000,000 and trading
2,000,000 7T RESERES
Concepts Management (H.K.) Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS1 = 100 Trademarks holding
EISER (BE)BRAR EE AT RHER
Excellent Ford Development Hong Kong HKS10,000 = 100 Jewellery trading
Limited ("EF") B 7% 10,0007T KEES

BHERARAR ((EHER])

Guangzhou Hong Yun Jewellery PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited*"@ B AR%1,000,0007 GHTE
FNABHKERRAR O

Guangzhou Jingshi Jewellery Company  PRC HKS$21,000,000 = 100 Manufacturing and
Limited (“GZ Jingshi")# @ H 51 21,000,000 7 distribution of
BNBEAKRE BB AR ([BEMNER]) e jewellery
RESERDH
Gusngzhou Tai Yi Trading Company PRC HKS$8,000,000 = 100 Jewellery trading
Limited (“GZ Tai Yi")*@ FE #1#8,000,000 7T KEES

BMNFEHBERAR ([EMNRE]) e

Guangzhou Xi Yun Jewellery Company ~ PRC RMB2,000,000 = 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited*~@ B AR#2,000,0007T KEZTE

BNEEREERAA O
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

16. B A TR @

Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary Percentage of equity attributable
registration and capital/registered to the Company Principal
Name business capital AARFERER 2L activities
B3/ FE R BRTEBERA, Direct Indirect
£ Rk AR AEE =E:3 BF:3 FTEXH
Guangzhou Xi Yun Trading Company PRC RMB3,000,000 = 100 Jewellery retailing
Limited# @ FE AR #3,0000007T KETE
BNEEHEERAA
Guangzhou Xiang Yun Jewellery PRC RMB3,000,000 = 100 Jewellery trading
Company Limited*~@ B AER#3,000,0007T KEEH
BMEERERRAR YO
Impromptus Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong HKS10,000 - 100 Goldsmith and
5 75#10,000 7T jewellery trading
ReERUBEH
Liberty Mark Limited® BVI USS1 = 100 Investment holding
RBRRHE 1% RERR
Infinite Assets Corp@ British Virgin HKS277,254 = 100 Investment holding
Islands (“BVI") I 277,254 7T REZR
EEEAHS
Shanghai Fu Yun Jewellery PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited* @ FE AR¥1,000,0007C KEZE
FERERBEERAF O
Shanghai Fu Yun Trading PRC RMB3,000,000 = 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited* @ FE AR¥3,000,0007C KEZE
FEREREERAF O
Shenzhen Jingyan Jewellery PRC HKS$8,000,000 = 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited* @ FE 71 8,000,000 75 distribution of

R AEHIAE S AR AR YO

jewellery
RERERDH



16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. fiB A TR ®

Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary Percentage of equity attributable
registration and capital/registered to the Company Principal
Name business capital ADRFEREE DL activities
B3/ FE R BRTEERA, Direct Indirect
£ Rk AEMRAEE =E: BFE3 FTEXK
TSL Investment (B.V.1.) Limited® BVI HKS$1,000 100 = Investment holding
HEELHS ##1,000 7T REZER
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Company Hong Kong HKS$34,000 = 100 Jewellery trading
Limited (“TSLJ")** B #1 34,000 T and retailing
AHBHKEER AR ([HHRBEKE ) KBEHRTE
Tse Sui Luen Investment (China) BVI USS$6,863 = 100 Investment holding
Limited® HEEAHS 6,863% 7T REZR
AR E (FE) FRARC
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Retailing Malaysia Malaysian Ringgits = 100 Jewellery retailing
Sdn. Bhd® BSRAE 2,400,000 KEZTE
5k #E 28 2,400,007
Tse Sui Luen (Shenzhen) Jewellery PRC HKS$12,500,000 = 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited.* @ F 112,500,000 75 distribution of
i ORI KB BR AR el jewellery
KREBEERDH
TSL Management Services Limited Hong Kong HKS2 = 100 Management and
Wi E R RB AR BB 2T administrative
services
B RITH AR
TSL Jewellery (Export) Company Hong Kong HKS19,824,775 = 100 Jewellery export
Limited BB 7#619,824,7757C REHO
AMBAE (HO)BRAR
TSL Jewellery (Macau) Limited® Macau Macau Patacal = 100 Jewellery retailing
TSLIRE (ORFY) AR A @ R (“MOP") 100,000 KEZE
BRI 100,000 7T
TSL Jewellery (H.K.) Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$40,000,490 - 100 Jewellery retailing
HAMBIAE (B8 BRAA &t 7 40,000,490 7T RETE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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16.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. B A TR @

Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary Percentage of equity attributable
registration and capital/registered to the Company Principal
Name business capital AARFERER 2L activities
FR3L/FE AR BRTLBERAE Direct Indirect
g K& R AEE BHE B TEEY
TSL Manufacturing and Distribution Hong Kong HKS$67,000,000 = 100 Investment holding,
Limited (“TSL M&D") B& 75 67,000,000 7T procurement,
AHBEER D HER DA manufacturing
([AmBELE R S 8H]) and distribution
of jewellery
BEER - 5HE -
TSL Properties Management Limited Hong Kong HKS1,000 = 100 Property holding
MinEMEERER AR B 7%1,0007T and investment
BAEDERERE
TSLJ Kabushiki Kaisha (“TSLJKK")™@  Japan Japanese Yen = 97.5 Jewellery retailing
TSLIMRA &4t ([TSLIKK]) ™ B 30,000,000 and wholesales
30,000,000 A% KETER#E
# Unofficial translation # FFIERZER
## In addition to the ordinary shares, TSLJ has issued 36,574 deferred shares of HK$1,000 each ## BRI mARSN - IR E #1736,574
&S A% 1,000 7T 2 IEFE AR
2 Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign enterprise RIBHEIEREEMANERE
o Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability company e REFEEEEMAAREEAR
Y Registered under the laws of Japan as limited liability company Ly REBEAREEEMABREMAR
@ Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network @ AR IR FBR K E A ERAT
sk E b 2k BIBR K B A B P EE 1%
A Incorporated during the year A RERKIL



16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. MIBA AR

During the year, the Group subscribed additional shares in TSLJKK for a cash FAN - NEBRTSLIKKAE &K E
consideration of JPY15,000,000 (equivalent to approximate HK$1,181,000), and the 150000008 7t( 48 & ©K & & %
Group's equity interest in TSLJKK increased to 97.5% (2013: 95%). 1,181,000 7T ) R EEINR D - A&
B TSLIKK B 412 2= 97.5% (2013 4F
95%) ©
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the EEZRR/LERAIIEARARZHBR
directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion RIARFEVERFEEBIBRAE
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the EFEEXEHDONAAR c EFRA
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. REEBHBARZFERERBR
B1E °
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B &=

Group

REE

HK$'000

BT T

Cost at 1 March 2012 MR201263 A1 B ZKA -

Additions RE 99

At 28 February 2013, 1 March 2013 and 28 February 2014 20132 H28H » 201343 H1HK%2014562H28H 99
The Group's trademarks of HK$99,000 (2013: HKS99,000) at 28 February 2014 are NE B 2 BS54 99,000 ;TR 2014
assessed as having indefinite useful life because the Group is able to renew the legal 2 A28 H (20134 : ##99,0007T)
right of the trademarks at insignificant cost indefinitely. WIREERERAFH  EAAEHE

AJPARA T X B R AT 7] &R A4
JEEE M -

18. OTHER ASSET 18. HittEE
Group
REE
2014 2013
201445 20134
HKS$'0008% F ¢ HKS$'0008% F T
Cost of membership for a seat at The Chinese SREEFISFEXAE
Gold and Silver Exchange Society 500 500
The above other asset was stated at cost less any impairment losses. il E B EE TR AR AR E B K

SRR ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
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STATEMENTS (continued)

19. INVENTORIES 19. &
Group
REE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 8% F T HKS$'000 58 T 7t
Raw materials =k 62,607 94,967
Work in progress pes- T 68,841 51,5657
Finished good Sk m 1,772,061 1,438,240
1,903,509 1,584,764

20.

At 28 February 2013, the inventories held by 6 subsidiaries (the “Subsidiaries”) with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$834,538,000 were pledged as continuing security
for the trade payables arising from the supply of polished diamonds and precious
stones from time to time by Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited (“Rosy Blue HK") to the

Subsidiaries (the “Payables”) (note 35(d)).

The above continuing pledge was released by Rosy Blue HK on 18 February 2014.

7201352 A28H - 6RMBRAN([5%
EMBARNKFEZEFEE TER
H AR (B 475 % 834,538,0007T * 1EA
Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited ([Rosy
Blue HK ) s 3z ZH 8 A mlL /e
REAREEBAOMEL ZEHER
([FZIERERFR ) 2 FBIRE (T2 H
Bfi3E 35(d)) ©

Rosy Blue HK B 72201442 A 18 A fi#
FR Bt AR o

TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. FEURBRERX
Group
ANEEE
2014 2013
2014F 20134
HKS'000 &4 F 5 HKS$'0008% F T
Trade receivables JFEURBR TR 180,425 176,190
Impairment RE = (480)
180,425 175,710




20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group's retail sales are normally made on cash basis. Credit card receivables
from financial institutions in respect of retail sales are aged within one month. Apart
from retail customers, the Group allows an average credit period from 30 to 90 days
to other customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing in general.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based
on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

20. FEUWERR )

AEENTEHE RURERS °
HREEMREHBEEEZ BKERFR
BRARZERIN—ER - REERP
Sh - AREEREMERFRHFHI0E
0 R ZERARH - AN [ R I B 1) B
WM S B O B DA BE PR (R B R o
BENASRTE R R EEEELEM -
HREAREZEASAKENEKES
RABBEANETS » AWM &EESH
BAEERR o 78 5 B 5 H UK
BRI A AR R T E A
MREERE - BURA—RIGAR

B o

SN

RBERR  BRERBEEEREH
SHERBRA BB REROTAT :

Group

REE
2014 2013
20145 20134

HK$'000 5% F ¢ HK$'000 8% F T

Within T month 1EAR 159,234 149,953
1 to 2 months 122AR 14,152 15,730
2 to 3 months 2Z3EAR 1,230 2,371
Over 3 months @Bid3fEA 5,809 7,656
Total trade receivables 48 pE IR SR 180,425 175,710

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

FEMBR R 2 BER BT

Group
REME
2014 2013
20144 20135
HKS$'0008% T 5t HKS$'0008% F T

At 1 March M3A1H 480 878
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) BRI E R (ME7) - 480
Amount written off as uncollectible s R IR E 25 (480) (323)

= 480
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables as at 28 February
2013 was a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of HK$480,000 with a
carrying amount before provision of HK$S480,000. The individually impaired trade
receivables related to customers that were in default in principal payments and the
receivables were not expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables net of provisions at the end of the reporting
period, is as follows:

20. FEWERR )

201342 288 + it (IR
S B B 85 T 75 15 480,000 7T 2 B B 2
REEER R - BERMERESRER
75 15 480,000 7T 12 Bl R {E FE Ut BR 51
B EEEEACNENESE
B UHERAEEKE o

P E PR - EURRFTREEH A
HRHBRA BB REROTAT

Group

TEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HKS$'0008% F 5t HK$'00084 5
Neither past due nor impaired R RIERE 171,315 174,787
Less than 6 months past due B 618 A 9,060 873
Over 6 months past due #HRRRIA 616 A 50 50
180,425 175,710

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number of
diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

7 48 280 B SR (B 2 MR BR SR B A
BENBZEREFEGRH

B8 BB i AR (B 2 18 U BR R B ) AR
SENREHERFZETBILIEFPE
o RIBBELR  ARFEERA
BB ZZRFAEHRERE - BT
MR EEERTERESAES M
BRI A R AR E o



21.

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. FEUYERFR )
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables net of provisions are AEEEKRRZ REEL T EE
denominated in the following currencies: REBAL
Group
REE
2014 2013
20145 2013
HK$'00038# T T HKS$'00058# T 7t
HKS B 9,621 8,435
RMB AR 170,035 165,915
uss E 122 1,184
Others Hfth, 647 176
180,425 175,710
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ﬁﬂ*ﬁ’\ e RHME
e
Group Company
REE VNG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 20134 20144 20134
HKS$'00038#%Fx  HKS'0008#Fx HKS'00058% T HKS'000%8%T T
Prepayments R 59,699 23,119 208 183
Deposits Be 82,485 61,547 - -
Other receivables H A e R 1,791 3,664 - -
143975 88,330 208 183
Impairment A = (1,000) = =
143,975 87,330 208 183
Long-term prepayments and deposits PRAERDEE L RH
classified as non-current assets BT RESR (46,238) (29,551) = =
97,737 57,779 208 183

The provision for impairment as at 28 February 2013 was made for individually
impaired other receivables of HKS1,000,000 with a carrying amount before provision
of HKS$1,000,000. The individually impaired other receivables was considered
uncollectible and was written off during the current year.

Apart from the above, none of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.

M 201342 A 28 BME & K FIRE
BB BB 1,000,000 7T © & E @5
Hy rE R REMNEEEREE
1,000,000 7T ° =2 @RI E & E RN

FARBAEEURE M o

P EEREORRERE B5E
biEsz BB EE RS ETE

K4 8% 2 FEYRK
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED TIME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

22. RERBEEBYRE

DEPOSITS KIFEHTFR
Group Company
AEE AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 2013 & 2014 % 20134
HKS'000;8% Tt HK$'00058% T HKS'0008% Tt HKS'000BET T
Cash and bank balances He RRITER 140,738 205,848 192 195
Time deposits EHFR 1,595 - - -
142,333 205,848 192 195
Less: Pledged time deposits for short term 3 : {E/& R EISR1T & FRiK3M
bank loan ZEEETE TR (1,595) - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEEY 140,738 205,848 192 195

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group's
subsidiaries operating in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to HK$117,500,000
(2013: HKS121,617,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short
term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

RIRE AR - ANEBE L EEE N
BRAINARBREN 2R E RIRTT
TR ARE117,500,0007T (20134 -
AR#121,617,0007T) - AREET8E
BRABAHMEY - Al RiIEH
Bl i 2 SN B il 1 Bl S 45 1B - S 1B
RAEEERE  AEEEEEBE
RAEHEITINE 7 2 SRITIEARKE N
BRBHMEE -

RITRESRIFEE B RTE A HZF
BRI S GRER A B, o 4R -7 5 B 9 BB
ReFk BHEHMERIFRHA/I
RESMEA -+ WIRTE 77 R F = BRERF
B ROTFRRCEBERERFHREF
REBRFMOHLETBOLE L
$RAT ©



23.

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED TIME 22 ReRREEZEEBEYRE
= =,
DEPOSITS (continued) KHREHER @
Deposits denominated in RMB amounting to HKS$1,595,000 (2013: Nil) have been LA AR ¥ & 8 {7 2 % ¥ 1,595,000 7T
pledged to secure a short-term bank loan granted to the Group and are therefore (20134 : &) 2 TFREAEE + LA
classified as current assets. The pledged time deposits will be released upon the RETFTAEEZEHRITER - Bt
settlement of the related bank borrowings (note 35(e)). WHBARBEE - EEPEHFR
1% B (8 58 48 B 3R 17 5 B R B (B =
35()) °
TRADE PAYABLES 23. E{FERR
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting period, based on RIWEBRR - BNERRBEEKEBH
the invoice date, is as follows: STEZBREOMAT
Group
AEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HKS$'0008% T 5t HKS$'00058% T 5t
Within T month 1EARA 98,315 72,847
1to 2 months 122@AR 49114 35,269
2 to 3 months 2E3EAR 47,106 39,789
Over 3 months HBiE3MEA 160,553 162,376
355,088 310,281

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are denominated in the following
currencies:

FEN BRI BRE

AEEENERZREBENLTIES
RENL

Group

rEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'00038% Tt HKS$'00058 4 T 7t
HKS B 82,0563 76,793
RMB AR 48,261 36,897
UsS ET 224,579 196,520
Others Hth 195 71
365,088 310,281
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B 7% 3 3R B & ()

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24. HihERRKRETER
Details of other payables and accruals are as follows: Hh e FIE R EH BERHNFENT
Group Company
rEE RAH]
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 20134 20144 2013
HK$'0008% Tt  HKS'0008% Tt HKS'0008% Tt HKS'00058% T T
Other payables HAFER K 52,225 96,037 140 524
Customer deposits BERFER 27,378 9,397 - -
Provision for liabilities BERE 28,500 19,126 = =
Accruals fEEtE A 100,452 120,844 1,780 1978
208,555 245,404 1,920 2,502
Other payables and accruals classified as 2 38AIERE) 2 H it e 3K
non-current REFTER (5,207) - - -
203,348 245,404 1,920 2,502

Included in other payables as at 28 February 2013 was an unsecured payable of
HKS$12,346,000 which bore interest at a fixed interest rate of 6.6% per annum and was

fully settled during the current year.

Except for the above, all other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing.

R201342 A28 8 ' BIEREMER
K2 78 112,346,000 7T o EAK R &% 4%
FHE6.6% 8 E EF X5 B - WHF

NEZEEE

B Lt BASN + BT A L B A< R e B A

ERBRRE -



25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 25. GFERITREMER

Group AEE
2014 2013
20145 2013 F
Contractual Contractual
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
EHFIE (%) ZHA BETT  AOFE%) ZIEA BB
Current e
Bank overdrafts — secured RITEZ — BER 0On demand 0On demand
475%-5.25% REN(EE 21,348 575% RENXER 19914
Bank loans and trade finance AR EREIESERZ
due for repayable within FOIERRESREA
one year — secured -~ BER 3.0%—8.5% 2014 530,067 |3.0% —3.3% 2013 335,748
Other loan — unsecured HA & — |IER 6.6% 2014 12,816 - - =
564,231 355,662
Certain of the bank loans above are classified as current liabilities due to the inclusion ARIRITRE NBE S ERERZIE
of repayment on demand clauses in the bank facilities letters, without which, the FoBETUERTEREDBEARE
maturity terms of the loans are as follows: B MR EREEZGR  BERN

TR

Group
A%
2014 2013
20145 20134
HKS$'0008 %+ ¢ HKS$'0008% F T
Repayable within one year or on demand AR ERNDHEESIREREE 495,331 355,662
Repayable in the second year AR 2FNEIHEE 38,626
Repayable more than two years ARZR2FEREHER 30,374 -
564,231 355,662
Note: Bt
Except for the bank loans denominated in RMB equivalent to HKS54,113,000 (2013: Nil) and the other loan Br#E & R B #8564 1130007T (20134F - #E) .2 iR
denominated in RMB equivalent to HKS12,816,000 (2013: Nil), all bank borrowings at the end of the reporting TTEARIEERER 128160007 (20134 - #)
period were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. ZEMESTAAREEES - FrERREEIAE

RITEHIG L ETTIEE »
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25.

26.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the bank loans and trade finance
repayable on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion of the bank
loans due for repayment after one year which contains a repayment on demand
clause and is classified as current liabilities is expected to be settled within one year.
This evaluation was made considering: the financial position of the Group at the date
of approval of the financial statements; the Group's continuing compliance with the
loan covenants; the lack of events of default; and the fact that the Group has made all
previously scheduled repayments on time.

As at 28 February 2014, the Group had available banking facilities amounting to
HKS$582,363,000 (2013: HKS$395,000,000), of which HK$551,415,000 (2013:
HKS$355,662,000) had been utilised as bank borrowings as at the end of the reporting
period. Banking facilities amounting to HK$528,250,000 (2013: HK$395,000,000) are
secured by certain assets of the Group as disclosed in note 35 to the financial
statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 20 April 2012, the Company issued to CDH King Limited (“CDH") five-year term
convertible bonds with a principal amount of HK$250,000,000 under which CDH has
the right to convert the bonds into ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) at
an initial conversion price at HKS6.40 per Share (the “"Convertible Bonds”) at any time
during the conversion period, subject to anti-dilutive adjustments. The Convertible
Bonds are unsecured and subordinated to all present and future non-equity linked
indebtednesses of the Company. Any equity-linked debt securities issued or to be
issued are subordinated to the Convertible Bonds unless the prior approval of CDH is
obtained. The net proceeds are intended to be used by the Company for general
corporate development and general working capital requirements.

25.

26.

SFERITREMER@®

FHERITER (BEREREE ZRT
EREEZME) THIREHR A
B EM FRIPEELESR
BREEGFRRDBERRDAELE
D|ITERBR —FABE - fEULET
BRHEEE  AEBERAMBRER
HEBZFBARR  AEBEKE KRG
MFFEETIER  RAOBOEMN M
EFEL AEEREHME SRR R
ZHEBFEK o

M201452A288 « "EERIFHAZ
iR 17 15 B %8 & 7 % 582,363,000 7T
(20134 : & #395,000,0007T ) © H
& 7% #551,4150007 2 R 1T & &
(20134 : 7 ¥ 355,662,000 7T ) 1 ]
SHREBA - BHRITEEFBE
528,250,0007C (20134 : & ¥
395,000,0007T) HAK B E TEEE
A A B 5 SR 2R T o 35 LB o

JRRES

M2012F4 4208 - AR A BETF
CDH King Limited ([CDH ) N& & %8 &%
¥5# 250,000,000 7T F1 5 HA 2 AT AR (&
7 CDH B RN B M E b5 DA H 7]
BRESFERAA QRN EER (R
B31)  WAMEREERE - MR
EREIREECA0T([FIHARES])
B ESEEERREBNAAER
FER A RA DRI 6 FERE s B A (B T
EREBETRAET 2 RREHBET
BHONBRATRAME S - FRIFF L
153 COH Lt ° AR AIHRIE AT 1S 5RIR
FEAR-REXZRNEEEST

o



26.

27.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The Convertible Bonds bear interest at the rate of 5% per annum which are due every
year, and mature on the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the issue date.

The Company shall redeem the outstanding principal of the Convertible Bonds at the
redemption amount representing an internal rate of return of 12% per annum on the
fifth anniversary of the issue date of the Convertible Bonds.

The fair value of the liability component was estimated at the issuance date using an
equivalent market interest rate for a similar bond without a conversion option. The
residual amount is assigned as the equity component and is included in shareholders'’
equity.

As at 28 February 2014, a total of 39,062,500 (2013: 39,062,500) ordinary shares

would have been allotted and issued if all the Convertible Bonds were converted in
full. There was no conversion during the year (2013: Nil).

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor vehicles
under finance leases which expire within five years (note 15).

The Group's finance lease payables are secured by the charge over the leased assets.

26.

27.

ARIRES @

AR ESSFIMNENES5% K
REITRMELFEH -

RRBARARKRES 2 %17
FESFURSENEF12% 2 AR E
Bz HEERAMRESNAER

BEHONAFEEDFARETH
EHRES RSN GERENESZ
SRR H - RIRHDHDER
A - WEER R R

201442 A28H » & #£39,062,500
P = 37 A% (2013 4F : 39,062,500 % &
FAR) 15 7T B AT AR (& 55 MO AR B R M
FUABD B R BT o ANFE A ]
B & (20134 &) -

ENRERE
AEEEBNSENIB AT

TAARM - HERZERTE (K=
15) °

AEERENBRERENHBEAZEE
B EFTA IR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 7% 3 3R B & ()

27. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued)

At 28 February 2014, the total future minimum lease payments under finance leases

and their present values were as follows:

Group

27.

EmERE @

MN2014%2A288 REMEHRER
HBEEZ RRSERAEAFREEET

REE

Present value

Present value

Minimum  Minimum lease of minimum of minimum

lease payments payments lease payments lease payments

RIXEE RIEEE

RIREENH RIEEENT NRZBRE NRZBRE

2014 2013 2014 2013

20144 20134 20144 2013

HKS$'00058% 5  HK$'00058%Fx HKS'0008%FT HKS'000BHF T

Amounts payable: N &% -

Within one year 16K 1,820 5923 1,782 5,692

In the second year F2F 375 1813 BIE 1,775

In the third to fifth years, inclusive BIFEELHF 214 566 213 563

Total minimum finance lease payments SR EHEN 45 2,409 8,302 2,368 8,030
Future finance charges RN E R (41) (272)
Total net finance lease payables ENmENE BT 2,368 8,030
Portion classified as current liabilities DERREBEENS (1,782) (5,692)
Non-current portion FmEE D 586 2,338
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged to make lump
sum payments on cessation of employment in certain circumstances to certain
employees who have completed at least five years of service with the Group. The
amount payable is dependent on the employees' final salary and years of service, and
is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plan that are
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set aside any
assets to fund any remaining obligations. The long service payments are paid out
from the Group's cash in hand when such payments are required.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in the salary increase rate
and the expected return on MPF balances.

The latest actuarial valuation specifically designated for the Group's employees was
completed by a qualified actuary, Towers Watson, as at 28 February 2014, using the
projected unit credit method.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as
follows:

28.

HKS$'00058% Tt

EEENER

RABRBE

BRIBEBERBIGD)  WMAEEEE
THEATE LIEREAEEREED
RFEMETEL  FEANNBENREN
FRAAZEETXNRARBE - &
NEFRETHREFEMREFH
FHE - WHRR 797 AN 5 BR R st 8
Fft R 78 4 5 T E 7 S (B 4 AR R0 6
5 o ANEE TR R R EE N
EAESRNEBEE - ERBELN
R REREESTIRARE 2 FR
REXfT

ZETBIAE A RER - FRFIEEE(L
KOs A B m RIS 2 B o

RAEEREEMROSEAHEEGE
EBRAERIBEMBTEMNN2014F
2 A 28 ARRATRFT B ERATK °

RS MR MA RN SRR T

Group

AEE
2014 2013
2014F 2013F
HKS'000 8% T 7t

Present value of defined benefit obligations RERNBHOIRE

17,087 15,186
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Long service payments (continued)
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period are as

28. EERANZERK @

RERBE (5
RBERREZMIEBRENRRAT

follows:
Group
REE
2014 2013
2014 5 20134
Discount rate BhER R 2.5% 1.5%
Expected rate of salary increases (%) TE EA%T & FHIE (%)
Year 2013 20134 - 4.0%
Year 2014 20144 5.0% 5.0%
Year 2015 and thereafter 20154 R bATE 5.0% 5.0%
Expected annual return of MPF assets EERE S EEF W= 4.5% 5.0%

A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 28 February 2014
is shown below:

MN2014%2 A28B BEABRRNTE
BREEDWHTRAAT

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
net defined net defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligation in rate obligation
BERERFES BERERFER
EzEm  zEm/ Chd) E2RS 280/ 0AD)
% %
Discount rate BRIR % 0.25% (703) 0.25% 742
Future salary increase RIREFSEM 0.25% 461 0.25% (519)
Future expected rate of return RIGRIE S A5 ER A TR HR B3R
on MPF balances o 0.25% (2,458) 0.25% 2,679

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that
extrapolates the impact on net employee benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

R GURE S THRIBR s MR
BEENTERRZABEPHFER
TRMET R B RIEHEH



Long service payments (continued)

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in

28. EERAZS @

REBRBE (@)

FRAERGERERTHANAE

respect of the plan is as follows: BmF :

Group

REE
2014 2013
2014F 2013F
HKS$'000 8% T 5t HKS'000 5% T 7t
Current service cost RE RIS 188 233
Interest cost MEER 228 255
Net benefit expenses 8RR 2 416 488
Recognised in selling and distribution expenses BRrAHERDHE 73 86
Recognised in administrative expenses EFFATHER 343 402
416 488

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:

REBMEBNREZEFHNT :

Group
REE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'00038% T 5t HK$'000;58% F 7t
At beginning of year REH] 15,186 19,727
Remeasurements: BHEE
— Actuarial changes arising from changes —RADSGHRRESMELNEEE
in demographic assumptions = (12)
— Actuarial changes arising from experience — B EEMEANIEE S
adjustments (216) (4,246)
— Actuarial changes arising from changes —RREBREDMELNBEEES
in financial assumptions 2,499 (648)
Current service cost INEE RIS A 188 233
Interest cost MEBA 228 2505
Long service payment benefit paid net of EXfz RERBEET - MRERESER
MPF benefits (798) (123)
At end of year RER 17,087 15,186
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 28. BEEBAELE w)
Long service payments (continued) RERBEZ (&)
The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets are RERMEBRAEEENRFEE
as follows: ZEBIT
2014 2014 %
Cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement loss/(gain) in other comprehensive income
sTABEIRZHA FAGE2ERAZEERE/ (KA
Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes
Sub-total arising from  arising from Sub-total
included changes in changes in other At
At 1 March Net in profit or demographic infinancial ~ Experience comprehensive 28 February
2013 Service cost interest loss  Benefitpaid assumptions assumptions  adjustments income 2014
feAngist
BRED  CERR  (HEREE
R2013E HEN MEEN  EBmEE MEEN FTARE 120145

3A1H FRB A EHE  RERNG EAER RE2E  NEEZ2E RELZE LONG 2R 28R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETR BETT BETR BETT BET BETT BRI BETT

Defined benefit obligations ~ REARHZER 15,186 188 228 416 (798) - 2499 (216) 2283 17,087
2013 2013F
Cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gain in other comprehensive income
sTABERZAA SAGREERAZBERA
Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes
Sub-total arising from  arising from Sub-total
included changesin  changesin in other At
At 1 March in profit or demographic financial ~ Experience comprehensive 28 February
2012 Servicecost  Netinterest loss  Benefitpaid assumptions assumptions  adjustments income 2013
fEADSE
BRED  CERER  (EREE
R20125 A MELN  EBmEL MEER itAZE R2013E

3818 FRA AR FHE  BEEN EEH BEEY NEESY REE WM 25 28H
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BT BETT BT BETT BT BET T
Defined benefit obligations ~ RERAIE 19727 233 255 488 (123) (12) (648) (4246) (4.906) 15,186
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Long service payments (continued)
Expected contributions to be made in the future years out of the defined benefit
obligations are as follows:

EERNER @

RERBE (50)
TRET R AR R L F N R EBAFELS 2 H
R

2014 2013

20145 2013 F

HK$'000 8% F T HKS'000 8% T 7t

Within the next 12 months RAK12{EA 155 188
Between 2 and 5 years MR2ZE5F 7 H 813 673
Between 6 and 10 years N0k d 1,471 1,482
Over 10 years HBA10F 4,946 3,147
Total expected payments HRFEETRIA 7,385 5,490

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HKS$25,000 (HKS$20,000 prior to June 2012).
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement benefits schemes for
all qualifying employees in the PRC, Japan and Malaysia. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of independent
trustees.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to profit or loss during the
year ended 28 February 2014 amounted to HK$9,170,000 (2013: HKS$8,204,000)
representing contributions payable by the Group to the schemes at the appropriate
rates set by the local government of the subsidiaries.

REMFCERIRET S
AEERBEBCETIEAESETEIE
BIVOIRE - AIREEBUERBIEGIEE
AREEB k2 AT RIEERERANR
AREtEIMEE - 2HEBHERTESET
El([RELFE) - BRESFTER—
BERERZFBNRE - BBIHZE
ABE - BERESTE BEERHE
B B9 /RERE S EEARK 5% AT
EEHER - S ABBABABE
25,00070(20124F 6 A 2 Al A # %
20,0007T) & EBR o 5T 8180 R THED
RS o

AEENRAETE  AARERA
TRERNESSEH —EREHIR
RETE] - FEIMEBEEB YN A LB
BEVFREBIIEAFARER -

REZE2014542 A28 IEFE » A&
E it F T B FTE 2 AR BB
9,170,000 7t (2013 4F : 7% 8,204,000
JT)  WEEBE PR o HAEKITIA
& B 32 5 B BB A R AR BA b [ R T 3 R
B LE SRR ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 75 3% 3% M = ()
29. DEFERRED TAX 29. IRIERLIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as follows: FRNRLEHRFELBREEZBOT -
Group REE
Withholding
Depreciation taxes on
inexcess of  Employee Impairment undistributed Other
depreciation benefit of profits of  temporary
allowances obligations inventories Tax losses subsidiaries differences Total
HEARE
BRfE &8 FAWER Hit
SHBHTE BRIE FEEE WEEE MENMEHR BEER a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB BT T BT T BB BT T BT
(Restated)
(E51)
At 1 March 2012 #201243A1R (8,065) (3,255) (5,944) (50) 23,060 (2,402) 3344
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRRBIEIRIEG/GTA)
to the statement of profit or loss ZEERE (FEE1)
during the year (note 11) 732 (60) 27 (5,721) 1,392 (2,797) (6,427)
Deferred tax charged to the statement  #RRZERAREIR
of comprehensive income ZIETERE
during the year = 809 = = = = 809
Exchange differences EXZE 163 = 76 (55) (354) ©)] (173)
At 28 February 2013 and 1 March 2013 7201342 A28 A% 201343818 (7,170) (2,5006) (5,841) (5,826) 24,098 (5,202) (2,447)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FARBRIENR/(GIA)
to the statement of profit or loss IR (HE11)
during the year (note 11) 5,646 64 (1,297) (6,358) 47 (4218) (6,122)
Deferred tax credited to the statement #RR2ERABRKTA
of comprehensive income ZEERE
during the year = (377) = = = = (377)
Exchange differences BXEE ] = m = 97 = 88
At 28 February 2014 R 201442 A28 E (1526) (2:819) (7139)  (12184) 24230 (9,420) (8:858)




29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

29. IRFEFIE ()

Group
REE
2014 2013
20145 2013
HKS$'0008% T 5t HKS$'00058% T 5
Net deferred tax assets recognised ELEA BTSN R &R R R EFi 18

on the consolidated statement of financial position &zE)#& (84,908) (26,874)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised AR A M ISR R TR A IE T 7 18

on the consolidated statement of financial position & &%%8 26,050 24,427

(8,858) (2,447)
Company
AN

Depreciation in

excess of

depreciation
allowances Tax losses Total

BB ERBE
e BIEB KL Fb
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BET T
At 1 March 2012 R201263A1H (50) = (50)

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FARERIRINGR(GTA)

Company's profit or loss during the year >~ iEERIE 55 (139) (84)
At 28 February 2013 and 1 March 2013 R 201342 A28 A% 201343 818 5 (139) (134)
Deferred tax charged to Company's FERNARIBSIENRG 2 BERIE

profit or loss during the year 90 139 229
At 28 February 2014 201452 A28 H 95 - 95

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on

dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises

established in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies

to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if

there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For

the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of

earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

BERBECERFRE  RAEEKRL
ZHNERECEMINTIRE & TR
BAR10%BUIRTENFIE - iR E R
2008F1TATA AN W@EAR
2007512 A31 B & 2 & A - f0h
At BN 4 E FTAE Rl ARE B AT A B
Wit + BIIFT L@ A BRIE S T BLH
Ko pAKEME  EHABERE% -
Hit - AEEBEEERZENFEK
2 KB A R R20084F1 A1 AEE
£ 2 BAETH IR 2RSS TR o
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29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. ﬁﬁ*ﬁlﬁ(i@
At 28 February 2014, deferred tax has not been recognised for certain withholding MN201462 A28 H  ETHARAEE
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to RABKIZ B AR 2R IREF
withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC. In the opinion of i 7B 48 22 TE AN B B 8 A~ A5 S0 3 R 7 2R
the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in RBELERE - BEEZRE ZSHMEL
the foreseeable future. At 28 February 2014, the aggregate amount of temporary AR A RASSR KA BE D IRZZ A o
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in the PRC for which deferred R201462H288  ERFEKBEA
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately to HK$179,461,000 RIRERMANHRER 2 G RIRER
(2013: HK$82,218,000). BABZREALNABE
179,461,000 T (20134 : & &
82,218,0007T) °
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items: IRIETRIAE AR BT 51 TH B #ER
Group
REE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'00038% Tt HKS$'00058% F ¢
Tax losses BB EE 9,307 12,140
Others Hth 2,740 2£94
Deferred tax assets not recognised RERZ BT IBEEE 12,047 14,634

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as in the
opinion of the directors, it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the above items can be utilised.

The above unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong Kong and Malaysia of
approximately HK$36,216,000 (2013: HKS64,332,000) are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

The above unrecognised tax losses arising in Japan of approximately HKS$6,424,000
(2013: HKS2,541,000) will be expired in nine years for offsetting against future taxable
profits.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the
Company to its shareholders.

RIEFRIRE EIW R LR IE B #ER
EERRBTEFTANERTARK
A A EfEE o

LA &858 36,216,000 7T (2013 4 -
75 ¥ 64,332,000 7T ) I &7 I 55 SR A8 2B
EEZAERBIEEE  ATERSHA
ER S S E AR IBEE QR Z KK
FERFREF o

LA £ & 2575 ¥ 6,424,000 7T (2013 £ :
782,541,000 7T ) I B AR E & 2 R HE
REBEEE - 1095 RfERILAER
SRR FE R AT o

AR A A E BRI E 2 R B8 S R
FriS®t -



30.

Sl

ISSUED CAPITAL 30. BEITRA
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000:8#F 7t HKS$'000 8% T 7t
Authorised: JETE ¢
1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of HKS0.25 each 1,500,000,000 & & AR EI A ¥ 0.25 7T
2 B 375,000 375,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRER
210,336,221 ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each 210,336,221 B B AR I (B4 % 0.25 7T 2 H @R 52,584 52,584

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the Company
on 26 November 2003 (“2003 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2003 Share
Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants thereunder for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any entity
in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, at any time following the date of the adoption of the 2003 Share
Option Scheme but before the tenth anniversary of that date, to offer options to any
person belonging to any of the following classes of participants to subscribe for
shares of the Company:

= any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including any executive
directors but not any non-executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

= any non-executive director (including independent non-executive directors) of
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

= any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

= any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

= any person or entity that provides research, development or technological
support or other services to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

= any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the shares, the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the grant
and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant. An offer of an
option shall be deemed to have been accepted within 28 days from the date of offer
upon acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance
of HKS1. The maximum number of securities available for issue under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued issued capital of the Company.
The maximum entitlement of each grantee in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the ordinary shares in issue of the Company. The option period will not be more than
ten years from the date of grant of the option and the Company's board of directors
may at its discretion determine the minimum period for which the option has to be
held or other restriction before the exercise of the subscription right attaching
thereon.

On 1 March 2013, 15,850,000 options were granted to the directors, employees and
service providers of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to the 2003 Share
Option Scheme in respect of their contributions to the strategic development of the
Group. The exercise price of the options is HKS4.13 per ordinary share of the
Company (the “Share”), which is the highest of (i) the closing price of HKS4.13 per
Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date of grant;
and (i) the average closing price of HKS4.08 per Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HKS0.25 per Share on the date of
grant.

Share option do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31.

As the fair value of the services received from service providers cannot be estimated,
the Group measured the value by reference to the fair value of share options granted.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme was expired on 25 November 2013.

The exercise price of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

B RERTE e

HRRREHEREZ MRS 22
FEESRAGT  AREZ2ZERN
B2 A FEE -

2003 F R EETEIE /2013411 A
25 A fEim °

TA 3 5 B R i) R AT 1 BB AR AR RO 1T (2
BT :

Weighted average

exercise price  Number of options

IR ITEE BREHE

HKS per share ('000)

BRBYE (+)
At 1 March 2012, 28 February 2013 and 201243 HA1H » 201362 H28H
1 March 2013 K&20134%3 A1 H - -

Granted during the year FABEH 413 15,850
Lapsed during the year FRE R 413 (590)
At 28 February 2014 201442 A28 H 413 15,260

During the year, 590,000 options were lapsed due to resignation of certain employees.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was HKS$24,660,000 (2013:
Nil), of which the Group recognised a share option expense of HKS$9,255,000 during
the year ended 28 February 2014 (2013: Nil).

HRETEIRNAF AR &
590,000 A EERRME 2 KK ©

RERARLZBRENDFEEAS
#24,660,0007C (20134 : #&) - Hrh
ANEEREZE 201442 A 28 AERS
A% 4 B8 7 7% ¥ 9,255,000 7T (2013 4F -
=) o

The fair value and exercise periods of the share options outstanding at the end of the RIBE RS RITENERENAF
reporting period are as follows: BERTEHNT
Fair value Number of
Exercise period per option options granted
BN E ERHM
1T AT EE BBRESAE
‘000
:F
1 September 2014 — 29 February 2020 201449 41820202 HA29H8 HKS$1.62 2,289
7% $1.627T
1 March 2015 — 29 February 2020 201543 A1H—202062H29H8 HKS$1.62 2,289
7% $1.627T
1 March 2016 — 29 February 2020 201643 A1H—202062A29H HKS$1.62 4,578
7% $1.627T
1 March 2017 — 29 February 2020 201743 A1H-20202A29H HKS$1.61 6,104
7 S$1.617T
15,260
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year was estimated
as at the date of grant using a Binomial Model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:

31.

BT

EROMBEENATFEER AN
HEEEEAGE UZEEIERD
FERRAE 2 IR E R A6 F - TRIIH T &
HERIFR R 2 B

2014

20144

Dividend yield (%) A& 22K (%) 3.41
Expected volatility (%) T8 HAIR 08 (%) 51.21
Risk-free interest rate (%) 15 LR TR (%) 0.85
Expected life of options (years) TEFTRERRE S R () 7
Weighted average share price (HKS per share) DNAEFR(E (FAB ) 4137

As at 28 February 2013, the Company had no share option outstanding under the
2003 Share Option Scheme.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the measurement of
fair value.

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 4 years
and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of
future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had 15,260,000
share options outstanding under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 7.3% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

R2013%2 281 » AR ERE
2003 4F B AR #E 5T &1 5% 1 1 (8 AR 1T 15 49
BEARHE -

PR HBREZ A FEENEREHR
ANE M &8 o

BRENTRSSHRRBEEE4FH
JEE SR BB R - R — E R IR BR AT BE
HIRETRER o IR LR IE R R R
RIE LR IERAKRBBIEE  BHA

RAB M EAZER  AARRE
2003 £F & AR #E 51 8145 M M 1wl AR AT /)
BSR4 515,260,00010 * (5 AR FEE
BITIRIDAI7.3% °



32. RESERVES

@

(b)

32. f#®
Group (a) =A&£E
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the REBZ FEEBRFARRAGE
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes FEZEPINBRUBREE
in equity on pages 108 to 109 of the financial statements. 108 R 109E 2 4r A i m E B
RA -
Company (b) ZAQH
Convertible Proposed
Share Share option Contributed bonds  Retained final
premium reserve surplus reserve profits dividend Total
BuHrz
RHEE BRERE BB WRRES REBF BRRARE ok
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BETR BETR BT BETR BETT BT BETR
At 1 March 2012 R2012%63R18 123,365 - 14,770 - 721,236 26,292 885,063
Total comprehensive income AFE2ERAESE

for the year = = = = 70,342 = 70,342
Dividends paid duringtheyear — RERZRRE S - - = = (2,103) (26,292) (28,395)
Proposed final 2012/13 dividend ~ #i& 2012/13 RERR &,

(note 13) (Ri3£13) - - - - (14729 14,724 -
Issue of convertible bonds BiTA MRk ES = = = 8,600 = = 8,600
At 28 February 2013 and R2013%2A 28R

1 March 2013 %2013%3A1AH 123,365 - 14,770 8,600 774,751 14,724 936,210
Total comprehensive income AEERENALE

for the year = = = = 17,458 = 17,458
Dividends paid during the year RERERRE = = = = (4,627) (14,724 (19,351)
Proposed final 2013/14 dividend ~ #t%2013/14 K EIRL &

(note 13) (F3E13) = - - - (14,724) 14724 -
Equity-settled share-option RSB MR R T

arrangement = 9,255 = = = = 9,255
At 28 February 2014 R2014%2 A 28R 123,365 9,255 14,770 8,600 772,858 14,724 943572
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32. RESERVES (continued)

(©

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of shares at a
price in excess of their par value per share.

Capital reserves include the values arise in the acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries, gains or losses arises in group reorganisation and
restructuring.

Capital reserves also include the statutory reserve, which was
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries under the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the Group's subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
a group reorganisation over the nominal amount of the Company's
ordinary shares issued in exchange therefor, less the set-off of the
accumulated losses of the Company amounting to HK$865,747,000 as
at 29 February 2004 pursuant to a capital reorganisation.

Exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

32. f#fEw
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32. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v)  Equity component of convertible bonds reserve represents the
unexercised equity component of the Convertible Bonds issued by the
Group recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
Convertible Bonds in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

(vi)  Share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
The amount will be transferred either to the share premium account
when the related options are exercised, or to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

33. NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

During the year, the Group entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of
items of property, plant and equipment with a total capital value at the inception of
the leases of HK$36,000 (2013: HK$8,049,000).
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

55

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

Group

AEHE
2014
2014 F

34. EAE

RMER - WERHERR B

2013
2013 F

ZRABBOT
Company
ARE
2014 2013
20145 2013 F

HK$'00058% T  HKS'00058% T HKS'000:#%Fx HKS'000#8% T T

Guarantees given to banks and other A% TH{ B A A{EH 2 R1T
creditors in connection with REMEE R
facilities granted to
certain subsidiaries =

529,430 514,209

As at 28 February 2014, the banking and other credit facilities granted to subsidiaries
subject to guarantees given to banks and other creditors by the Company were
utilised to the extent of approximately HK$505,433,000 (2013: HK$480,849,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

(@)  As at 28 February 2013, debentures were executed by the Group in favour of a
bank charging, by way of fixed and floating charges, all of the undertakings,
properties and assets of the Company and of its 11 subsidiaries as security for,
inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to time
owing by the Group to the bank. Rental revenue of the Group, if any was also
charged in favour of the Group's bank.

Such borrowings were fully refinanced by new secured bank loans as described
in (b) below on 6 November 2013 and all of these debentures were fully
released on the same date.

35.
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35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS (continued)

(b)

On 6 November 2013, certain fixed properties (i.e. land and buildings with
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of HKS51,379,000)
in Hong Kong were mortgaged to its bank by way of a first legal charge, as
security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from
time to time owing by the Group to the bank.

On 19 December 2013, certain other fixed properties (i.e. land and buildings
with aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
HK$5,927,000) in Hong Kong were mortgaged to another bank by way of a first
legal charge, as security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or
contingent, from time to time owing by the Group to that bank.

As at 28 February 2013, the Company and the Subsidiaries had a second
floating charge under which the Company made a guarantee to the
Subsidiaries which also executed a cross guarantee among the Subsidiaries to
pledge all of their rights and interest from time to time in their inventories or
stock-in-trade and their receivables from their fellow subsidiaries located other
than Hong Kong the sales and supply of any inventory or stock-in-trade in
favour of Rosy Blue HK as a continuing security for the Payables thereto.

This second floating charge was released by Rosy Blue HK on 18 February
2014 in accordance with the terms of the charge upon the request of the
Group.

As at 28 February 2014, time deposits equivalent to HK$1,595,000 (2013: Nil)
have been pledged to secure a short-term bank loan to a subsidiary in the PRC.
The pledged time deposits will be released upon the settlement of the relevant
bank borrowings.
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessee

The Group leases a number of properties under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years, with options
to renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually
adjusted to reflect market rentals upon renegotiation of the terms of the lease.

Certain leasing arrangements have been subject to contingent rent by reference to
monthly turnover throughout the leasing periods. The minimum guaranteed rental
has been used to arrive at the commitments below.

At 28 February 2014, the Group and the Company had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

36. MEHELH

DN
AEBENEEHENRHFBEDE -
MEZEALERTER/BNT —=
=4 WRAIRE B BB AT € K
FBEBREYD KENERZEEESR
BRBEARRTSEE

ETHERHEXI2ZEREAEE
PRATREXELRAEENTE -
T2 AEERAKEREHESHE -

R201442 A28 8 » BB HHEN
LERSF BN AEERAATA
ZARGEBENFRAENT ¢

Group Company
AEE NG|

2014 2013 2014 2013
2014 F 2013 F 20145 20134
HK$'0008%F 7t HK$'0005%% T HKS'0008% T HKS000E4TR
Within one year 16/ 179,148 146,838 12,000 12,000
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F2FEESF 291,999 165,712 5,290 17,290
471,147 302,550 17,290 29,290

37. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the Company had any
significant commitments.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

@

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group had the following transactions with related parties during the year
ended 28 February 2014:

(i)

TSL M&D, a subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials and
finished goods from Rosy Blue HK amounting to HK$271,010,000 (2013:
HKS$282,729,000). At 28 February 2014, the amount due to Rosy Blue HK
by TSL M&D was HKS112,588,000, (2013: HKS112,911,000).

TSL M&D purchased raw materials and finished goods from Rosy Blue
Jewellery (HK) Ltd ("“Rosy Blue J(HK)") amounting to HK$9,173,000
(2013: HKS2,967,000). At 28 February 2014, the amount due to Rosy
Blue J(HK) by TSL M&D was nil (2013: HK$988,000).

GZ Tai Yi, a subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials and
finished goods from Guangzhou Rosy Blue Jewellery Co Ltd (“Rosy Blue
GZ") amounting to HK$1,275,000 (2013: HKS5,404,000). At 28 February
2014, the amount due to Rosy Blue GZ by GZ Tai Yi was nil (2013:
HK$2,606,000).
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38. BAEALRF )

(@) (continued) (a)
(iv)  GZ Jingshi, a subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials and
finished goods from Rosy Blue GZ amounting to HK$16,246,000 (2013:
Nil). At 28 February 2014, the amount due to Rosy Blue GZ by GZ Jingshi
was HKS$3,251,000 (2013: Nil).

(v)  EF, a subsidiary of the Company, sold raw materials to BTSL and GZ
Jingshi through Rosy Blue (Shanghai) Diamond Company Limited (‘Rosy
Blue SH"), an authorised diamond trading company in the PRC,
amounting to HK$140,460,000 (2013: HKS131,947,000).

(viy  TSL M&D did not sell any raw materials to BTSL through Rosy Blue SH
(2013: HKS$6,798,000).

(&)

(iv)
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

(continued)

(vii) (i) Mr. Tommy Tse, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (“Ms. Annie
Yau"), the Executive Director of the Company, was employed by a
subsidiary of the Company as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer —
Supplies; (i) Mr. Tse Sui Luen (“Mr. Tse Senior”), the father of Mr. Tommy
Tse and father-in-law of Ms. Annie Yau, was employed by a subsidiary of
the Company as the Founder. During the year, remuneration of
HKS$1,581,000 (2013: HK$1,248,000) and HKS$1,787,000 (2013:
HKS1,473,000) were paid to Mr. Tommy Tse and Mr. Tse Senior
respectively.

(viii)  Notional charge of equity-settled share option expense of HK$734,000
(2013: Nil) and HKS$485,000 (2013: Nil) were accrued for share options
granted to Mr. Tommy Tse and Mr. Tse Senior respectively.

Rosy Blue HK, Rosy Blue J(HK), Rosy Blue GZ, and Rosy Blue SH are
subsidiaries of Prime Investments S.A., who was as a preference shareholder
of Partner Logistics Limited (“Partner Logistics"). The control of the board of
directors of Partner Logistics remains with Mr. Tommy Tse who is the ultimate
controlling party and substantial shareholder of the Company. The transactions
in respect of items (i) to (vi) and (viii) were not continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the transactions were carried out on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary course of business.

The related party transactions in respect of item (vii) above constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 75 3% 3% M = ()
38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38. EALRZ mw
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: (b) AEEFEEEAEMS :
2014 2013
20144 20134
HKS$'0008% F 5t HK$'00084 5
Short term employee benefits 55 HifE B 12 7 10,596 8,727
Equity-settled share option expense LA P 18 A 4 B R AE ) S 3,160 -
Post-employment benefits R REAEH 30 28
Total compensation paid to key XM EEERE AN AR
management personnel 13,786 8,755
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial EEME—THBIARYH
statements. KM
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. BERISE2EMT A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end R|EBR SERZEMTARE

of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets

BF :

BEE

Group
REE
Loans and receivables
B RS
2014 2013
2014F 2013 F
HKS$'000 8% T 5t HKS'000 8% T 7t
Trade receivables FEUAR K 180,425 175,710
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEERMNR - e REmEKK
deposits and other receivables IS EE 84,276 64,211
Pledged time deposits B E BATE K 1,595 -
Cash and cash equivalents R RESLZEY 140,738 205,848
407,034 445,769
Financial liabilities MgasE
Group
REE
Financial liabilities at amortised costs
RAHE AR A E
2014 2013
201445 20134
HK$'0008% T 5T HKS$'00058% T 5t
Trade payables FERTBRR 355,088 310,281
Financial liabilities included in other payables BEEEMENRRESER
and accruals ZHsaRE 152,677 216,880
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STERITREMER 564,231 355,662
Convertible bonds AR ES 290,889 267,673
Finance lease payables FEf R EE 2,368 8,030
1,365,253 1,168,526




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 3R 3R MY & (a

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 39. BERPEZERMIA

(%)
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Financial assets BREE
Company
KA F]
Loans and receivables
BER KBRS
2014 2013
20144 2013 F
HK$'000 &%+ HKS$'000:&4F T
Due from subsidiaries JE LT BfT BB A R BR X 408,110 455,664
Interest-bearing loan due from a subsidiary FEASPH B A RIET BB 166,502 153,706
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEY 192 195
574,804 609,565
Financial liabilities Bgas
Company
KA F]
Financial liabilities at amortised costs
RBHERARAR K EE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HKS$'000 8% T 5t HKS$'00058% T ¢
Financial liabilities included in other payables BEEEMENRRESER
and accruals bl =Y 1,920 2,502
Convertible bonds AR ES 290,889 267,673
292,809 270,175




40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 40. T A2 AFEER
I~
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEEEZR
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's and the Company's financial BRABLE A IR BRBREEMEE 2 A T B
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to B2HBITEN  REBRARFZ
fair values, are as follows: B TAZREEEEATFEBENAT -
Group REH
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE DFEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20135 20145 20134
HKS'00058# Tt  HKS'0008% T HKS'0008% T HKS'0008% Tt
Financial liabilities g 3 =N
Interest-bearing bank and HERTERREMER
other borrowings 564,231 355,662 564,231 355,662
Convertible bonds RRES 290,889 267,673 288,640 267,673
Finance lease payables ENRERE 2,368 8,030 2,368 8,030
857,488 631,365 855,239 631,365
Company PAN/NE
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE DFEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
2014 % 2013 20145 20135
HKS$'00038% Tt  HKS'0008# T HKS'000&% Tt HKS'000%E4 T
Financial assets BBEE
Due from subsidiaries FEMB B 2 BIBR R 408,110 455,664 377,880 421911
Interest-bearing loan due JE WPl B A RlT B E
from a subsidiary 166,502 163,706 166,502 153,706
574,612 609,370 544,382 575,617
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 7 8| &R MY & a0
40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 40. ERMIAZAFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) NEEBEEZR @
Company (continued) PANETRE))
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE NFEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20135 20145 2013
HK$'0008%Ft HK$'0005%% T HKS'00058% T HKS000E%TR
Financial liabilities BBaR
Convertible bonds ARk ES 290,889 267,673 288,640 267,673
Fair value hierarchy: DNPEEER:
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's TREJIASERAARSHIAZ
and the Company's financial instruments: NHEERESR
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: R FIEETEHEZAE -
Group AEH
As at 28 February 2014 M2014%2H28H
Fair value measurement categorised into
DNFEEFESE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BRE
SERTISRE BAUBRHE BEYIE
(#®B11) (% 512) (% 513) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT BT T
Interest-bearing bank and other TERITER L HEME R
borrowings = = 564,231 564,231
Convertible bonds AR ES = = 288,640 288,640
Finance lease payables ENREES - - 2,368 2,368
- - 855,239 855,239




40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued)

Group

As at 28 February 2013

40. TRAT B 2 QN FEER

AFEEZER @
BATEEHEREZ AR (B)

A

201352 H28H

Fair value measurement categorised into

NFEEFESDS
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEAREL
ERTISHME BBAUEREHE BRYUB
(#311) (#72) (#%7313) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BYTT BT T BT T
Interest-bearing bank and ERITERREMER
other borrowings = = 355,662 355,662
Convertible bonds AR ES - - 267,673 267,673
Finance lease payables ENRERE - - 8,030 8,030
= = 631,365 631,365
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: BN TFEETEREZEE -
Company VNN |
As at 28 February 2014 R201462H28H
Fair value measurement categorised into
NFEEFESE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEREL
ERTISHME BBAUERHE BRYUB
(#711) (#72) (#%5313) ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Due from subsidiaries FEUSFT B8 A R R K - - 377,880 377,880
Interest-bearing loan due FEYFT B A RIET B ER
from a subsidiary = = 166,502 166,502
- - 544,382 544,382
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 75 3% 3% M = ()

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 40. SR I A AFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) ANEEBEER@®
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: (continued) B FIEETEREZAE - (B)
Company KA

As at 28 February 2013

R201352H28H

Fair value measurement categorised into
ATHEESESE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EREL
ERTISME EAUEEHE BRYUE
(#&BI1) (& 512) (R 513) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT T BT T
Due from subsidiaries FEMR B 2 R AR X - - 421911 421911
Interest-bearing loan due from FEMPT B A RIET B ERK
a subsidiary = = 153,706 153,706
- - 575,617 575,617
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: AT EEH R RES B -
Company RAF

As at 28 February 2014

R201452H28H

Fair value measurement categorised into
ATHEEAESE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EREU

ERTISRE EATHEHE BEYE
(#&711) (#512) (A 5B13) ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T

Convertible bonds

Ak AR - - 308,960 308,960




40. eI A2 AFEER
NEEBESER

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued) BAFEBETEREZAE - (B)
Company NN
As at 28 February 2013 M2013%27828H
Fair value measurement categorised into
AHEEAEDS
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEREH
SERTSRE BEAUBRHE BRYE
(#®B11) (% 512) (R 513) ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T BET T
Convertible bonds AR E = = 267,673 267,673

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1
and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities (2013: Nil).

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, the
pledged deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to short
term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance team headed by the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for their fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer. At the
end of each reporting period, the finance team analyses the movements in the values
of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the Chief Financial Officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit committee every year for annual
financial reporting.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 7% 3 3R B & ()

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of amounts due from subsidiaries have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance
risk for non-current portion of finance lease payables as at 28 February 2014 was
assessed to be insignificant. The fair value of the liability portion of the convertible
bonds is estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using an equivalent
market interest rate for a similar convertible bond with consideration of the Group's
own non-performance risk.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, bank overdrafts, convertible bonds, finance leases payables, pledged time
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

40.

41.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily
to the Group's long term debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that change in
interest rates had occurred at the year end date and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rates for financial instruments in existence at that date. A 1% increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’'s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's profit for the year ended 28 February 2014 and the retained profits as of
28 February 2014 would decrease/increase by HKS$3,514,650 (2013: decrease/
increase by HKS1,780,000). This is mainly attributes to the Group's exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising from sales and
purchases by operating units in currencies other than the units' functional currencies.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily USS. The Group does not hold or
issue any derivative financial instruments for trading purposes or to hedge against
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. The Group mitigates this risk by conducting
the sales and purchases transactions in the same currency, whenever possible.

In the opinion of the directors, USS are reasonably stable under the Linked Exchange
Rate System with HKS and accordingly, the Company does not have any significant
foreign exchange risk.

Credit risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit to customers in
the ordinary course of operations. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk on
recognised financial assets is limited to their carrying amount at the end of the
reporting period.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group reviews the
recoverability of receivables individually and collectively periodically and at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment loss is made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management of the Group considers that
the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of counter parties
and customers.

41.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 7% 3 3R B & ()

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risks for cash and cash equivalents of the Group and the Company are also
regarded as immaterial as they are deposited with major banks and other financial
institutions located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group does not hold other material collateral over the financial assets. None of
the financial assets of the Company are secured by collateral or other credit
enhancements. The credit policies have been followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to have been effective in limiting the Group's exposure to credit
risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and
its financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow management. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements, its compliance with
lending covenants and its relationship with its banks to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

41.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 41. BBEREEERREK

POLICIES (continued) %(%E)
Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRR ()
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting RiRE AR - NREBIRE FTAERN
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: BREFE B ABZ BB RE
:
Group REE
On demand
or less than
1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years Total
REREEDS
15T 1E25F 2E5F bl
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
2014 201445
Trade payables FEATBR K 355,088 - - 355,088
Financial liabilities included in BEEEAMER KR
other payales and accruals A BRZMBAE 152,677 - - 152,677
Convertible bonds AR ES 12,5600 12,5600 402,743 427,743
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITR
other borrowings HiE» 565,840 = = 565,840
Finance lease payables ENREES 1,820 375 214 2,409
1,087,925 12,875 402,957 1,603,757
Group rEE
On demand
or less than
Tyear 1to2years 2to5years Total
REREER
1HEUT 1524 2E5F ko)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BEF T
2013 20134
Trade payables FERTBRR 310,281 = = 310,281
Financial liabilities included in other BEEEAMENTR R
payables and accruals B BRZHBAR 217,108 - - 217,108
Convertible bonds AR ES 12,842 12,500 415,243 440,585
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITR
other borrowings HAb B 355,662 - = 355,662
Finance lease payables ERREHEE 5923 1,813 566 8,302

901,816 14,313 415,809 1,331,938
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 7% 3 3R B & ()

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 28 February 2014, the Group's term loan with on demand clause in the amount
of HK$530,067,000 (2013: HKS335,748,000) was repayable within one year in
accordance with the terms of the loan. The loan agreement contained a repayment on
demand clause giving the bank the unconditional right to call in the loan at any time
and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the total amount was
classified as “on demand".

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe that these bank loans
will be called in its entirety within 12 months, and they consider that these borrowings
will be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the loan agreements.
This evaluation was made considering: the financial position of the Group at the date
of approval of the financial statements; the Group's compliance with the loan
covenants; the lack of events of default, and the fact that the Group has made all
previously scheduled repayments on time.

41.
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POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

41. BEREEEEZERK

(&)

EE SR (4)

Company ZN/NE|
On demand
or less than
1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years Total
EREER
1FUT 1828 2254 BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT BT T
2014 201445
Financial liabilities included in BEEEMENERR
other payales and accruals s BRZMBAR 1,920 - - 1,920
Convertible bonds ARk fE 5 12,500 12,500 402,743 427,743
Guarantees given to banks and RETHERRELZ RIT
other creditors in connection REAEERR
with facilities granted
to certain subsidiaries 505,433 = = 505,433
519,853 12,500 402,743 935,096
Company ARE
On demand
or less than
1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years Total
EREEY
1ELUT 1Z22%F 2ZE5% Eb ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
2013 20135
Financial liabilities included BEEEMENERR
in other payables and accruals FEEtEACMBEAE 2,602 - - 2,502
Convertible bonds AR ES 12,842 12,500 415,243 440,585
Guarantees given to banks and RETHE R RER 2 R1T
other creditors in connection REMEEER
with facilities granted
to certain subsidiaries 480,849 = = 480,849
496,193 12,500 415,243 923,936
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 7% 3 3R B & ()

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group has been imposed with several capital requirements from banks and under
convertible bonds instrument on the Group's equity to total assets ratio, gearing ratio
and consolidated tangible net worth. As of 28 February 2014 and 28 February 2013,
the Group has complied with these capital requirements. During the year, the Group
has changed its measure of capital monitoring by using net gearing ratio (2013: debt
to equity ratio) in order to comply with the new capital requirements from the banks.
Save as disclosed above, no changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 28 February 2014 and 28
February 2013.

41.
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41.

42.

43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 41. BEEREEBZERK
POLICIES (continued) (&)
Capital management (continued) EREE (B
The Group monitors capital using net gearing ratio, which is represented by total AEBENAFEELRERER - A
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity of the Group. Total TEBMBREERRE KRS EEY
borrowings include interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds BRUAEZ ARFE - MEE BE BIRT
and finance lease payables. The Group's policy is to maintain the net gearing ratio not REMER - TRRES REMNRE
greater than 80%. The net gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were HE NEBZBRDEFFEEL
as follows: ERZH80% - RIREMRFAEL
EMT
2014 2013
2014F 2013 F
HK$'000 8% F T HKS'000 5% T 7t
Total equity R 1,070,370 988,693
Total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents @S &R RESZEY 716,750 425,517
Net gearing ratio FRELE 67% 43%
s [—1
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 42, LB F
As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, due to the adoption of AP EE 2.2 FfRHE - XA ERERNAF
revised HKFRS during the current year, the accounting treatment and presentation of ERERAEEI 2B BGER - i)
certain items and balances in the financial statements have been revised to comply EENBRENETHRET - UK
with the new requirements. Accordingly, certain comparative amounts have been EAFEGTRETERZENNFR -
reclassified and restated to conform with the current year's presentation and
accounting treatment.
= S
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43. BT 2 #t

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30 May 2014,

REATSREN 20145 A0 AKES
ShtAZ XTI -
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FIVE-YEAR
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TFUBHRE
A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the FEBNBERBANRERZEEREE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial BERFERBRTERZ  HEEEAMIE
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. The amounts for each BRI HER RAE B B HRER)
year in the five year financial summary have been adjusted for the effects of the #HINMT RAEFUBHEETFNESREE
retrospective changes in the accounting policy affecting employee benefit obligations, as RETIRBABBZABRZEBPLHNZ
detailed in note 2.2 to the financial statements. BERE  HRMBMKRME22 -
RESULTS E 5
Year ended 28/29 February
BZE2H28/29HILFE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
20144 20135 20124 20115 20104
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E5)) (B5) (E5)) (&%)
TURNOVER = 4,057,271 3,562,819 3,359,063 2,517,543 2,017,572
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FRAE R & 101,349 94,952 242,245 232,137 187,310
Income tax expense FiiSHi & fA (27,023) (26,964) (565,873) (30,668) (50,399)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A B 74,326 67,988 186,372 201,469 136911
Attributable to: PGB A BB -
Owners of the Company KAREEA 74,529 68,137 167,723 177,349 111,850
Non-controlling interests JE 422 % B B e 2 (203) (149) 18,649 24,120 25,061
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A R 74,326 67,988 186,372 201,469 136911
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BE  BERFERRFRER

Year ended 28/29 February
BE2H28/29BLLFE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
20145 20134 201245 2011 4§ 20104
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BEF T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRR 137,927 131,233 137,932 124,538 118,593
Intangible assets B AE 99 99 = = =
Other asset Hin & 500 500 500 500 500
Deposits and prepayments BNRRRE 46,238 29,551 23,126 = =
Deferred tax assets RIETIIHE &= 34,908 26,874 21,036 19,015 22,244
Current assets MENEEE 2,330,451 2,032,476 1,912,498 1,625,218 1,316,628
2,550,123 2,220,733 2,095,092 1,768,271 1,457,965
Current liabilities mEEE (1,152,434) (935,258)  (1,110,186) (805,438) (713,064)
Finance lease payables ENmERE (586) (2,338) (2,652) (1,825) (203)
Employee benefit obligations BERFED (17,087) (15,186) (19,727) (12,745) (11,152)
Convertible bonds AR ES (278,389) (254,831) = = =
Other payables and accruals Hit AR R EEA (5,207) = = = =
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBE & (26,050) (24,427) (24,380) (16,837) (12,969)
Net assets EEFE 1,070,370 988,693 938,247 932,426 720,577
Issued capital BETRA (52,584) (52,584) (52,584) (52,584) (52,584)
Reserves et (1,018,086) (936,210) (885,663) (759,040) (574,782)
Equity attributable to owners RARIER ANEIEE R
of the Company (1,070,670) (988,794) (938,247) (811,624) (627,366)
Non-controlling interests FEIR AR AR R A 2 300 101 = (120,802) (93,211)
Total equity 0 (1,070,370) (988,693) (938,247) (932,426) (720,577)
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SUMMARY OF
PROPERTIES

MERE

Location

i 24

Gross
floor area
(Square Feet)
EEMEE
(FHBR)

Percentage
interest in
property
YRR

Category of
tenure

FHHDH

Usage

Rz

1 Private Car Parking Space

Nos. 43—50 and 73, Basement, and
Lorry Car Parking Space Nos. 1—4,

6, 11 and 14, 1st Floor

Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENEAWRMEREXTHAE
B8 4350 %% & 73 SR AL R B HE AL K&
—IE1-45% - 657 - 11 R4 KHEAENL

N/A

100%

2 Units AT—A7, B, Front and Rear Portion,
Storeroom No.3 and 5, Ground Floor;
Units A1-A2, B and C, st Floor;

Unit E-H, 2nd Floor, and

Units A-K and Flat Roof, 3rd Floor
Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENEAWRAE0REAZTHAE

“IBA-KBUEFA

N AT-A7 BAL - BEAL - AIEEHS - SREFHEME :
—HEAT-A2B{ - BRCEN  —HBE-HEM K

91,455

100%

No. 18, Wong Chuk Hang Road,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong

B Units A & B, Tst Floor, Shui Ki Industrial Building,

EREBBFEMNE18RIHHIEAE —BAEBE

10,716

100%




Gross
floor area Percentage
(Square Feet) interest in Category of
Location BEMmE property tenure Usage
ih 2h (FBR) VEERIEE | FHNSE A%

4 Unit A1 on Level 1 and 2, Block 2,

Heng Chang Garden, Beijing, PRC 1,654 100% L R

FEULERMEEEE 2 E—E A1 B
5 Flat 01, 23rd Floor, Block F, Beijing Rome Garden,

Cao Hui Road, Ch District,

a? ui Roa aoyang Distric 1735 100% L R

Beijing, PRC

PRI RTHGREZRESEEFE-_T=1%RE
L: Long term lease L: RERY
M:  Medium term lease M: FRERZZAY
©: Carpark C; JREE{L

Industrial unit TR

R: Residential R T=£H
N/A: Not applicable N/A:  TiEA

The Group's properties were stated at cost less depreciation in the statement of financial
position at the value of HK$57,306,000 as at 28 February 2014 (2013:HKS 59,120,000) as
set out on page 164 of the annual report. The properties were revalued individually at the
end of the reporting period by Ascent Partners, independent professionally qualified valuers,
at an aggregate open market value of HKS$479,356,000 (2013: HKS 451,200,000). “Open
market value” is intended to mean “the estimated amount for which an asset or liability
should exchange on the valuation date between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an
arm’s — length transaction after proper marketing and where the parties had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion”.

M20145F2 A28 B » A5 B H)Y) R AZ K A
B2 EINRNGRE M BRRBRROFER
7% 57,306,000 7T (2013 4F : 7##& 59,120,000
TT) o sF BN AFRE 1648 - MERRE
TREMENATISEELHABLIEESER
& B Bf Ascent Partners 2 —# /T E & A4 E
# #479,356,000 T (20134 : & ¥
451,200,0007T) * [RETHIZEE] 21 [H—
BEESAE BEHETHEER AT &
BEEMSHERE YEEEALHENS &
BERAZEZBANBERT  REEBRI‘RZME
sreEl -
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